
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services 
Officer on 01432 261885 or e-mail rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Planning Committee 
 

 

Date: Wednesday 15 May 2013 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 261885 
Email: rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Planning 
Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor PGH Cutter 
Vice-Chairman Councillor BA Durkin 
   
 Councillor PA Andrews  
 Councillor AN Bridges  
 Councillor PJ Edwards  
 Councillor DW Greenow  
 Councillor KS Guthrie  
 Councillor J Hardwick  
 Councillor JW Hope MBE  
 Councillor MAF Hubbard  
 Councillor RC Hunt  
 Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
 Councillor JG Lester  
 Councillor RI Matthews  
 Councillor FM Norman  
 Councillor AJW Powers  
 Councillor GR Swinford  
 Councillor PJ Watts  
 

   
 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  15 MAY 2013 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 

5 - 6 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place of a 
Member of the Committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
Agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

7 - 28 

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 April 2013. 
 

 

5.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

 To receive any announcements from the Chairman. 
 

 

6.   SE100966/F - PENNOXSTONE COURT FARM, KINGS CAPLE, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 4TX 
 

29 - 30 

 To seek Committee resolution to add an informative note regarding the 
statement of positive and proactive working as required by article 31 1 (cc) of 
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) (Order) 2010/2184 (as amended). 
 

 

7.   130166/F - SITE ADJACENT TO 4 VALENTINE COURT, CANON PYON, 
HEREFORD, HR4 8NZ 
 

31 - 46 

 Proposed erection of 30 no dwellings including 10 affordable units and 
associated works to provide new access and road. 
 

 

8.   N123414/CD - HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 
 

47 - 54 

 Variation of Condition 15 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD. 
 

 

9.   N123415/CD - HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 
 

55 - 62 

 Variation of Condition 2 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD. 
 

 

10.   N123428/CD - HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 
 

63 - 70 

 Variation of Condition 14 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD. 
 

 

11.   130191/O - LAND ADJACENT HARWELL, BRAMPTON ABBOTS, ROSS 
ON WYE, HR9 7JD 
 

71 - 76 

 Outline for the erection of one single storey dwelling and double garage with 
all matters reserved. 
 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  15 MAY 2013 
 

 

12.   S123565/F - SUFTON RISE, MORDIFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 4EN 
 

77 - 86 

 Erection of 12 no. affordable units with associated access, landscaping and 
allotments. 
 

 

13.   130060/F - LAND SOUTH OF GREYTREE ROAD, GREYTREE, ROSS ON 
WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE 
 

87 - 98 

 Erection of 14 no. semi-detached and detached dwellings. 
 

 

14.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 

 Date of next site inspection: 4 June 2013 
 
Date of next meeting:  5 June 2013 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 

5



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in the 
circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated 
the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 

6



�������������	
���
�
	

�������� 	
� ��
� �

����� 	
� ��������� �	�����

� �
��� ��� ��
�
�	������ �����
��� ��	������	��� ���  �
	�� !	����  
�

	��� 	��
"
��
#��$�%&�'(����%)*�����*)+))����
� �

��
#
��,� �	������	���- �����
��.��������/�
�	������	���'�0������.1��
���������/�

� � �
� �	������	�#,��'�'���
2#��'�������
#���3���2���#��0"�-�

�	2��4��-�����
��

3� ���2�����3"� 	(
�������'5� ��������!�� ������������3	�
#������
5���	������'3"��	2
�#��-!��2��
	��������3�"���#�

�
� �
������
�����
,	 �	������	�#� �����
���!�� �����	���-3��	2
�����0�����
������3�!	�
��#	�	
� �
*6�+� '�787-����57!�'���������

	
���������	����	��������	����	
����������	� 	
��!��	"��	��	#"!!$���%	
	

*69+� �'��0�������������.�5�'�:/���
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	�"�"��"�$	&%'%()	��	!$�	
������*�	
���!�!�!���+	
����������	,	����	"��	�	
,�����	"!!�����	!$�	���!���	"�	��-�!�!�!�	���-���	���	
����������	� 	
��!��	"��	��	
#"!!$���%	
	

*66+� 0��8'!'��7���75�����!������
	
.%	�'()//01�	2	
���	����
��3	3�	����	
�33� �+	 ���
�4+	����2��254�+	
�������������%	

���������	�5	 ������+	���2,�����"�6+	3$�	
���������	"������	!$"!	$�	�"�	"	���-��	��	
!$�	 �����6	7"�!��!	
$���$%	
	
8%	��'99:001�	2,����;�3���	
���3	���#+	<�� �	
�,
�+	�������������+	��'	
&3;%	

���������	7�	���=��+	���2,�����"�6+	3$�	
���������	"������	!$"!	$�	�"�	"	���-��	��	!$�	
56�	>"���6	���7	�������6	
����!!��%	
	
8%	��'99:001�	2,����;�3���	
���3	���#+	<�� �	
�,
�+	�������������+	��'	
&3;%	

���������	�	�"�����=+	���2,�����"�6+	3$�	
���������	"������	!$"!	$�	�"�	"	���-��	��	!$�	
56�	>"���6	���7	�������6	
����!!��%	
	
8%	��'99:001�	2,����;�3���	
���3	���#+	<�� �	
�,
�+	�������������+	��'	
&3;%	

���������	, �	
�!!��+	���2,�����"�6+	3$�	
���������	"������	!$"!	$�	�"�	
$"���"�	��	!$�	
56�	>"���6	���7	����!	�������6	
����!!��%%	
	
	

*6;+� ����������
	
!��781�0,� �������
������
#�	
���
��

������
���	����'(����%)*���
��((�	<
���#���

�	��
����
�	�������#���
���$���
���������+�
	
	
	

AGENDA ITEM 4

7



	

*6=+� � '�!�'�>��'��7������������
	
3$���	����	��	"����������!�%	
	

*;)+� '���'8����
	
3$�	,�"�����	
����!!��	��!��	!$�	�����!%	
	

*;*+� �*%���9?5�@�8'�0�'03'������7�!7����7��'-���-7!�8�:��!7��@7�@":���
 �!�57!0� �!����
	
3$�	������	,�"�����	�������	�"��	"	������!"!���	��	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	���"!��	1	
"���!���"�	��������!"!����	��������	���������	!$�	��-���"!���	��	!$�	"����"	����	
��������	��	!$�	���"!�	�$��!%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	!$�	���!���"	���	��-���	���"=���+	#��	
�"�=+	��������!���	
��!��	,"���$	

������?	"��	#�	,����+	"	����$-������	�������!+	���=�	��	�-@��!���	!�	!$�	"�����"!���%		
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	�"�"��"�$	&%8%(%(	��	!$�	
������*�	
���!�!�!���+	
���������	�	7�"���+	
!$�	���"�	�"��	���-��+	������!��	��	"	���-��	��	������+	���������A	
	

•	 �	!��$���"�	�����!	���"�����	!$�	��"��"��	������	"!	!$�	��!�	$"�	-���	���!	!�	!$�	
,�"�����	
����!!��	#��-���%�

•	 #��-���	����	!$"�=��	���	"!!������	!$�	��!�	����!%�
•	 3$���	����	��������"�!	������	���"�����	$��$�"6	�"��!6	"!	��6	�����	
"��%�
•	 
$���	�"��!6	�"�	"�	�����!"�!	�"�!��	��	��!��������	!$�	"�����"!���%�

	
3$�	����������!	#"�"���	"������	!$�	
����!!��	!$"!	"�	"���"�	"�"���!	���2
��!�����"!���	$"�	-���	��������	��	#���"6	('	�����	(9')	"��	"�	"	�����!	��	!$��	!$�	
"�����"!���	�����	��!	-�	��!�������	-6	!$�	,�"�����	
����!!��%	�������	��	�����	!�	
�"=�	"�	"�������"!�	��������!"!���	��	������!	��	!$�	"���"�	�!	�"�	������"�6	���	!$�	

����!!��		!�	"�����	��������	"�	!�	$��	!$�6	�����	$"��	��!�������	!$�	"�����"!���	$"�	
!$�6	-���	��	"	����!���	!�	��	��%	
	
3$�	����!	���-��	��	!$�	
����!!��	!�	���"=	��	!$�	"�����"!���	�"�	��	!$�	�������	!$"!	�!	
�$����	-�	�������	���!�"�6	!�	!$�	�"��	�������*�	���������"!���%	��	��!��	!$�	��������	
��	!$�	�"���$	�������	"��	��	!$�	���"�	�������!�	"��	$"�	��������	���"�����	�$���	�"��!6	
���	!�	!$�	-��6	7	��"�+	�$��$	������!��	!�	"	��!���"6%	��	"���	��!��	!$�	��������	
�"����	��	������!	��	��"��"��	"��	����������	!$"!	"�	"	�����!	��	!$���	������	!$�	
����������!	�"�	��!	���!"��"-��%	��	�����	!$"!	!$�	"�����"!���	-�	�������	��	
"�����"���	��!$	���!"�6	����������!	,�"�	,�������	�'+	��(+	��)	"��	38%	
	
3$�	
����!!��	�!"!��	!$"!	!$�6	����	��!	��	"�������!	��!$	!$��	����	"��	"	��!���	!�	
"������	!$�	"�����"!���	�"�	�����	"��	��������%	#��-���	��!��	!$"!	!$�	��"��"��	
������	$"�	-���	"��������	!$����$	"�������"!�	�����!����	"��	!$"!	!$�	����������!	
�����	��!	��������	��!��	!$���	������	$"�	-���	����6	��������%	#��-���	���	$"��	����	
�������	��	������!	��	!$�	��$����"�	�����	��	!$�	������!6	��	!$�	��$���	"��	��B���!��	!$"!	
"	�����!���	-�	"����	!�	!$�	������!���	��B������	!$�	�����	����!	!�	-�	�������	!�	(9��$%	
#��-���	���!�����	!�	�������	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	��!��	!$"!	!$�	����������!	�����	
������	��$����"�	�������!�	!�	!$�	��$���	"�	�������!�	��	!$�	��������	���������	�����	
-�	"-��	!�	�"�=	!�	!$�	��"�-6	����"�6	��$���%	
	
�!	�"�	��!��	!$"!	"	��!�	��"��$	$"�	-���	������"6	�����	(99.	"��	!$"!	!$��	�"�	!$�	
���!	"�������"!�	��!�	����!�����	��	 �����6%	3$�	��-"!�	���!�����	��!$	#��-���	
������!���	!$�	"�����"!���%	�!	�"�	����������	!$"!	!$�	"�����"!���	�����	�����!	��	!$�	"��"	
-����	����	-���!	��	�$��$	�����	"���	��"�	!�	"	�����!���	��	��$����	������%		

8



	

	
������	!$�	��-"!�	!$�	,"���$	
������	����	�!�����6	"������	!�	��������	���=	��	"	
����$-���$���	��"�+		
	
��	��������	!�	"	���-��	��	������	�"����	-6	!$�	
����!!��+	!$�	������	,�"�����	�������	
"������	!$"!	!$���	�"�	��	���!���	'90	"�������!	���!��-�!���	���	$��$�"6�	"�!$���$	
!$���	����	$��$�"6	-�����!�	��!$��	!$�	��!�?	!$"!	!$�	�����!6	��	!$�	��!�	�"�	(:	���������	
���	$��!"��?	!$"!	������!6	���	�����"��6	�����	-�	�����	!�	���"�	�������!�?	"��	!$"!	!$�	
����!	��	!$�	���������	���	��!	����	��!�	!$�	7	��"�	"�	!$���	�"�	"	$����	"��	���!�"!$	
-�!����	!$�	���������	"��	!$�	��"�%	
	
��	��������	!�	"	B���!���	���"�����	"	�����!���	"���������	!$�	�����	����!	��	!$�	"��"+	
!$�	��"�	��	����$-���$���	,�"�����	"������	!$"!	!$��	�"�	��!����	��	!$�	���!���	��	!$�	
"�����"�!	"��	�����	��!	-�	�����!�����	-6	!$�	
����!!��%	��	���	$������	�!"!�	!$"!	$�	
�����	"�����	!$�	$��$�"6	"�!$���!6	��	!$�	
����!!��*�	��������	��	������!	��	!$��	
�"!!��%	
	

���������	�	7�"���	�"�	�����	!$�	�����!���!6	!�	�����	!$�	��-"!�%	��	���!��"!��	$��	
�������	���"�=�	"��	��B���!��	!$"!	!$�	
����!!��	������	!$�	"�����"!���%	
	
!��781�0�
�
� '����������((
����	���

��#������
������
#(
���	
��	�@�
�
�������	����
�
�	�����

�2	������<
��

������
���	�������(��������(
���##�	��#��A
����	���
�

	��	2�����	�����	�#,�
�
*+� ')*�B����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���	
��
<
�	(�
���
�
%+� �)*�B�0
<
�	(�
���������	�����
�2�����((�	<
��(���#�
�
�+� �)6�B��	��
<
�	(�
�����������
��	�(�
��	���#������������
�
�(��	
��*)9�

���

�
���
�
&+� �)*�B����(�
�	
�
C�
��������
����#�
�
�+� -)%�B�!
�
���	��	
���

#������
��
�	2#�
�
9+� -)=�B�0
����#�	
��	�����$���
���
��#�
�
6+� -*)�B�8���#��(����#��
�
�
�
;+� -**�B�8���#��(����#��
�
���(�
�
�����	��
�
=+� -*%�B� 
��
�	2�(��������
�
*)+�  )��B�1�#������$�#(��$#�
�
**+�  )&�B�1�#������$�	<
��
�	����
�
�
*%+�  *��B�'��
##������������
������(�������
�
*�+�  *6�B�3�����	����(�	<
�
���
�
*&+�  %*�B�"�

��2�#�����
�
*�+�  %6�B���������
	��#��
�	(
����<
#�
�

9



	

*9+�  %=�B��	<
�
������#
���
��$��
�(�������
�
*6+� �*9��B�!
#������	��	���	��#���������	�#������	��
�
*;+� �*6��B����
�
�	
�
	���2��
����#(	#���
�
*=+� �%)��B����
�
�	
�#��
��
�2��
���������
�
�
%)+� �%���B���(�	<
�
���	
�
C�#�����#
2
���
�#$#�
��
�
%*+� �&%��B����
�
�	
��

�#
�#�	���
�
�
%%+� �	���������	��#���$������
(	���������������	��
�
%�+� ��(�
�
�����	��	
�!
�
�����	�����
�
��((�	<
�����
���	�����	���	+%���
�
!
�#	��
	��'((�	<����
�
*+� ��
�(�	(	#����
(�
#
��#���#�#�������
�
	���	
��
<
�	(�
���#���#
$������

�
����
�(�	<
���

	�����
��	�#�����

��2���������#��	�����$�	����#������
�
�����<������
�#��
�2�������#������
���	�#������#������#�2��������	#
�
(�	C����$��	��	����#
�<��
#�����
�������
#+���
�(�	(	#����#�	
���#�D
��#���
��
�
#�������$	��������
�#��$�����

(����2������#�
��
�	
�<�����
��	����	������
��#��	��
����
�������(����	����A	������������#
#����
��������
������
�((
�����
�	
���
�#��

�#�
�
�	������2�$�#�

�$+�'��	������$�
 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	(�
��������(	����
#��*���%�������6��0!*��0!%��
0!���0!&�� &�� 6�� =�� *)�� *��� *��� *9���9���;���**��8'%��8'���8'���8'9�
������*�������
��
�
<����#�#����������$���	�#���������
#�������#�����
	�A
���<
#�	
���
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	�����
�#���#
�
��

�
��57!�'��1��,�
�
*+� ��
�8	�������������'���	���$���#����
��(	#���<
�$�����(�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��((������	���$��##
##������
�(�	(	#��������#��(��������
(	���$�������$�	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#+��
�	�����	�#�����
#(
���	
�
����
�#�	
��	��
���2������
��((������	��.�#�	��������$�#������
�/���<
�
�
#���
�������
���
��#��	���
�(�	(	#��+��'#����
#�������
�8	�������������
'���	���$���#��

�����
��	�������(��������(
���##�	��
	��������
(����
�
(�	(	#����������	�����
�2������
�(�
#��(��	�����
�<	���	
�#�#�������
�
�
<
�	(�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��+�

��
%+�  �)*�B�����	�� ���2�$�
�
�+�  �)&�B����<��
�'((�����#�"������ ���2�$�
�
&+�  �)��B�"	��#�"��������
� ���2�$�
�
�+�  �)6�B��
���	��%6;�'��

�
����
�
9+�  �*)�B��	�0������
��	�0�#�����
��	� ���2�$�
	

*;%+� ��*))=99?5�@����7E��7����7�!��5'!���4��-���'�8��� �!�57!0� �!���
 !*�&�E���
	
3$�	,������"�	,�"�����	�������	�"��	"	������!"!���	��	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	���"!��	1	
"���!���"�	��������!"!����	��������	���������	!$�	��-���"!���	��	!$�	"����"	����	
��������	��	!$�	���"!�	�$��!%	������	!$�	������!"!���	#��-���	����	�����	������"!���	

10



	

���"�����	!$�	���"�	-"�=������	��	!$�	"�����"!���	���������	��!"���	��	!$�	@�����"�	������?	
"	�������!���	��	!$�	������	��"�	!$"!	!$�6	$"�	-���	��������	��!$	�$��$	$"�	��!"���	��	!$�	
�"����	���6!������?	"	��!"����	�������!���	��	�"�$	��	!$�	������	���������	�$�!���"�$�	"��	
��"��	"�	����	"�	"�	���"!�	��	������!	��	�����6	������	���"�����	!$�	"�����"!���%	�!	!$�	
���	��	$��	������!"!���	!$�	,������"�	,�"�����	�������	"������	#��-���	!$"!	!$�	
"�����"!���	�����	�����!	��	"	�"���	��"��	����������!	��	!$�	���7	"��	!$�������	!$�	
"�����"!���	�"�	�����������	���	�����"�%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	!$�	���!���"	���	��-���	���"=���+	#�	7��=�!!+	��������!���	<����	
"���	
,"���$	
������?	"��	#�	5����"��+	��������!���	"	���-��	��	���"�	�������!�+	���=�	��	
�-@��!���	!�	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	#�	
��=-���+	!$�	"�����"�!+	���=�	��	������!%	
	
3$�	��"�	��	����$-������	,�"�����	"��������	!$�	
����!!��	��	���������	!�	!$�	@�����"�	
������	������	-6	"	���"�	�������!	��-��B���!	!�	!$�	"�����"!���	-����	��"�!��	��	#"6	
(9''%	��	"������	!$"!	!$�	��"����	���!�"��6	�����	���	!$�	@�����"�	������	����	!$"!	!$�	

������	$"�	�"����	!�	�����6	��!$	!$�	����������!"�	���"�!	���������!	"��	��,	,����6	

�'+	!$"!	!$�	
������	$"�	!"=��	��!�	"�����!	�������"�!	������+	"��	!$"!	!$���	$"�	-���	"	
�"�����	!�	����"��	�����"�!	��!����!�%	��	"����	!$"!	"	������	@�����"�	������	�"�	"���	
������	��	������!	��	����������!	������%	��!��	!$�	@�����"�	������*�	$"�	-���	������	!$�	

������	����	���!������	��	"	���"�"!�	�"��	���	��!	$"����	��������	���"�	��"����	���	
"��������	"�	"�����"!���	"��	"!	!$��	�!"��	!$�	�"��	��"���	�"�	����$!	!�	-�	"����	!�	
!$�	�C��!���	@�����"�	������	���	,����C�!���	
���!%	3$�	
������	!��=	"�����	�$��$	�"�	
!$"!	!$���	�"�	"	�!����	�$"���	!$"!	!$�	����!	�����	��$���	!$��	��"���%	
����B���!�6	
!$�	
������	������!��	!�	!$�	����������	-����	B�"�$��	"��	!$��	!��=	��"��	��	)	
���!��-��	(9'(	��!$	!$�	��������	-����	��	!$�	�������	!$"!	!$�	
������	$"�	�"����	!�	
�����6	���������!	��"����	���	"��������	!$�	"�����"!���%	��	�������	��	!$�	��"�	��	
����$-���$���	,�"�����	"������	!$"!	#��-���	����	��!	-����	-6	!$�	��������	
��������+	$������	!$�6	������	!�	-�	���"�	��	$��	!$�6	��"�$��	!$���	��������	"��	!�	����	
���"�	��"����	��	!$�	����!	!$"!	��"�����	����������	�"�	��"�!��%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	�"�"��"�$	&%8%(%(	��	!$�	
������*�	
���!�!�!���+	
���������	7�	���=��+	
!$�	���"�	�"��	���-��+	������!��	��	"	���-��	��	������+	���������A	
	

•	 3$�	 "�����"!���	 �"�	 ���!��!����	 "��	 ��B�����	 "	 -"�"����	 ��������	 !"=���	 ��!�	
"�����!	 !$�	 �����	 ��	 !$�	 -�������	 "��	 !$�	 ���"�!	 ��	 !$�	 
����	56�	 >"���6	
���7%�

•	 3$�	"�����"!���	�"�	"�������+	���!�"�6	 !�	 ���������"!���+	-6	���	��!�	"!	 !$�	
��!�-��	(9'9	���!���%�

•	 3$�	"�����"!���	$"�	��������	��������!"!����	-�!$	��	������!	"��	��	�-@��!���%�
•	 3$�	 ���"�!	 ��	 !$�	 ���7	 �"�	 ��!	 "����!"-��	 "��	 !$�	 "�����"!���	 �$����	 -�	

�������%�
•	 3$���	 $"�	 -���	 "	 ���-��	 ��	 �����"��!�	 !�	 !$�	 
������*�	 ����������!	 3�"�	

���"�����	-��"�$��	��	��"�����	�����!����	"!	!$�	��!�%	3$���	�����"��!�	���"!��	!�	
!$�	 �"�����	 !�	 ������	 !$�	 ��"���$	 ���6!�����	 ��"���	 ����	 ����!	 #�"���?	 !$�	
�"�����	!�	�����6	��!$	�����!����	���"�����	���������	"��	�"�	�������?	!$�	���"6	��	
��!!���	��+	"��	!$�	��-��B���!	���-"�����	��+	!$�	�������!6	��"����	�����?	"��	
���6!������	-����	����!��	��!����	��	!$�	"�������	!����%�

•	 
������	 �"�	 �C�������	 ���"�����	 !$�	 "�����"�!*�	 ������"�	 !�	 ����!	 !$�	
���6!�����	��"���	�$���!	!$�	�C��!���	���6!������	����	�!���	��	��!�%�

•	 3$�	����"�	���"�!	�$����	��!	-�	-"���	��	!$�	��!���	56�	>"���6	���7	-�!	��	!$�	
���"�	���7	
"����"��	#"�"�����!	D���+	
#D9/	<����	
"���	
���"���%�

•	 ��	 !$�	 "�����"!���	 �"�	 ��"���	 ��	 !�	 !$�	 ���!��	 <������+	 !$�	 "��"	 �������	 -6	
���6!������	�����	�B�"!�	!�	"�	"��"	�"����	!$"�	 ��"!��	#"��$��!��%�

11



	

•	 3$�	 "�����"!���	�"�	 ���!�"�6	 !�	���!"�6	����������!	 ,�"�	,����6	 
�'	 "��	 !$�	
�"!���"�	,�"�����	,����6	��"�����=%�

•	 3$�	��������	���"�!	�!"!����!	���	��!	�������	"	-"�"����	����%�
•	 3$�	 "�����"!���	 ���	 ��!	���!	 !$�	 !$���	 ��B�������!�+	 �"���6	 ��������+	 ����"�	

"��	����������!"�%�
•	 #��-���	$"�	��������	"�	��"��	 ����	!$�	"�����"�!	�"=���	���������	 !�	"�!�	��	

��!����"!���%	��6	"�!�	��	��!����"!���	�����	��!	-�	��������+	"�!$���$	�!	�$����	-�	
��!��	 !$"!	 ������	 "�!���	 $"�	 -���	 ���������	 ���"�����	 $"�"�����!	 "��	
��!����"!���	!�	"	���"�	�������!	-6	"	�"�!���	��	,����C�!���	
���!%�

•	 3$�	
���	�!�"!��6+	 "�!$���$	��!	 6�!	 "���!��+	 ����$!	 !�	�"��!"��	"��	��$"���	
!$�	
���!6%�

•	 3$�	 (9''	 �!�"�	 �����!	 �!"!��	 !$"!	 ������	 ����	 !������	 �"�	 "����C��"!��6	
E&0.+999+999%�

	

���������	�7	�"���!��+	!$�	����$-������	�"��	���-��+	"���	������!��	��	"	���-��	
��	������+	���������A	
	

•	 3$�	"�����"!���	�"�	���!��!����	"��	$"�	�����!��	��	"	���-��	��	�-@��!����	����	
�������!�	��	!$�	,��!���"�	5"��%�

•	 3$�	��!�����"!���	��	!$�	"�����"!���	�$����	�����	��	!$�	�"��	��"�����	�����6	
������	"�	��!	��!	��	!$�	�������*�	�����!+	�"���6	��,	,����6	
�'	"��	�"�"��"�$�	
''/	"��	''0	��	!$�	�,,�	���"�����	!$�	���"�!	��	!$�	"�����"!���	��	!$�	56�	
>"���6	���7%�

•	 ��!	��	!$�	)8	���7*�	��	����"��	"��	5"���+	(	����	���"!��	��	���������$���+	
��!$	!$���	�"��	��!���!��	!�	���"�	"�!$���!���+	�������!6	������	"��	!$�	
��������"��	�$�	����	"��	���=	��!$��	!$��%�

•	 ���7*�	��������!	'8F	��	!$�	�����!	����!�6����	��	����"��	"��	5"���%�
•	 3$�	"�����"!���	�"���	!�	���!	!$�	��B�������!�	"�	��!	��!	��	��,	,����6	
�'%�
•	 3$�	"�����"!���	�����	"���	$"��	"�	"������	���"�!	��	!������	��!$��	!$�	"��"%�
•	 #��-���	��!������	!$�	�"����	��"��	��	!$�	��!�	����!+	!$���	����	��!	���!"-��	���	

�"���	� >*�%�
•	 ,��6!������	����	"�	�����!"�!	�"�!	��	������	�"�����	-�!	��	!$��	�"��	!$���	

���"�!	��	!$�	���7	�"�	!��	��������"�!%�

,����	!�	!$�	��-"!�	!$�	
$"���"�	���$��	�!	!�	-�	��!	��	������	!$"!	�����!	������!�	
"!!��-�!��	!�	$��	��	!$�	����	 "G�!!�	���"�����	���6!������	"��	!$�	�������!�	��	<����	

"���	����	��!	������!%	
	
3$�	
����!!��	������	!$�	��-"!�	��!$	"	#��-��	�������	$��	��������	��	������!	��	!$�	
"�����"!���%		��	�"��	"	-"�=������	!�	$��	�����	���=���	��!$	�������	��	������"!���	"	
�����6	���	���6!������	�$��	$�	�"�	���������6	!$�	
"-���!	#��-��	���	����������!%	��	
"������	!$�	
����!!��	!$"!	$�	$"�	��������	���"�����	!$�	��"��	��	!$�	������"�	"��	!$�	
���"�!	�!	�����	$"��	��	!$�	���7?	��������	���"�����	!$�	��������	������"���	��	
������!	��	��"�����	�����!����	��	!$�	��!�	"�	����	"�	��������	���"�����	�������!�"�	
��"�!���	��	���������	��	!$�	��!�%	
	
���!$��	#��-��	�!"!��	!$"!	$�	�"�	����6	��	������!	��	!$�	���	��	���6!������	��	������	
�"�����	$������	$�	$"�	��������	��	������!	��	!$�	��!����!6	��	!$�	���6!������	��	���$	"	
�����!���	"��"	��	!$�	$�"�!	��	!$�	56�	>"���6	���"	��	��!�!"�����	�"!��"�	7�"�!6%	��	
������	$��	��������	���"�����	!$�	-��"=����	��	��������"!���	-�!����	!$�	"�����"�!+	
!$�	���"�	�������!�	"��	!$�	�"���$	�������	"��	"������	"��	�"�!���	!$"!	��"��	��	
��������"!���	�����	����	!�	-�	�����!"!��	���	!$�	����	��	!$�	���"�	�������!6%		

12



	

	
#��-���	���!�����	!�	�������	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	��!��	!$"!	!$�	�"����	���6!������	��	
!$�	��!�	$"�	-�����	�"����	"�	!$�6	$"�	-���	��	��!�	����	"	������	��	!���	��!$��!	
����������!	"�!���	-����	!"=��%	3$�6	!$"�=��	!$�	���"�	�������!�	"��	!$�	�"���$	�������	
���	!$���	�����!�	��	������!	��	!$�	�"!!��	"��	���!��"!��	!$�	����	���	"��	�"�!���	!�	���=	
!���!$��	��	!$�	��!���	���	!$�	-�����!	��	"��	��������%	
	
�	���-��	��	#��-���	�!"!��	!$"!	!$�6	"������"!��	!$�	����	���	���6!������	��	������	
���!	����!	�"�����	-�!	!$"!	!$��	����	$"�	!�	-�	����$��	��	"�"���!	!$�	����"�	���"�!+	��	
!$��	�"��+	��	"	�����!���	���"!���	��!$��	!$�	56�	>"���6	���7	!$�6	����������	!$"!	
���!��!���	!$�	�"����"��	��!����$��	!$�	����	���	!$�	���6!������%	
	
#��-���	�"��	���������	!�	"	�����"�	��!�"!���	�����$���	��	!$�	
���!6	"��	"������	!$"!	
"	����������	��"����	�����	$"�	-���	��!	��	!$���	�$��$	$"�	������"!��	!$�	�"@���!6	��	
���-����	"!	!$�	��!�	����	"	������	��	!���%	#��-���	����������	!$"!	"��	�"�!���	��������	
�$����	��!�	!$�	�������	��	!$�	��"����	�����	"��	"��	!�	��!	��	"	�����"�	�����	"!	
,����C�!���	
���!%		
	

����������	���=��	"��	�"���!��	����	�����	!$�	�����!���!6	!�	�����	!$�	��-"!�%	3$�6	
���!��"!��	!$���	�������	���"�=�	"��	��B���!��	!$"!	!$�	"�����"!���	-�	�������%	
	
3$�	��"�	��	����$-���$���	,�"�����	"��������	!$�	
����!!��	-�����	!$�	��!�	"��	
"������	!$"!	�$���!	!$���	$"�	-���	���������	�"��	!�	��������"!���	������	"��	
������"��!���+	�!	�"�	�����!"�!	���	#��-���	!�	�����	!$���	"!!��!���	��	�"=���	!$���	
��������	�����6	����	�"!���"�	��"�����	��������"!����	
	
!��781�0�
�
�����(��������(
���##�	���
��

�#
��
	����
�
	��	2�����
�#	�,�
�
*+�  �<�����
������	��	����
#�8'*�����8'%�	
���
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�

0
<
�	(�
��������%))6��-���
���
�%�	
���
��	�$����
����((�
�
����$�
���������0	���
���%));������(������(�#�**������**9�	
���
����5����
�
(�	(	#����#��	�#��
�
�������
(����
+����
�#���
�	
���
��
<
�	(�
����#�
����
�����
����	���	���
�#
�#���<
�����#��(
�	
���
�4���#���(�
�#(���������#�
���
����<
�<�#������(����
�	��#���	�������
�
<��
����
�#+����
��	������
�
	
���
�(	�$����
���	<
���
����	##����#�#(���	
�������#���#����
������
�
������	��
�	����
����������
���$�	
���
��	��������#��(
��#�(����	
���
�"$
�
1���
$�'�
��	
�7��#�����������������
���$+�

�
"����#(
��
����
������	�������$�0
<
�	(�
���������	���$�8'*�����#�
�	�����
���������
��
<
�	(�
����#��	��#����@#���
��2	������<
�#
�$��


���
��
�������#������������
���$�	
���
�����#��(
���#��	���
�
##��$��	�
��������
�
��
�
�	�	��������#	�����2
��@�
����	
���
��
#�����
����
��������
�
�	������$������	
#��	��
�����
���
�F�����$�	
���
�����#��(
�	��
��	��<
�#��$+������#��	���
�	�#����
���������
�(�	(	#����#������
���
��
��
����	�������
�
#���������
�(��(	#
�	
���
�'7����
#������	��������
���(����
�#��	����(���
�	
���
F���
���������	�+������#��	���
�	�#����
�����
�

	�
��
�������
�(�	(	#������	��#�2������
�#���
��
C�
(��	�#��	���
�(�
#��(��	��
�����#������
@#���
��
<
�	(�
���2��������
�'7��+�

�
��
�����	2�
��
���	��������	��	
���
���#��
##��	���
��	����
�	�	�$��#��	��
�	�#��
�
���	�	��2
������
���
���
�
��������	���
�"$
�1���
$�'�
��	
�
7��#�����������������
���$+�

	
	
	

13



	

*;�+� *�)��&?5 �@�&��"'84�!��-!������'!0���� �!�57!0�� !*��0G���
	
3$�	
$"���"�	"������	#��-���	!$"!	!$�	�����	��	!$�	"����"	�����	-�	�$"����	��	!$"!	
"�����"!���	')9/)&1��	�����	-�	��!�������	�����	!�	!$�	���!���	-����	"�@������	���	
����$%	
	
3$�	����������!	#"�"���	�"��	"	������!"!���	��	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	���"!��	1	
"���!���"�	��������!"!����	��������	���������	!$�	��-���"!���	��	!$�	"����"	����	
��������	��	!$�	���"!�	�$��!%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	�"�"��"�$	&%8%(%(	��	!$�	
������*�	
���!�!�!���+	
���������	<�	
 �!$���+	!$�	���"�	�"��	���-��+	"������	#��-���	!$"!	�$�	$"�	��	��������	���"�����	
!$�	"�����"!���	"��	��B���!��	!$"!	�!	-�	"�������%	
	
��	��������	!�	"	B���!���+	!$�	����������!	#"�"���	"������	!$"!	"	��������	$"�	-���	
��������	����	#"����	,"���$	
������	�$��$	�"�	��!"����	��	!$�	���"!�	�$��!%	
	

���������	<�	 �!$���	�"�	�����	!$�	�����!���!6	!�	�����	!$�	��-"!�	-�!	�$���	!�	�"=�	
��	"���!���"�	�!"!����!%	
	
!��781�0�
�
�����#��A
����	��	�	�A
���	�#����#����������	�������
�����(���������	�#��
����	�#�
�$���
�
���	
���
��	�#������	��(
��	�����
�	

��
�#����
�������
�#��
�
�	
�
�
�
����	���
�����	��#
���	��((�	<
���
��((������	��#��A
����	���
�
	��	2����
�	�����	�#�������$�
����
���	�����	�#��	�#��
�
���
�
##��$��$�	

��
�#,�
�
*+� ')*����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���.
����(
���##�	�/+�
� �
%+� �)*�0
<
�	(�
���������	�����
�2������
��((�	<
��(���#+�
�
�+� ��
�
�����������#��	��
��#
�������
��	�#������	��	
���
�#��
�2����	
���
�


C�
�#�	���
�
�$�(
�����
��#�������������	#
��#
�������
�
C�#�������������+�
�

!
�#	�,��	�
�#��
���
�
C�
��������
����#�����	��#
�2������
�
C�#�����
���������#	��#��	�
�#��
��������
��
<
�	(�
����	�(��
#�2������
�
�
F���
�
��#�	
��	����
#�0!*����� *;�	
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�
0
<
�	(�
�������+��

�
&+� ��
�
C�
�����������������
������	��
��#
�������
��	�#������	��	
���
�
�	���

�����
���2���#�	
���
�
C�
�#�	���
�
�$�(
�����
��#������
�������	�����
�
2������
�#������
���
����#+�.��	�$��
�����"
���
��	���/+�

��
!
�#	�,��	�
�#��
���
�
C�
��������
����#�����	��#
�2������
�
C�#�����
���������#	��#��	�
�#��
��������
��
<
�	(�
����	�(��
#�2������
�
�
F���
�
��#�	
��	����
#�0!*����� *;�	
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�
0
<
�	(�
�������+�

�
�+� 5*���	�2���	2#����#��
�
�
<���	��	
�
C�
�#�	�+�
�
!
�#	��
	��'((�	<���
�
*+� ����#��	�#��
�
���������
�(�	(	#
��
C�
�#�	��2�����((
�������

(����2������
�

�������
�������((
�����
�	
���
�
C�#������������������#���	���������
�����
�
��#�	
���#�#�������#���
����##���
����
���
#�����������
����#+����������	���
��<�����
������	���
���#(	#���	��	
��
���$��
#��
������(�	(
���
#������#�
�	�#��
�
���������
�(�	(	#���2�����	�������$���(����	����
���
����
#�	
�

14



	

�
����	�������
#��
��#+������
�������#����
#���
�(�	(	#���2�����	���	�
�����
2������
��
#�����
F���
�
��#�	
� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	(�
��������
�	����
#��*��0!*�� *9����� *;��	�
��
��2������
�#�#����������$������		��
�
#����(	����
#�����	�A
���<
#��	�����
�������
�����	�����	�������
���	��
6	
���
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��+��

�
��
	�����<
#,�
�
*+� ��
�8	�������������'���	���$���#����
��(	#���<
�$�����(�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��((������	���$��##
##������
�(�	(	#��������#��(��������
(	���$�������$�	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#��������������$��
(�
#
�����	�#�
�������<
��

���
�
�<
�+������#�#��#
F�
���$��
�
����
���	�������(��������
(
���##�	��������	�����
�2������
�(�
#��(��	�����
�<	���	
�#�#�������
�
�
<
�	(�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��+���

�
%+� �)���'�A	��������	(
��$�!����#+�
	
	
'037�!�������	
	
3$�	
$"���"�	"������	!$"!	!$�	���!���	�����	-�	"�@������	��!��	'A)9	��%	
	

*;&+� *�)&9*?5�@�88'��!� �:��7�0��07!��7���� �!�57!0�� !��9'-���
	
3$�	������	,�"�����	�������	�"��	"	������!"!���	��	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	���"!��	1	
"���!���"�	��������!"!����	��������	���������	!$�	��-���"!���	��	!$�	"����"	����	
��������	��	!$�	���"!�	�$��!%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	!$�	���!���"	���	��-���	���"=���+	#��	�����$+	��������!���	"	���-��	
��	���"�	�������!�?	"��	#��	
���!��+	
$"���"�	��	
�������	,"���$	
������+	���=�	��	
�-@��!���	!�	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	#��	����"�+	!$�	"�����"�!+	���=�	��	������!%		
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	�"�"��"�$	&%8%(%(	��	!$�	
������*�	
���!�!�!���+	
���������	,�	,����+	
!$�	���"�	�"��	���-��+	������!��	��	"	���-��	��	������+	���������A	
	

•	 3$�	 "�����"!���	 $"�	 ��������	 ''(	 ��������!"!����	 ��!$	 !$�	 �"@���!6	 -����	 ��	
�-@��!���	!�	!$�	"�����"!���%�

•	 3$�	�����������	"��"	�"�	"	���B��	���2�6�!��	��	"������!���	-���!	��	�����	�"�6	
���"���%�

•	 3$�	�"��	�"�	��������	-6	"	��"��	��"�	��!���=	�$��$	���	��!	$"��	�"�"��!6	���	
�������	��$�����	"�	����	"�	!$�	�C��!���	�"��	��$�����%�

•	 3$�	 �������!���	 !�	 �����	 ������	 !�	 !�"���	 !�	 !$�	 ��!�	 -6	 ����-��	 �"�	 ��!	
�������"-��%�

•	 3$���	����	��	���!"-��	�"�����	����!�	"��	��$�����	�����	-�	��B�����	!�	�������	
'99	6"���	��	����%�

•	 7�������	����������"!���	�"�	��!"�+	-�!	!$��	�"�	��	!$�	�����	�����%�
•	 3$�	 ��������	 -�������	 $"�	 ��!!��	 �$"���	 ��	 �������	 ��!$	 �!�	 ������!	 -�������	

��"�%�
•	 3$�	 ���"�	 �������!6	 $"�	 ��������	 ���"�����	 !$�	 ���"�!	 !$�	 "�����"!���	 �����	

$"��	��	!$�	���"�	"��"%�
•	 3$���	����	"���	��������	���"�����	!$�	�"!��	�����6%�
•	 3$�	 ���"�	 �������!�	 �����	 $�"�	 �����	 ����	 �"6	 ���!��"�+	 "�!$���$	 !$��	 �"�	

"����!��	"�	�!	�"�	���	@��!	'9	�"6�	"��	-���$	"����C��"!��6	E(9	�������	��!�	!$�	
���"�	������6%�

15



	

•	 3$���	����	"���	��������	���"�����	���$!	�����!���%�
•	 3$�	 "�����"�!	 ������	 !�	 ��������"!�	 -�!!��	 ��!$	 !$�	 ���"�	 �������!�	 "��	 !$�	

�"���$	�������%�
•	 3$�	"�����"!���	�$����	-�	�������%	�

	
#��-���	������	!$�	��-"!�	-6	�������	!$���	��������	��	������!	��	!$�	H����!�	�"����!6*	
�"�!	��	!$�	"�����"!���%	�!	�"�	����������	!$"!	!$��	��"��	�"�	"����	!�	���$	"	���"�	"��"	
"��	!$"!	!$�	$��$�"6	����"�!���!���	�"�	��!	���!"-��	���	!$�	��������	��"��%	#��-���	
���������	!$�	��������	���	��	!"C��	"��	����-����	���	����!���	"��	����������	!$"!	!$��	
�����	��!	-�	�������"-��%	
������	�"�	"���	�C�������	���"�����	���$!	�����!���%	
	
#��-���	����������	!$"!	!$�	������	���"�����	�"!��	�����	-�	"��������	!$����$	
"�������"!�	�����!����		
	

���������	,����	�"�	�����	!$�	�����!���!6	!�	�����	!$�	��-"!�%	��	���!��"!��	$��	�������	
���"�=�	"��	�"��	"���!���"�	������!�+	���������A	
	

•	 3$"!	 $�	 $"�	��!	 !$�	 "�����"�!�	 ���������6	 "��	 $"�	 "������	 !$��	 !$"!	 $�	�"�	
������!���	��	"	 !�"�����	����!�	�����	$������	$�	�����	��!	������!	 !$�	������!	
�"����	��"��	"�����"!���%�

•	 3$�	������!	"�����"!���	�"�	$"��	!$�	��G�	��	!$�	������"�	"�����"!���	-�!	�!	�"�	�!���	
!��	�"���	���	!$�	��������	���"!���%�

	
��	��������	!�	"	B���!���+	!$�	����������!	#"�"���	"������	#��-���	!$"!	!$�6	�����	
��!	�����	"	����!	��������	��	������!	��	!$�	"�����"!���%	
	
!��781�0�
�
�����(��������(
���##�	���
��

�#
��
	����
�
	��	2�����
�#	�#,�
�
*+� ��
�(�	(	#����
(�
#
��#���#����
��������#���	�����2�$�#�

�$�������
�
�

�


�	2�	
����

������	������
��
#�����������
�#
����<
���������	<
�
��#�
�
�
���
���$���
�(�	(	#���	����
��	�����
�2	��+���
�(�	(	#
������#(	���
��������	�������	���
��	���	��
����	���	�
��	����
�
	��
�������	�����	�#�
2	�����	���
��	�(������2�������������**?=�+�5����
��	�
���
�
��#����
�����
�
	����
��#
�	
�(�##����(���
#���A��
����	���
�(����������2�$�2�������
�
�	���
��	��(��<��
������	��#��
���
��((������H#�	��'���	���$H#��	���	�������#�
#������
#
������	���
��
��
��	��
	����
����<���������$�	���#
+���
�#������
��
����#(	���'##
##�
����#���#	��

���
������<������#�

���
���#��<
$����������
��#��	���##
##
����
F���
�$��2	�#��#���������	���A�����	�#�2�
�
����

���

�	2�2�����
�#����
������$�����
�#
�+�'#�#������
�(�	(	#����#��	�����$��	�
 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	(�
��������(	����
#��*���%���9��0!*��0!%��
0!����9���;���**�����!��*��

�
%+� -�<
����
�
�2�����
���#����
����������
�#
�	
�<
����
#�����(
	(�
����	����#�

�#	���
�������F��������#��(
���
��������
�������#
���������<���
#�(�	(	#
���
���#�2����#����
������$��
���
���
��������
�����
���$���������F������$�	
����#�
#
�#���<
��#	���
����
��������
�

	�
���<
����
����<
���(����	����
�	<
�����
����#��(
��������
�+�����#��#��	�����$��	���
�#���
�����#�����	�A
���<
#�	
�
��
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	������� 
�

	��#���
�������$�
0
<
�	(�
��������(	����
#��*���%���6��0!*��0!%���**��8'%�����!��*��

�
�+� ��
�(�	(	#���
���#��	��
�	�#����
��������
�<���
�����������#��(
�����#�$�

�
#	���
�2�����
�(�	�
��
�������	����<
�#
�$��


��
�+�'#�#������
����#�
����	�A
���<
#�	
���
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	�������

16



	

 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	(�
��������(	����
#��*���%���6��0!%��0!*&��
�**��8'%�����!��*����
���
�

	�
��	��#���#
�
�+�

�
&+� ��
�(�	(	#���
���#��	�
�#��
�(�	�
��
���������#�����#(
��
#�2�����
�#������$�

(�	�
��
������#�

�����
�+���
�(�	(	#�������	������
�����
�#
������
��	
�
(
	(�
����	���
���
������

����
�
���
�������
F���
�
���	
���#(
��
�
��
<
��������(�##����(���
#�	���	��	���������(
�����"�����

����
�����
'���
���"		�������������
��	����	��	
���
�(�	(	#
��(�����
���
���
���
(����������
(�
#
�����������
(����
���F�����
�
����#��������(�����	�

�	�	������������	��<
�#��$��
#	���
#��������
���
#�����
���
#	���
#�����
(�	�
��
��#(
��
#���	�����$��	���
����#�����	�A
���<
#�	
���
�����	����
����������	���$�5���
2	������� 
�

	��#���
�������$�0
<
�	(�
��������
(	����
#��*���%���6��0!%��0!&��0!*���0!*&���**����*����&����9�������6+�

	
	

*;�+� *�)&%9?5�@�57!��!��7�7�'�"7!4���'��"770�8'���� 78��!�� �!�57!0��
 !*�*83���
	
3$�	,������"�	,�"�����	�������	�"��	"	������!"!���	��	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	���"!��	1	
"���!���"�	��������!"!����	��������	���������	!$�	��-���"!���	��	!$�	"����"	����	
��������	��	!$�	���"!�	�$��!%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	!$�	���!���"	���	��-���	���"=���+	#��	,$����!!�+	��������!���	������	
"��	�$�����=	,"���$	
������+	���=�	��	�-@��!���	!�	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	#�	
���+	
��������!���	!$�	"�����"�!+	���=�	��	������!%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	�"�"��"�$	&%8%(%(	��	!$�	
������*�	
���!�!�!���+	
���������	��	
��-��!���+	!$�	���"�	�"��	���-��+	������!��	��	"	���-��	��	������+	���������A	
	

•	 3$�	"�����"�!	$"�	����	"	��!	��	"���!���"�	���=	��	!$�	�������	"�����"!���+	�$��$	
"�	��������%�

•	 3$�	��-���	���"=���	����	!$"�=��	���	!$���	���!��-�!���%�
•	 3$�	 ��!�	 �"�	 ������"!��	 "�	 �����6���!	 �"��+	 �$��$	 $"�	 "�?�"6�	 -���	

�"����"����	-6	I������	�����!!��	���������%�
•	 
���1���=	���!�	�����	$"��	-���	��������%�
•	 3$�	��!�	�����	-�	-�!!��	���!��	���	"	�������!6	��"��%�
•	 3$�	!�"����	��������	����	�!���	�"���%�
•	 3$���	����	"���	��������	��	������!	��	�!���!	���6$!���+	�����!6+	��"��"��+	"��	!$�	

���"�!	��	!$�	����	����!�6����%�
	
#��-���	���������	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	��!��	!$"!	"	��!	��	���=	$"�	-���	�����!"=��	-6	
!$�	"�����"�!	!�	"������	!$�	��������	�"����	!$����$	!$�	��������	"�����"!���	��	!$�	��!�%	

������	�"�	�C�������	!$"!	!$�	"�����"�!�	$"�	��!	����������	����1���=	���!�	��	!$�	
��!�	"��	$"�	��!	�����!��"!��	"�!���"!���	��"��"��	�6�!���	��	!$�	��!�%	
	
��	��������	!�	"	���-��	��	B���!����	����	!$�	
����!!��+	!$�	,������"�	,�"�����	�������	
"������	!$"!	"�	�����!6	$"�	-���	"	�������	��	!$�	��!�	���������6	!$�	��������	�"�	
�"��	!�	������	!$�	����!�	��"6	"��"	����	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	����"��	!$�	�C��!���	
5��!���!$	��"�	��"6	�"����!6	���!�"�?	!$"!	�����!!��	����������!	���$!�	�����	-�	
�������	!�	"������	!$�	�����	��	!$�	H��	���	�"6��*?	"��	!$"!	���!"���"!���	$�!���!�	
�����	-�	�������	����	!$�	��!�	!�	!$�	�"!���"�!���	!$�	����������!"�	��"�!$	�������%	
	
#��-���	��!��	!$"!	!$���	����	��	�!"��2��!	��"!����	!�	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	!$"!	�!	�"�	
���"�����!���	!$"!	!$���	����	��	���!"��"-��	��"!����	��������"!��	��!�	!$�	����������!	
���$	"�	����1���=	���!�%	#��-���	���������	!$�	,"���$	,�"�	"��	����$!	��"�����"!���	"�	

17



	

!�	!$�	�!"!��	��	!$�	��"�	��	��"�����	!����%	3$�	��"�	��	����$-���$���	,�"�����	
"������	!$"!	"	�"���$	��"�	�����	-�	"	�"!���"�	��"�����	��������"!���	��	�!	$"�	-���	
��������	��	"���!��	-6	!$�	
������+	$������	!$��	�"�	��!	!$�	�"��	���	������	"��	
�$�����=	�"���$	�������*�	�"���$	��"�+	!$�������	�!	�����	��!	-�	�����	"�6	����$!	��	�����6	
!����%	
	

���������	��-��!���	�"�	�����	!$�	�����!���!6	!�	�����	!$�	��-"!�%	�$�	���!��"!��	$��	
�������	���"�=�	"��	�"��	"���!���"�	������!�+	���������A	
	

•	 3$�	,"���$	,�"�	$"�	��!	6�!	-���	"���!��%�
•	 3$���	����	&'	������	�����6��	��	!$�	��!�	���������6%�
•	 3$�	��������	�$����	-�	�"��	������"!��"��6%�

	
!��781�0�
�
�����#��A
����	�
����������
�����	������
����	���	���
����
(�������$�	
���
�(�	(	#
��
�*)9�7�������	���
��#���	

��
�#����
�������
�#��
�
�	
�0
�
����	���	�7

��
�#��
�
����	��#
���	�������(��������(
���##�	��#��A
����	���
�
	��	2�����	�����	�#,�
�
*+� ')*����
�������
	���	��
��
�
���.
����(
���##�	�/�
� �
%+� �)*�0
<
�	(�
���������	�����
�2������
��((�	<
��(���#�
�
�+� �)6��
���	��*)9�'��

�
���
�
&+� �)*����(�
#�	
�
C�
��������
����#�
�
�+� 4&������
��	�#
�<���	��@���(�
�
�����	��
�
9+� -**�8���#��(����#��
�
�@���(�
�
�����	��
�
6+� -*��8���#��(
������
����
�������
�
��#�
�
*)+� ��)��
�#��
#��	��
���2����#	����	���������	��
�
**+� �������
�"�#�
������
�
���
�
*%+� ��*�0
����#�	
�#�����
<
�#�
�
*�+� 8)*�5	��?#��
��
�2��
���������
�
�
*&+� 8)%��	�#��
��
�2��
���	��	��
����	�(������#$#�
��
�
*�+� 8)���	��������
����@	

��	�(������#$#�
��
�
*9+� 8)&��	�(�
�
�#�<
�I����
�����
�����������	
�#��
�
�
*6+� 5*&�!
�	<���	
�(
�����
���
<
�	(�
��������#�
�
*;+� �*9�!
#������	��	
��	��#���������	�#������	��
�
*=+�  %6���������
	��#��
�	(
����<
#�
�
%)+� �)=�8�����


��
���$��	���������	���
�
%*+�  %9�'��
##��	����	��

18



	

�
��
	�����<
#�
�
*+� ��
�8	�������������'���	���$���#����
��(	#���<
�$�����(�	����<
�$����

�
�
�����������#��((������	���$��##
##������
�(�	(	#��������#��(��������
(	���$�������$�	��
�����
������	�#��
����	�#+��
�	�����	�#�����
#(
���	
�
����
�#�	
��	��
���2������
��((������	��.�#�	��������$�#������
�/���<
�
�
#���
�������
���
��#��	���
�(�	(	#��+��'#����
#�������
�8	�������������
'���	���$���#��

�����
��	�������(��������(
���##�	��
	��������
(����
�
(�	(	#����������	�����
�2������
�(�
#��(��	�����
�<	���	
�#�#�������
�
�
<
�	(�
�����#�#
��	���2��������
�����	��������������	���$�5���
2	��+���

�
%+�  �*)��	��������
���#�����
��	�����2�$�
�
�+�  �);��
���	���;�'��

�
�������0������
��
����#�
�
&+�  �)6��
���	��%6;�'��

�
���
�
�+�  �)&����<��
�'((�����#�2��������
�����2�$�
�
9+�  �*�����	����
�����2�$�
�
6+�  �%;� ���2�$#��
#��������
�
�
;+�  �*����	�
���	��	
�<�#������$�#(��$#�	��(��<��
������
�
=+�  �)��"	��#�2��������
�����2�$��
�
!
�#	��
	��'((�	<����
�
*+� ��
��((������	��#��
���
#�2��������
�������#
���
�
���	
� 
�

	������$��2������

2������
#��
�������
<
�	(�
����#�#�((	��
���$�(	���$� *�	
���
��0�+�"���#��
��
�#��
��#����	���
���#����
�(�	$�
���#��
����
�8	�������������'���	���$��#�
#���#
�
���������
�
��#��	��
�#	����
�(�	#(
���	
����#�#��
��	�����
	�2����

	�������(��(	#
��������������<
����
�(�
�	�������$��
#��
�������	��
C�����#�
2	�����
���#������
�#��
�
	���
#��
�������
<
�	(�
��+�'#�#������
�(�	(	#���
2	�����	�(�$�2������
��
F���
�
��#�	
�(	���$� *�������
��������
�
�	�����
��2��������
����5+���

�
��
��
����
���
#����������$	���	
���
�(�	(	#
��#��
�
���	�(�
��2������
�
�����#�	��	
�(����������������#��(����(�	(	#��#�2	�����
(�
#
�����
	���	
�
�
<
�	(�
��������2	�����
����
(����
�����
#(
���	
�����#��(
���(�����
�
#����������$	���������	�����
�2����(	����
#�0!*�� *���8'%��8'������8'9�
	
���
��0�+��

�
��
��
<
�	(�
��#��
����	�#��(�2�����
����	������(�	(
���
#���#��

��
�	�#��
�
������#��A
����	�
�#���������������#��(���������	�����$�
��
���
��#���
����
����
�����
�(�	(	#����#��	�#��
�
���	��
����
(����
����
���	�����
�2������
��
F���
�
��#�	
�(	����
#�0!%����� *��	
���
��0�+��

�
��
�(�	(	#
���
<
�	(�
���2	�����	����<
�#
�$���(�����(	����
��	����
����2�$��
�2	�������
��#�	
���(����$�	������2�$�#�

�$+���
�#��
���
#������
�	����	��������#��	�#��
�
���	��
�#�#�������
��2�����		�����
##��	�
���
�����<
��
��#�	
�����#(	���������
�(�	(	#������
#�(�	<�#�	��	
����
2�

		�2�$��	�#
�<
���
��
<
�	(�
�������(�	<��
��	��
���<��$�2����!	����
!	��+�'#�#������
�(�	(	#����#��	�#��
�
���	��	�(�$�2������
��
F���
�
��#�
	
�(	���$�0!��	
���
��0�+��

19



	

�
����#��	�#��
�
���������
�(�	(	#
���
<
�	(�
����#��A
����	����	�����	�������
�
�#
�<
#��$�������
(����
�������	(�
���������
�#$#�
��������	�����
�
2����(	���$�0!&������5%�	
���
��0�+�

�
��	<�#�	����#��

�����
�����	�������
���	��*)9����

�
���	����
�
�((�	(����
��	��������	�#���<�����
������	���
��
F���
�
��#�	
�(	���$�0!��
������
���0�B����������7�������	�#+���
��((�	(����
��

	�����
��	�#����
(�	<�#�	������(��$�#(��
�(�	<�#�	����#���#	��

��(�	<��
������#
���
���$�
2�$�	
���
��
���	��*)9����

�
���������	�����
�2�����	����
#� =�� *=�����
0!��	
���
��0�+�

	
*;9+� *%�&*6?5�@�0'�!:�5'!��@�870-��5'!���"'8��!��7����7��7���

 �!�57!0� �!��� !%�)0����
	
3$�	����������!	#"�"���	�"��	"	������!"!���	��	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	���"!��	1	
"���!���"�	��������!"!����	��������	���������	!$�	��-���"!���	��	!$�	"����"	����	
��������	��	!$�	���"!�	�$��!%	
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	!$�	���!���"	���	��-���	���"=���+	#�	�"��+	!$�	"�����"�!*�	"���!+	���=�	
��	������!	��	!$�	"�����"!���%		
	
��	"�����"���	��!$	�"�"��"�$	&%8%(%(	��	!$�	
������*�	
���!�!�!���+	
���������	 �	,�����+	
!$�	���"�	�"��	���-��+	������!��	��	"	���-��	��	������+	���������A	
	

•	 3$���	�"�	��	�-@��!���	!�	!$�	��������	�!����%�
•	 3$���	����	��	������	��!$	�������	��	������%�
•	 3$���	����	��	�-@��!����	����	���"�	�������!�	��	!$�	,"���$	
������%�
•	 3$�	"�����"!���	$"�	-���	��-��!!��	��	(9''	-�!	�"�	��!$��"��%�
•	 ��	���6	(9'(	"	���!$��	"������!��"�	-�������	��	!$�	��!�	�"�	��"�!��%�
•	 3$�	-���������	$"�	�����"���	-6	)/F	6�"�	��	6�"�%�
•	 3$���	����	099	�!"��"��	�"�	�"6�	��B�����	!�	���	!$�	-�������%�
•	 3$�	"������!��"�	��������	��!�������	!$"!	$"�	-���	��!	��	$"�	�����%�
•	 3$�	 -�������	 �"!!��	 -�������	 �����	 -����	 ��	 ����	 �����!	 !$"�	 !$�	 "������!��"�	

��������	��!�������%�
•	 3$���	����	��	"�����"-��	���������	��	!$�	"��"%�
•	 3$�	"�����"!���	��!	!$�	��B�������!�	��	�,,�	,"�"��"�$	(8%�

	
3$�	����!	
���������	!�	���"=	��	������!	��	!$�	"�����"!���	��!��	!$"!	!$�	-�������	$"�	
-���	��!"-���$��	"��	���"���"��6	��"-��	���	����	!$���	6�"��	"��	!$�������	��!	!$�	
��B�������!�	��	!$�	���!"�6	����������!	,�"�%	�!	�"�	$������	��!��	!$"!	"�	"������!��"�	
!��	�����!���	�$����	-�	"����	!�	"�6	��"�����	����������%	
	
��	��������	!�	"	B���!���+	!$�	����������!	#"�"���	"������	!$"!	����	��	!$�	!$���	
��������	��"�����	"�����"��	��	!$�	��!�	$"�	-���	��������!��%	
	
#��-���	���������	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	��!��	!$"!	!$�	"�����"�!*�	���!�"�!���	�B������!	
�"�	"��	�!����	��	!$�	�"��%	����	�������	�"�	�C�������	��	������!	��	!$�	!���	!"=��	���	
"	��������	!�	-�	��������	����	!$�	
���!6	
"��	����!	��	������!	��	!$�	"�����"!���%	
	
3$�	
����!!��	����������	!$�	"�����"!���	"��	�"�	��	!$�	�������	!$"!	!$�	����!���"�	
����	���	!$�	����������!	$"�	-���	��!%	��	!����	��	�����6	������+	!$�	
����!!��	��!��	
!$"!	���!"�6	����������!	,�"�	,�������	�'+	��'+	�.	"��	�')	"�	����	"�	�"!���"�	
,�"�����	,����6	��"�����=	�"�"��"�$	(8	������!��	!$�	"�����"!���%	
	

20



	


���������	,�����	�"�	�����	!$�	�����!���!6	!�	�����	!$�	��-"!�	-�!	�$���	!�	�"=�	��	
"���!���"�	�!"!����!%	
	
!��781�0�
�
�����(��������(
���##�	���
������
��#��A
����	���
�
	��	2�����	�����	��������$�
�	�����	�#��

�
���
�
##��$��$�	

��
�#����
�������
�#��
�
�	
��
�
����	���	�
	

��
�#+�
�
*� '������������	���(���$��	�����	�+�
	

*;6+� 0'���75���E��������-���
	
3$�	,�"�����	
����!!��	��!��	!$�	�"!�	��	!$�	��C!	���!���%	
	
'����0�E�*�@��� �0�8��75��7����������0'�����	
	
	
	
	

3$�	���!���	�����	"!	)%&/	��	 � '�!�'�	

21



22



���������	
��	��
�������������

����������	

������
�


��������
����
�

���������������������� ��!��"#�������$!��%����"�$�!���$"�
�
����&� ���� �����'�$(� "�������� �����"�$�"� !� "���!�)� ��� ���� !������$!��
�����"�$�!���$"������*��������'�$(�������+���!���$��������!(�$�!�!$�������*���
����������!)��$������!)�+�������������������������$(�'��������)��!�"��$�'�
!$������*!$���!����!����!$$�$(���$"����!���$",�
�

�
�--���	����%��%��������	���
�
�	��	�
��� ���� �	������� 
�	�� ��������� �	������ �	

�� ��
����� ���		�� ���� �	�������� ������
���
�����������	
����
���	���������������	
��������
	���������������	�
������ ������		���	�

����������	
�!"#�
���
���	�������	����"�������������	��$%����������
�
 ����	���
�&��������
	�������������������	'
����

������
��������
���������������
������
�&�������������
'���
(	��� 	��)��� 
�� �����	��� �	��	�� �	��� 	
� ���
���� �
��� *%� ��
������ �	�
��� 
�	�� ������� $+� ���
��� 
�	��
�	��������������������		��� ���	'�������������	�����������
��


������������	
����
��� ���'����	��
��������
�
���������	
��������
���	������,
��
������		����	���������	�������	

����
��������		����
�
�	����������-
��	�����
����	���
��������������������
	��	
�	�.���
	��	��$$�/��
��$0!*�� ������
����	���
��
	�.������	���������
���
	��	�����������	
���	������ ���������������
�������1�

•�  ������		��
����������
�����������	���	����
��������������
	���������
�	���	������
���������
��
��
•� 2'�� 3	���� 4���� 
�� ����� ��� ���5� ���		�� �
���� ��� �������� ���5
��� ���� 
�� '���� �	���������  ���

��	�	�����
�����5�������
����
	���	����
•�  �����	�	�����
����������
���	���'��
�������
'
������	��������'
����������67$$!�

�
8
�������	���
���3	��
���9�'��	������:


��������	�������
�����������	'
��������
���	
���$00%����'���	
�����
�,
��
������
�����
�
������������
������2'��3	������������ �
���������������������	
������������
������'
�
�
���
	
�!$;!7�2'��3	�������������
	���
����
�
:��$!�/��
��$0!*�� �����	���
�� ����
'����	�

����
	�� ����� ��������
��������� �	������������������
���� ����
�	�;������
���
	��	
���������
���
	���
�
�
	..���%��	

�����
�
"� ���
��� ��
��� ������� ����������� ������ #<� 	
� ���� ���
�� �	���� 2�� 
�� �	�� �	��
������ ������ ��������� ���� ��
���	���������
��������	�������������	
�'��
������
�����������	


�����������
����������		��	�����5
���
��
2'��3	����4������5
���
��	����	���������������	
�
������������'�
�������
��
�����������������5���
��� 
��
�����������������	�����
�����
�������
�
 ��� ����� ������
��������� ������
��� ���
��� �	��� 
�	�� ��	��� ����� �������� ������5
��� �
����� ����


�� 	��
�
�5�����
����	����������		��	
�����	����
����������������	����������
�����	�����������������	
�����
'����
'��
�����  �
�� ������
�����
���� 	�.���
'��� ������
��� �����
���
�
����  ��� ��	�	���� ��'��	������ �����
	���

� ��
�//0#.� 1� �%����	�� 	.� ��� �	,� �..	%-�2��� 3	
��� 4��3�
���	�����-� ��%5���6� ������� 7� ���-�������� ��� ���-� �-8�
%	����	�����6��	%���96�%	��1	�149�6�3�%�.	%-�3�%��
�
.��&��'��%�*��"�3��"�$(��""���!���$�����:�!�����-�"�($����������"����6�
������!����!�+��"6���$("�����������6�������"���6�������"���"����6�����

3���

1723



���������	
��	��
�������������

�	��������� �������� ��
������������������� 
�� �	���
����� �	� �����
���
�
��� 	�.���
'���� 
�����
��� �����
��� ����
�	����&������	��
		���
����������
�������������������
	����	�����	����'����	�����������'
�����
�
2������	�����	��������
����	���
�&���	������������/�������
���������������	�	�.���
	������������	�	����
��������� �	��� ��
���� ���	���� 
���	'������� �	� ���� .����
	�� �
��� ���� 6� ������ �	��� ���� ���	� ���	����
���
�
	�����������
���
�
������������� ������
�
	�������


������������
�	��������	�	����
���	���	��
�������	�
��'�� �� �
��


����� 
������ 	'��� ���� �,
��
��� �
����
	�� ��'
��� ������� �	� ���� 
���	'������� ��	�	�����
�����
�������	���
	��	
������
�������������������	
�����6��������	����
�
2������	�����	���������
���	
� ����$00%����
�����'���� 
�� ����
���������������������������	����������5�������
��
�����	�	�.���
	�� �	� ������	�	�����������.���� �	����	��
�
	����=�
�
�������
���	
� �������
�������������	�
���'�� ���� ��	�	���� ��'��	������ ��
��� ������� ��
	��� �	�������
	�� ������� ���� 
����������� ��
	��� 

����
	������
	�����
��
���	���	��
�������	�����������
����������	��
	����
������
�
 ����

����	
� ��������������
�����	�;������
���
	�� 
�� �����������
���
	��	
� ��������
���
	���	���������
���
���������
���2������	��������������	���
������	���	��
����������
�
	���3	��'����	����
���������������
	��
	
������	���
�&�������
���	�����������	��
����
	�������	��
������	����������
��
�������������������	���
	��
	���������
�
	�������
���	������'��������������������������	��������	�������
�
�
�	��3������	�%��	

��-���	��
�
�
�

�

�--���	����%��%��������	���
�
/���������������������
'���
�	��6����������	���	�
�
�	������
���	�������
�	
���������
�������� ���������������
	�����������������
'�����������
�����

�
���
���
������(��	����	��	��
������� ������������
	��	��>�
�

!?�  ��� (��	��� 
�
��� �	� ��	������ �,���
�� ���� �
������������ ��� �	� ���� ��
�� ����
���
	�� 
�� ��
���
���	��
��������2������
�����������(��	���
�
����	�����	����������
��	����
��������	���
������	'�������
����
���
	�����'
	������� �
��
���������
����	��
�����
	���	���
����������� ���(��	������	�
�
����	��	���
�������
��������.��
�
��������������	������	������������������
�������	
������	���
�&�������������	
�
���������
������
���	
� ��������
���
	�� ��������������������������
����� ���
�������� �����	���
������
��.��������� ����3
����	����� � 2�� 
���������
����	��
�����
	���	���
�������������� �����	���
�&�������
���
�����������	
� ��������
���
	���������������� ����3
����	��������� 
�������
����� �������
�����
	��	
�
���� ����	��� 
	�� ����	'��� ������� ����� ���� ���
�� 	�� ��
��� ���� ����
���
	�� ���� ����	'��� ����� ����

	���� �	� ��� ��

�
����� �  ��� (��	��� ��	���� ���� 	��� �������� ���� ��	����� 	
� ���������� ����� �����
�������
��������
�������������	���
���
�

$?�  ��� (��	��� ��
���� �	� �����
�� �������� 
�� ���� ��	�	�
�� ���	��� ��	'
���� ��� ���� ����
����� ���
@�����	�'���A��/���	���
������������������	


�������'����'�����5�����������
������	���������������
��������� � 3�'
��� ��'��� ��	����� �������������� �	� ���� ������
	�� 	
� ���� ����
����� 	�� �,�������� ����
�	�������������
������
����	�	�
�����	����
��
���
�
�����	���
	��:


������	�����������
���������������
�
��������@�����	�'���A��2�������'������������
��������'���������'
���������������������
����


���
��
����(��	����	��	��
�����������������������

�
*?�  ���(��	��� �	��	��
����� 
�
��� �	��	��� ����� �����	�����
	���	
� ��������
�����&���	�	�
�����	�������

�	���������������2�����	�
�
����	��	��������������	�	�
������

���	
�������'��	�����������
	�����	����
'��
�� ��	����� �	� ����	'�� ��
�� ����
���
	�� ���'
	������ � /�� �	���� ��	'��� ����� ����	���� ����

� �����;00#.� 1� ���������	�� <��%�� %��%	������=�>� �	� �%���6� ��5��
-	4�� ��-� %�1�%���� �	�9� �����6� %	����-� �%	 �-� .���-�� ���
%�: �%�-� 29� �3�� �%	���  �-�%� � ���=���	�� <�	.�� .% ��>� ���
����	?��	����	 %��.�%
6�5����������6�3�%�.	%-�3�%�6�3%����?�
�
.��&��8�7� ������@+��$�����
���$��$)��"�+��)6� $���
�6��!�@��!$��2�"�$�""�
��$���6��!�@��!$�6�2!"����6������$(�!�6���0��-4�

1824



���������	
��	��
�������������

�������
����� ��
������ ��� �����	���
�� 
�� ����3
����	����� �  ���� 
�� �������
��� �	��
�����
	�� �	� ��
��
����
���
	���
�

7?�  ��� ��
�
�
���� 	
� ���� B82� ���� �
��	���
'���� � C	� �������� ���� ����� ����� ��� :


����� �	� ���5�
����


���
	��
�	����������
������	������	
�����
������������������
�����

�
#?�  ����	���
�&�������������	
� ��������������'
����� 
������� 
������
��������	����������
���
	���
���

��������	���
����������
��� �	�������
��
���������	
� ����/:C6��
������
�����'�������������
�
'
���
����� ���� ����� 	
� ���� /:C6�� �  ��� (��	��� ��	'
���� �	� .���


���
	�� 
	�� ��
�� ����	���� ���	��� ����
��'��	��������
����	�������
��
������)���8�����������	��	�
�������	���
���
������ ��������������	
�

�������
��
�������������������
���������
�����	��	�������	�����
�

D?�  ��������������	
�
�������
�
����	�����	��������������������
����	�
�
	����2�����	�
�
����	���	����������
	��������	��
������������

��������������	�	�����
�����	'
�����������
��
�����������	
��	��������������
��	�����
��	������������� �
��
���������
����	��
�����
	���	���
����������

�
%?�  ��� ������
�� 	
� �	�
��� 4/!� 
�� 
������� �  ��� �,������ 	
� �� #0;��	���� ��
��
��� 
�� 
�����'���� �	� ��

����	����� ���� �����
���� ��'��	������ ��� ��	�	����� �  ��� (��	��� 
�
��� �	� ��	������ ���
������� ����
����
�����&��	�
�
	��	���	�
���4/!��

�
 �������
��������=������������������
���
	������
��������
�	�������������
	����������
���	
�$7�/��
���
�
/������������������������������
'���
�	��/��	���/�������/��	�
��������������
�����&������
����	�����������
 ���������������������������

���	
���
����	�������������'
�
�������	�
�
���������
����	��
��������	���
	���	�
����	'���������	����


�����������������	
������	���	���������������
��	����'
���	��
�
	������������
������
����	�������5
������ 
�������� 
���	'������	����������	
�!#����������� �(�
������� 
�����	�������	����������
������
������������	
������������
�������������
�
����	���������'
����������������������������
��
	��	����������
	�����
	����	
������
����	����	����
	������������	��
�������	�
����	���
��������
����	���	���������	�������2��
��
������� ����� ��
�����
�
	���� �	���	��� �	��������
��� ������������������������
��� 	��������	��
������	�� ����
������	
������
�������
��
	�����	����
�	��
�����	��������	�	������	����������
�����
��
������/:C6��� ���
����������	������������������
�����&��	�
�
	��������
����	�
���4/!�����������	�	�
������

�������������	
��
��
��
�������
��������������� �����
�����������	'���������������
�������	��
�����(��	�����
�
�
	..���%��	

�����
�
 ��������
�������
��
	������=�����������	������:������� ���:���������������	�������	���
�&��
�
������	�
��	'
������=���������	���
	���������
�
	���	������������
�������
��
	�E�����


����������
�
������	����
�������
�	�� ���� ��	�	���� �	���
��� �
��� ��
����� 9�'��	������ ����� �	�
��� 4/!�� � /��
���� ���� ���5��	���� 	
� ���
����
������	���
	���	�����	'����������������	��	��
�����	��
�����������
�����'
	���	�
�
	���	���������
�
	��
�	������������
�������
��
	��������	�����		5����������	�	����	���������
��	
������'
��������
	������������
�	��
�������������
��� ������� 
�� �
������������ ����� ��'��	�������� �
���� ����� �
���� �������
���
	����� 
��
��������	��
������	����	�����	��
�������
�
(�
��������	������	�'���
������
�����D�$!�	
��������	���������������	���
�&���	��
��
	��������	�����	�����
����
�����&�$0!*���	�	�
��2������/����
����
��������
������ �������	�	�	�������	���������������
�����&�

���	���������������������(��	����	��	��
��������	��
�������D�$$������������	�	�
������

����	������	����
��	�	������������

	������	��
����������
�������������������	�	�
������

��
���	��F
��	��
�������&���2��
��
�����	�����
	��	
�	


�������	��'���� �������'
���������� �	��	�
���4/!��C������
���������� ������9�� ��
��
����

����	�����	��	'���
�����	����
	��	
�����/:C6��
�
/���	���� ���� ��������	����	������

��������
'�����
�
�
���	
� ����B	���	
�8
����� 2�
������� GB82?� 
�� ��5��� �	�
��
����	������������7�7�*��7�7�7�����7�7�#�	
�����(��	���	�������*%�	
�������
������������������������7�7�*�
��
�����	��������
�������	
�����B82�
������
�����	������
��������	����
���'
�
�
�
���	
������	����������������
	�������������
��� ����
	���	
������������/�����
��	
� ��������
���
	��	
� ����B82��	�������'��	������G7�7�#?�
�,���
��������
�
���
	���	
�����B82��
'����������	���&���,���
�����	
������	�����������
����	�����
�
�����������
����
�������������	'������B82�
��������	�������������	�����'��	����������	����������
�	�����
�����'�������
�	
������
�

1925



���������	
��	��
�������������

:


������
��������
��� ������
�
�
��� ����� ����(��	������5�� �	����'���� ��������
�
'
���	
� ���� �	���� ����������
��	'��	�����������	
�����/:C6��� ���4����������������&����������������7�7�7���
����������
���������������
������	
���������
���
	���
�������
	�����
��
�������
'���'����������������
	���
�����������	
����������������
���
�����
������'�������������
�
'
���
�������	���,��	
�������	���/:C6��
�
 ��������
����	�
�
	���

���5����������"�+D���	
����
����	�����������
�����	��������!�$�$��
�
 ��� ����
�����&� �	�
�
	�� 
�� �����
	�� �	� �	�
��� 4/!� 
�� ���	����� ��� ������� 
�� ���� �������� 	
� ���� ��������
�������������������
�������������G����������!�7�$�?��
�������
:���
��������������	
�����	�������	���	
�	�.���
	����'�����������
'�����C	�����
������������
�����
�
�
�	��3������	�%��	

��-���	��
�
�
�

�

�--���	����%��%��������	���
�
9	���	������
����	���
����
��������
���	�.���
	���	���������
���
	���
�
C������� �������� ���� �	� 	�.���
	�� �	� ���� ����
���
	��� C������� �������� �	�

���� ����� �
��� �������� �	� 	���
���'
	��� �	�������
	�� ����	���� ������
��� ���� �
�������� ����
���
	�� �!$$""$H�� �� ���
�� 	�
�
	�� � ���� �	��
��������������	��	��	�.�����	���������
���
	��	��������	�����	
�����
��������	�����(
'���)�������
���/����
	
��	����'��
	��G�/�?��	������(
'���)����
���	
�����
�����
���


��2��������G���2?��
�
 �����
�������	�.���
	�����'�����������
'������	
�$*�/��
��$0!*�� ���������
�	����	������	���'����������
	�.���������� 
���������� ��������
�����	�������
�	
�$!���	��������	��� 
��
����C	����� 
���������� ��
�����
�	��'�������
	��	�
����	
�������������1�

•�  �����������	���
���	������
�������	������������
����&�������	������
'������������	������	����
•�  ���������	����!!��	�5
��������
�	�������
���������	
��������'
	�������
���
	���	���������
��
	��

	
���
������
���
	��
•�  �����
���	����
����	�5���������	������	����������	������������	����
���
����������	
������������

���
������
�	��	���
������������
•� �	��������	������
'���


���
	�����	������������������	�����	����
����
��
��!��
���	
���������
���
	��

�
���
•� �,
��
���)���
���'�������
��
����$#��
������
�����'��'�����
������������
���
	���		5
�����	�������


�����=������,
��
����������
•� C	����
��������������������������������	������
���������	�	�����
����������������	������� ���

���'
	��������������
���
	����������	�.	����	�����������������	��'�����
��������������
���
	���������
.	����
��������������

�
�
	..���%��	

�����
�

� ����0�#.� 1� �3����� 	.�  ��� 	.� .�%
� 2 ��-����� �	� �%����� ��
��������3	��-�9��	������6� ��272���������%		
�7�����=�����
=�� �� .������9,� �%����	��	.� /� -�
	 ���2�����	�-	
��� .	%�
3	��-�9#�=����� �������� ��6�4��3�4�#�3	4�%� .���������� ��� ��
��4�2 ��-����7��	

 ����.�������������	���.�%
�2 ��-��������
�����%�3�9��	�-6�-	%��	��6�3�%�.	%-6�3%��0���
�
.��&� 
�� 7� 
�"� ����!"� ���� 
�� -!*��� .� 2!���6� ��� 4����!�"�� ������6�
3�������6�3%��;����

2026



���������	
��	��
�������������

 ������������	���������������9	���	������
����	���
�������	����������'��������	��
��������������
�	'������
��
�������	��
�����(��	���� �
�����	�����
����	�����
������������������
	������
'���
�	�������	����
���
������� �����	'���	
����������
��������
	��������������

���
�
 ��� �	������� 
�	�� C������� �������� �	� �	�� �	�
�
��� �
��� 	�� �	�����
��� ���� ��	�	�
���� ����������� ����


��
����	
������	���
���C����������������	��������������,���������4	���������
���/���	�
�����	������������
�	��
���� ���� 	����� �	��
���� 
������� ������
��� 
�	�� ��
�� ��	�	���� 	�� �	���� �
���� G�
	�
'���
��� ����
��	�
'���
��?���	�����������������������������	����	�����
	�����
	�
'���
�����
	�
������
�������������
���� �
��
������������������������
���	�������
���
��
�������	��
�����(��	����
�
�

�	��3������	�%��	

��-���	��
�
�
� ����
0#.� 1�-�
	����	��	.��?�������2 ��-�������-��%����	��	.�
� ��� �	� 3	 ���� ��-� ��%����� �	���3�%� 4��3� %	�-�6� ��4�%��
� ��-����	�����-��?��%����4	%5�����.	%
�%��	
	���4	%5�6�
� ���4		-�����6�3	�
�%6�3�%�.	%-6�3%����8�
�

.��&� ���$������ 3���"� ���� ����
�� �!��� 3!���"6� ���� ��!+��"6�4���+��)�
�!$�6������$6�4����"���6�4%/�
���

�
�--���	����%��%��������	���
�
3	����� ���� �����
�5� ���
��� �	���
�I�� 	�.���
	�� �	� ���� ����
���
	�� �	� ��
��� *7� �	����� ��� ���� ��	'�� �
���
����
�������������
�	�����'
	�������
���
	��������	�.���
	��
��������	������
	��	�
����	
���>�
�
!�� �	����
���
	�� ;� ���� 
���� ����
��� ����� ���� �	
�� ��� ���� �
��� 
�� �	����
������ ���� ������ 
�� �	� ��	�	���� �	�
���	'��������	����
���
	���
������	'���	'����
����	��	
����	���	�����'���	
�D00����������
���	
�
��
��������
�����
��
����	�
��������	����
�����������	������5���	���	���
������������D00����� ����
���
���	����
������

	�����
����
�����'��	�������
�
$�� ����
�������
����


���
���������
��������
	��������
	���������	�����������	��
	���	����
�������������
��� �� �	��	��� �������� 	�� �	����
��� ������ �2�� '
���	
� ���� �	����
������������� 	
� ���� �	
�� ��
�� 
�� �����	���
��
����������	
������
����� ����	����������������	�����	����	������	���
�������	���������	�������	������
�
���� �	���� 	
� ���� �
���� 
�� �	��� �	�� ����� ����
���� �	� ����� ��� �,
��
��� ��	��

���� �
��� 
��	� �� ���
����
���
��'��	��������������������� 
������
��H�	�����
����
����	�������

�����
����� � ������
��
	�����	
�3	�����
���������
�5���'���	�

��������	�����������
�������������������	�����
5����
���
����	�����
��
����'�
���
�
����	�
��	'
�������	������
���������
�����
�
�
	..���%��	

�����
�
2������	�����	�������	'���	�����������
'���
�	���������
����	���
���:


������	������
����	������	��
�����
���	��������
�����	����������
�
	��������
����������������
��
	���������������������
����������	�����������
�
�
�3������	�%��	

��-���	��
�
�	��	�
���	��
�	���
�����
	���
�����������
�������
�������������������������������
���
	����	������
�������
3�����	
� ���������������	���
�����	����/���������������	�������
	����	�����	����������
	��	��>��
�
 ���������
�������
��
	����������������.�����	�����
	��	�
����	��
�
	��>�G�������	��?��
�
�
�
�

2127



���������	
��	��
�������������

� ���/��#.3� 1� �%	�	��-� .�%��� .�		%� �?�����	�� ��� �/� 4��5�%��
� �%���6�
�%-��6�3�%�.	%-6�3%���-A�
�

.��&� 
�� 4����!�"6� �/� 4!�@��"� ����$6� 
!���$6� 3�������6� 3�������"�����
3%���-A�

�

��
�--���	����%��%��������	���
�
����������
����	���
������	�����������
���
	��������
����	���������	����������5�	
�����	�	������	����
�		��
������
��
�
	..���%��	

�����
�
2������	�����	������	��������
��������������
����	���
���������	�	�����	����	��
�'	�'���������������	�����
�,
��
�����	����
�		��
�
�3������	�%��	

��-���	��
�
�
������������
���
	��	
��������	��������	�������
	�����
	�������,�
���������	��������	�������
	��
���	��
	���	
�����	'������.�����	��	��
�
	����
�
�
�

�
��
�

2228



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: SE100966/F - APPLICATION (PART 
RETROSPECTIVE) TO ERECT, TAKE DOWN AND 
RE-ERECT POLYTUNNELS, ROTATED AROUND 
FIELDS AS REQUIRED BY THE CROPS UNDER 
CULTIVATION (SOFT FRUIT) AT PENNOXSTONE 
COURT FARM, KINGS CAPLE, HEREFORDSHIRE, 
HR1 4TX 

For: N J & I E Cockburn per Mr Antony Aspbury, 
Unit 20, Park Lane Business Centre, Park Lane, 
Basford, Nottingham, NG6 0DW 

WEBSITE LINK: http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/58286.aspx?ID=100966&NoSearch
=True 

 
Date Received: 26 April 2010 Ward: Old Gore Grid Ref: 355972,228695 
Expiry Date: 3 August 2010  
Local Member: Councillor BA Durkin 
 
1. Update 
 
1.1 The planning application was reported to the meeting of the Planning Committee on 24 April 

2013.  The application was refused in accordance with the recommendation. 
 

It has since come to officers’ attention that the report to Committee did not include the 
statement on positive and proactive working as required by article 31 1 (cc) of the Town and 
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) (Order) 2010/2184 (as 
amended). 

 
The purpose of this report is to seek a Committee resolution to enable this to be added as an 
informative note to fulfil this statutory requirement.  The informative is as follows: 
 
“The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and other material 
considerations and identifying matters of concern with the proposal and discussing those with 
the applicant.  However, the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it has not been 
possible to negotiate a satisfactory way forward and due to the harm which has been clearly 
identified approval has not, in this instance, been possible.” 

 
Subject to agreement the informative will be attached to the decision notice. 

  
  
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

29



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Members resolve to approve the addition of the Statement of Positive and Proactive 
Working as an addendum to the Report to Committee for inclusion on the planning decision 
notice. 
 
 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF 
REPORT: 

130166/F - PROPOSED ERECTION OF 30 NO 
DWELLINGS INCLUDING 10 AFFORDABLE UNITS 
AND ASSOCIATED WORKS TO PROVIDE NEW 
ACCESS AND ROAD AT SITE ADJ TO 4 VALENTINE 
COURT, CANON PYON, HEREFORD, HR4 8NZ 

For: G P Thomas & Son Ltd per Hook Mason 
Architects Ltd., 41 Widemarsh Street, Hereford, 
Herefordshire, HR4 9EA 

WEBSITE LINK: https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=130166 

 
Date Received: 21 January 2013 Ward: Wormsley Ridge Grid Ref: 346348,248579 
Expiry Date: 22 April 2013  
Local Member: Councillor AJM Blackshaw 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The application relates to an area of 0.89 hectares of grazing land, and is a field located 

towards the southern end of Canon Pyon.  The land is flat and falls between two areas of 
residential development – the main village core to the north and a post-war residential estate, 
Meadow Drive, slightly divorced from the rest of the village, to the south.  The site is bounded 
immediately to the east by a post and rail fence with a footpath and then hedgerow forming the 
roadside boundary.  A mature hedge bounds to the west with open countryside beyond. 

 
1.2 The village is very linear and older properties are arranged along the road frontage with 

outlooks across the countryside to the east and west.  Meadow Drive is a cul-de-sac 
development, and a similarly sized development has also taken place at the northern end of 
the village and is known as Brookside. 

 
1.3 Canon Pyon is identified as a main settlement by Policy H4 of the Unitary Development Plan.  

The settlement boundary excludes the application site, bounding it immediately to the north.  
The village facilities include a shop and post office, primary school, public house, playing fields 
and village hall. 

 
1.4 The application is made in full and is for the erection of thirty dwellings.  These are proposed 

as a mix of 20 open market properties – 10 two bed, 8 three bed and 2 four bed – and 10 
affordable dwellings – 6 two bed, 3 three bed and 1 four bed.  The houses are predominantly 
semi-detached, with only the two four bed open market properties in the south western corner 
of the plot being detached.  Each dwelling has its own parking provision and half of the open 
market properties also include garages.  The dwellings are all of brick construction, with some 
having rendered elements, and tiled roofs. 

1.5 Vehicular access into the site is directly from the A4110.  The plans show the construction of a 
minor road with a turning head within the site, the access from the A4110 being positioned 

AGENDA ITEM 7

31



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

approximately centrally on the road frontage.  The requirement to provide appropriate visibility 
splays necessitates the removal of the roadside hedgerow.  The plans propose to reinstate a 
new hedgerow behind the visibility splays with a new 2 metre wide footpath behind the hedge 
and thus separated from the road, to recreate the existing situation. 

 
1.6 The development is arranged with frontage development facing onto the A4110, with further 

development arranged around the new access road behind.  Each of the properties has 
gardens to front and rear with the precise details of boundary treatments to be agreed should 
planning permission be forthcoming.  The mature hedgerow that forms the western boundary 
of the site is to be retained. 

 
1.7 The application relies on the ecological survey previously undertaken for the earlier proposal 

determined by committee in 2012.  This concluded that there were no significant ecological 
issues which would be adversely affected by the development of the site. The application also 
confirms that the development would be connected to the mains sewer currently serving the 
village, and that storm water and surface water runoff will be dealt with through soakaways 
within the curtilage of each property.  The application also includes a Draft Heads of Terms 
Agreement to set out contributions towards highway, education, open space and sports 
facilities improvements, a contribution towards library services and waste and recycling 
facilities, and also to agree the terms of the provision of affordable housing on the site.  A copy 
is attached as an appendix to this report. 

  
2. Policies  
 
2.1 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
 
 S1 – Sustainable development 

S2 – Development requirements 
S3 – Housing 
DR1 – Design 
DR3 – Movement 
H4 – Main villages: settlement boundaries 
H7 – Housing in the countryside outside settlements 
H10 – Rural exception housing 
H13 – Sustainable residential design 
H15 - Density 
H19 – Open space requirements 
T8 – Road hierarchy 
NC1 – Biodiversity and development 
NC6 – Biodiversity Action Plan priority habitats and species 
NC7 – Compensation for loss of biodiversity 
 

2.2 National Planning Policy Framework 
 

The following sections are of particular relevance: 
 

Introduction  –  Achieving sustainable development 
Section 6  –  Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
Section 7  –  Requiring good design 
Section 8  – Promoting healthy communities 
Section 11  –  Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 
 
2.3 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 
 

32



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1 N111770/F - Erection of 14 no. affordable homes on greenfield site including required access 

and services – Refused by Committee on 1 February 2012 for the following reasons: 
 

The proposal fails to reinforce the character or appearance of the locality due to the layout 
and density and detailed design of the scheme.  The orientation of the dwellings with their 
gable ends fronting onto the A4110 is at odds with the general pattern of development in the 
village.  The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies DR1, H13 and H15 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan. 
 
The proposal requires the removal of a prominent roadside hedge.  This represents an 
important feature in the locality, both in terms of its contribution to the appearance of the area 
and due to its biodiversity value.  The application fails to demonstrate that both of these 
aspects have been satisfactorily mitigated and therefore the loss of the hedgerow is 
unjustified, contrary to Policies DR1, NC1 and NC7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 
Plan. 
 

 
3.2 77/0627 – Erection of one bungalow – Refused. 
 
3.3 75/0605 – Erection of one bungalow – Refused. 
 
3.4 Two separate applications were also submitted and refused in 1966 for nine and five dwellings 

respectively.  Both applications went to appeal and were both dismissed. 
 
3.5 In the case of all of the applications referred to above the issues were the same; 
  

• That the application site was beyond the recognised settlement and that there were no 
circumstances to justify and exception to policy; and, 

• The site was within an Area of Special Landscape and development would detract from 
this.  

 
4. Consultation Summary 
 
 Statutory Consultations 
 
4.1 Welsh Water – No objection subject to the imposition of conditions to ensure that foul and 

surface water are dealt with separately and that the latter should not be allowed to discharge 
to the mains sewer. 

 
Internal Council Consultations 

 
4.2 Head of Strategic Planning & Regeneration - As Council cannot demonstrate a five year 

housing supply, an interim policy position was adopted by Council in July 2012 and allows 
some exemption to Policy H7 to enable housing development on suitable strategic and 
sustainable sites which have been assessed in the SHLAA as having none or minor 
constraints. 

 
 

The subject site was assessed as part of a larger site in the Strategic Housing Land 
Availability Assessment (O/cp/001) and was assessed as having ‘Minor Constraints.’ The 
assessment detailed that the site was suitable, available and achievable for development 
during the plan period, and that although the site would result in linear development, this is not 

33



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

detrimental as a development would connect the satellite housing development further south. 
Taking this into account, the subject site is of suitable size and of a sustainable location to 
enable this site to be considered under the interim policy position. 
 
During this interim period before the Core Strategy is adopted, the site is appropriate in 
principle for residential development as it accords with the interim policy position for residential 
development on suitable SHLAA sites. 
 

4.3 Transportation Manager - No objections subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
4.4 Conservation Manager - Landscape – The proposed site is suitable in landscape terms as it 

does preserve the linear character of the original settlement of Canon Pyon.  It retains the field 
hedgerow to the west, but the roadside hedge will be lost, which is a significant negative 
impact.  However, the proposed terraced appearance fronting onto the road will have a 
positive streetscape impact. 

 
 The layout of the development is a little dense and further details are required about the 

nature of landscaping proposed within the site. 
 
 It is concluded that there is no overall landscape objection to the principle of housing on this 

site subject to the imposition of landscaping conditions and to ensure the protection of the 
retained hedgerow during construction. 

 
4.5 Minerals and Waste Officer – No objection subject to the completion of a site waste 

management plan. 
 
4.6 Waste Services Manager - The shared surface road needs to be built to a standard suitable 

for a 26 tonne refuse collection vehicle to travel over it twice weekly, without causing damage. 
Collection operatives will only walk up to 30m from the location that the vehicle can safely 
access to collect any refuse or recycling containers therefore if the shared surface road is not 
suitable then the collection locations for properties 13-22 may be too great a distance and 
residents will have to bring their refuse/recycling to a point closer to the junction. 

 
4.7 Housing Manager - Supports the application for 30 houses at Canon Pyon with the provision 

of 10 affordable houses. 
 

The application states that the affordable will be built to Lifetime Homes, DGQ and Code 3 and 
will be allocated to those with a local connection to Canon Pyon in the first instance which is 
supported. 

 
5. Representations  
 
5.1 Pyons Group Parish Council – Following the rejection of the application to develop this site 

only last year. Canon Pyon should not now fall victim to the hiatus in planning caused by the 
NPPF and the gap created whilst the county core strategy is being completed. The site does 
not fit in with the Parish Council and the residents agreed objective of developing the village 
from the centre, near all the village facilities as the Council members understand. You are fully 
aware that work is underway to achieve these objectives and is only currently delayed by this 
application. The necessary background work on this was nearing completion when, without 
warning, the rushed application now under consideration appeared.  

 
 Last year the full planning committee at that time also viewed the site opposite the Nags Head 

preferred by the Parish Council and local residents and subsequently gave their almost 
unanimous support for the position taken by the Parish Council. In contrast, the site adjacent 
to Valentine Court has been rejected on repeated occasions in previous years when similar 
applications have been submitted.  

34



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

 
 We are considering the future of the village and consequently we must look to the draft core 

strategy, which will be in place during the period: 
  

 1. Contrary to the core strategy, there has been no contact with either the Parish Council 
  or residents made by the developers. Policy RA2.5 and p 142 of the Core Strategy 
"Developers should ensure early engagement with the community".  
 
 2. The development is site led not by housing need contrary to the Core Strategy p 144  and is 
against RA2.1 "reflecting size of village".  

 
 3. It is a form of unacceptable ribbon development. 
  

 4. The design, urban and cramped, with a frontage of 16 houses lining the road, bears no 
 relevance to a rural setting and is against RA2.3 Character of Village, policy H2.3 "respects 
characteristics of surroundings, good design and reasonable access to facilities" and policy 
H3.3 "elderly housing".  
 
 5. The site has drainage issues which will be exacerbated by 30 houses on impervious 
ground. The site, never built on for good reason, will produce continuing intractable problems, 
particularly if a change in climate results in higher rainfall.  
 
 6. The senior landscape officer acknowledges that the loss of the hedge has "significant 
negative impact. In fact, it would produce an ineffective barrier for some years and an 
inadequate replacement for a mature hedge.  
 
 7. The Parish Council supports housing development and has already added around 25% to 
Canon Pyon's building stock within the last decade; this development is out of proportion to 
the size and needs of a small village and does not comply with policy RAl of the draft Core 
Strategy.  
 
 8. There remain serious concerns over sewage, highlighted during mid 2012 with yet another 
total blockage towards the southern end of the village.  

 
 9. In view of the preceding paragraphs, there is doubt whether the development is sustainable. 
At the last PC meeting the subject of both community and environmental sustainability was 
raised and these must be more fully addressed.  
 

 Pyons Group Parish Council trusts that the objections made will be given due consideration 
 
5.2 16 letters of objection have been received from local residents.  In summary the points raised 

in the representations are as follows: 
 

• The housing to be built will not cater for the needs identified.  
• It is unnecessary development with more suitable sites available in the middle of the 

village. 
• The applicant’s have chosen the wrong site and should have looked to develop the site 

next to the playing fields. 
• A substantial amount of housing has been erected in the village and there is ample to 

meet local requirements.  No further need. 
• Houses should be built nearer to places where people are likely to find work. 
• Canon Pyon is not well served by public transport. 
• Why has no consideration been given to the erection of bungalows for older people? 
• It would amount to ribbon development and contradict previous planning decisions. 
• It will increase pressure on the local primary school 
• Play space for under 12’s should be provided on site. 

35



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

• The design of the dwellings and the density of the development as a whole is 
considered to be inappropriate. 

• The development will be detrimental to the residential amenities of the residents of 
Valentine Court and Meadow Drive. 

• The proposal will have negative impacts on views across the countryside. 
• It would result in the loss of an old hay meadow to the detriment of the local ecology of 

the area. 
• The loss of the road side hedge would be to the detriment of the village and would 

remove a useful buffer between the road and footpath as the new hedge will take time 
to establish. 

• The development would give rise to issues of highway and pedestrian safety 
• The proposal will have a detrimental effect on the River Wye SAC. 

 
5.3       CPRE objects to the application on the following grounds: 
 

• The application relates to a Greenfield site beyond the village settlement boundary and 
is contrary to Policies H4 and H7 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

• The village should not be a victim of the Council’s failure to meet its five year housing 
land supply. 

• A brownfield site within the settlement boundary is identified in the UDP and is yet to 
be developed. 

• The proposal is contrary to the draft Core Strategy. 
• The village is not well served by public transport and will increase dependency on 

private motor vehicles. 
• Development of the site will be detrimental to highway safety of pedestrians living to 

the south of the site and wishing to access village facilities. 
• The proposal will be visually intrusive and detrimental to the local landscape.  
• The dwellings are poorly designed and do not take account of energy efficiency 

standards. 
• The scheme does not include an infants play space and therefore is contrary to Policy 

H9 of the Unitary Development Plan. 
 
5.4 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 

link:- 
 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/development-control/search-and-comment-on-
planning-applications/ 

 
Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 

 https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/contactus 
 
 
6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The site lies just beyond the settlement boundary for Canon Pyon as defined by the 

Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and therefore falls within open countryside. 
The proposal does not satisfy any of the exception criteria outlined by Policy H7 of the UDP – 
it is not entirely a scheme for affordable housing as was previously considered on part of the 
site, but is a mix of open market and affordable - and therefore is contrary to it. However, it is 
necessary to consider whether there are any other planning policy or material planning 
considerations to support the principle of development.  

6.2 The Core Strategy is not sufficiently advanced to be given due weight in the consideration of 
the application and in any event, there are no specific policies or proposals that relate to this 
particular site. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into force in March 
2012.  Paragraph 215 of the NPPF clarifies that due weight can still be given to the relevant 

36



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

UDP policies for a period of 12 months from the date of adoption of the NPPF providing those 
policies are largely consistent with the NPPF.  

 
6.3 At the heart of the NPPF is a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and 

applications for housing should be considered in this context. The NPPF now requires that 
local planning authorities should identify a rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land 
to ensure choice and competition in the market. Additionally, the NPPF requires an additional 
buffer of 5% (increased to 20% if a planning authority has persistently under delivered housing 
land). On the basis of the evidence available to date, it is considered the requirement for a 5% 
buffer is applicable to Herefordshire. 

 
6.4 The Council’s 2012 Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) which monitors housing land availability, 

identified that the Council currently has a shortfall of 216 units, which equates to a 4.6 year 
supply.  This shortfall does not account for the requirement to maintain the additional 5% 
buffer which would amount to a further 140 units and therefore a total of 356 units.  

 
6.5 Paragraph 49 of the NPPF stipulates that relevant policies concerning the supply of housing 

land should not be regarded as up to date if a five year land supply cannot be demonstrated. 
In view of this, there is a requirement to release further land for housing that is deliverable 
within the next five years and is sustainable. There remains a requirement for the development 
to accord with other relevant UDP policies and NPPF guidance but in terms of the principle, if 
the development is acceptable in all other respects, the conflict with UDP policy H7 is not a 
reason for refusal of the application that could be sustained. 

 
6.6 Two specific reasons were given previously for the refusal of a smaller scheme on part of this 

site.  These refer to the loss of the hedgerow as a biodiversity asset and the design, layout 
and density of that particular scheme.  If it is considered that the density, design and layout of 
the scheme is acceptable, and that it does not give rise to unacceptable detriment to the 
amenity of nearby dwellings, then the only judgement to be made is the weight to be given to 
the loss of the roadside hedge and meadow as opposed to the need to try and address the 
current shortfall in housing land supply.   

 
6.7 Many of the points raised in objection to this application are matters that were previously 

considered, particularly the availability and preference for the development of other sites within 
the village and in relation to matters of highway safety.  The previous report deals with both 
matters in detail and there has not been a material change in circumstance since the 
determination of that application to assume that either would now give rise to a reason to 
refuse this proposal.    

 
6.8 Schemes have not been brought forward for any of the sites preferred by the parish council, 

and it has not expressed any intention to complete a Neighbourhood Plan.  Such documents 
will ultimately provide the mechanism for parish councils to identify specific sites for 
development, but current proposals have to be determined on the basis of the adopted 
Development Plan – the National Planning Policy Framework and the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan.  This proposal must be treated on its merits, and not what might be 
preferred at some point in the future.    

 
6.9 Although this proposal is for a greater number of dwellings, no objections have been raised by 

the Council’s Highway Engineer.  The A4110 is perfectly straight at this location and visibility is 
potentially very good, subject to the removal of the hedgerow.  The plans now proposed have 
taken account, as best as possible, of the concerns of local residents and the hedge is to be 
re-planted between the road and a new 2 metre wide footpath.  The footpath will be positioned 
further away from the road as a consequence and its widening is considered to be of 
significant benefit as it is currently rather narrow.  The proposal is considered to accord with 
Policies DR3 and T8 of the UDP. 

 

37



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

6.10 The application relies on the ecological survey previously undertaken for the earlier proposal 
determined by committee in 2012.  This concluded that there were no significant ecological 
issues which would be adversely affected by the development of the site.  No part of the site is 
afforded a specific designation of either local or national level and it is your officers opinion 
that its loss is significantly outweighed by the lack of a five year housing land supply.  Canon 
Pyon is a village that is considered to be sustainable.  It has a good range of local services, is 
designated as a main village in the UDP and is identified as being appropriate for development 
by Policy RA.1 of the draft Core Strategy.  The intention is now to re-plant a new hedgerow 
behind the visibility splay by way of mitigation for the removal of the existing one and it is not 
considered that the previous reason for refusal on biodiversity grounds could be sustained. 

 
6.11 Canon Pyon does not have a strong architectural identity.  Its original core of buildings would 

have centred on the Nags Head public house and it is clear that the buildings that surround it 
are of some age.  It is likely that the village evolved from here, predominantly along the 
eastern side of the A4110 where the majority of older buildings lie.  These are a combination 
of timber frame, brick and stone construction and the majority are either rendered or painted, 
giving their appearance a degree of uniformity.  The western side is dominated by post war 
developments of red brick bungalows and two storey dwellings arranged in a linear fashion 
along the road frontage, with later cul-de-sac developments at the northern and southern ends 
of the village. 

 
6.12 It is important that any development should be integrated with the village and in this respect 

the best approach is to have dwellings that front onto the road and make a contribution to the 
street scene, rather than simply creating a cul-de-sac that is inward looking.  Notwithstanding 
this, the site itself, with its long road frontage, lends itself to the development proposed and 
makes a good use of the land available. 

 
6.13 A more traditional approach has been taken in design terms.  The previous scheme sought to 

make best use of sustainable energy techniques by orientating roof slopes in a southerly 
aspect and installing solar panels.  The layout was not considered to be acceptable and the 
application was refused in part on this basis.  It is your officers opinion that this scheme takes 
account of the concerns expressed about the layout of the earlier scheme and has 
satisfactorily addressed them. 

 
6.14 The introduction of rendered elements to the road frontage will give some relief to the overall 

appearance of the scheme.  This could be extended further through a variation in brick types 
and could be agreed through the imposition of an appropriately worded condition. 

 
6.15 The development is not of a high density and with 30 dwellings on 0.9 hectares, equates 

approximately to 33 dwellings per hectare.  Each property has its own parking provision and 
good sized gardens, the majority having a length of at least 10 metres.  All of the facilities 
required can be provided and, moreover, the retention of hedgerow along the western 
boundary with open countryside beyond, will serve to give a sense of space and enclosure.  
The proposal is compliant with Policy H15 of the UDP. 

 
6.16 Two properties within Valentine Court do look out across the application site and, at their 

closest point, lie within 15 metres of the dwelling proposed for plot 30.  The flank wall of the 
garage is closest and does contain a window but the elevation of this property is otherwise 
blank. 

 
6.17 A similar relationship will exist between the dwelling on plot 19, and 10 and 11 Meadow Drive, 

with only a first floor bathroom window in the opposing elevation.  A condition could be 
imposed to ensure that this remains obscure glazed. 

 
6.18 The two dwellings shown as plots 17 and 18 do have rear elevations facing 13 Meadow Drive.  

The distance between them is, at its closest point, 25 metres, and in light of the fact that 13 

38



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

Meadow Drive does not directly face these two properties it is considered that this relationship 
will not give rise to a loss of privacy or amenity to justify the refusal of the application, or to 
require any amendment to the scheme as submitted.  

 
6.19 In conclusion, the relationship between existing and proposed properties is considered to be 

appropriate.  There will inevitably be a change in the outlook that is currently enjoyed by some 
of the properties in Valentine Court and Meadow Drive, but in terms of a typical residential 
context, this is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with Policies DR1 and H13 of 
the UDP. 

 
6.20 One objector has raised concerns about the potential effect of this development on the River 

Wye Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and has suggested that planning permission should 
not be granted until it can be demonstrated that the proposal will not have a significant effect 
on water quality. 

 
6.21 Officers have been engaged in a continued dialogue with Natural England, the Environment 

Agency and Welsh Water about the matter, not only in relation to planning applications but 
also in a wider context for the draft Core Strategy.  In order to bring this forward, it has been 
agreed that a Nutrient Management Plan is necessary and work is currently underway to 
secure its completion.  In the interim, Natural England and the Environment Agency have 
signed a Statement of Intent to complete the management plan and have confirmed that, 
where a proposal indicates an intention to connect to mains sewers and there is capacity 
within the existing system, planning permission can be granted without delay.  In this case 
Welsh Water have raised no objection subject to the imposition of conditions and your officers 
are content that the proposal will not have a significant effect on water quality.  The scheme is 
therefore compliant with Policy NC1 of the UDP and the guiding principles of the NPPF in this 
regard. 

 
6.22 The application also includes a Draft Heads of Terms Agreement to set out contributions 

towards highway, education, open space and sports facilities improvements, a contribution 
towards library services and waste and recycling facilities, and also to agree the terms of the 
provision of affordable housing on the site.  Contributions will be spent locally in consultation 
with the parish council and the completion of a Section 106 Agreement prior to the 
commencement of development can be ensured through the inclusion of an appropriately 
worded condition should planning permission be forthcoming. 

 
6.23 In conclusion, the proposal is considered to be acceptable.  The lack of a five year housing 

land supply is considered to outweigh the loss of the roadside hedge and meadow that would 
result as a consequence of the development of the land, particularly as neither has either 
national or local designated protection.  Canon Pyon is a sustainable settlement, having a 
good range of local services and access to public transport facilities.  The scheme is 
considered to accord with policies S1, DR1 and H13 of the UDP and the guiding principles of 
the NPPF in this regard.  The proposal demonstrates that a safe means of access with 
appropriate visibility splays in either direction can be provided and is compliant with policies 
DR3 and T8 of the UDP.  It is also considered that the design has been influenced by the 
characteristics of the site and that the strong road frontage development is reflective of and 
complementary to the character and appearance of the village.  The proposal accords with 
policies DR1 and H13 in this regard and consequently the application is recommended for 
approval.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A01 Time limit for commencement (full permission) 

39



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

  
2. B01 Amended plans 

 
3. B07 Section 106 Agreement 

 
4. C01 Samples of external materials 

 
5. F16 No new windows in specified elevation 

 
6. G04 Protection of trees/hedgerows that are to be retained 

 
7. G10 Landscaping scheme 

 
8. G11 Landscaping scheme - implementation 

 
9. H03 Visibility splays 

 
10. H09 Driveway gradient 

 
11. H11 Parking - estate development (more than one house) 

 
12. H13 Sustainable Residential Design 

 
13. H18 On site roads - submission of details 

 
14. H21 Wheel washing 

 
15 H27 Parking for site operatives 

 
16. I16 Restriction of hours during construction 

 
17. I55 Site Waste Management 

 
18. L01 Foul/surface water drainage 

 
19. L02 No surface water to connect to public system 

 
20. L03 No drainage run-off to public system 

 
 
Reason for Approval: 
 
1. The lack of a five year housing land supply is considered to outweigh the loss of 

the roadside hedge and meadow that would result as a consequence of the 
development of the land, particularly as neither has either national or local 
designated protection.  Canon Pyon is a sustainable settlement, having a good 
range of local services and access to public transport facilities and the scheme is 
considered to accord with policies S1, DR1 and H13 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan and the guiding principles of the National Planning Policy 
Framework in this regard.  The proposal demonstrates that a safe means of access 
with appropriate visibility splays in either direction can be provided and is 
compliant with policies DR3 and T8 of the UDP.  It is also considered that the design 
has been influenced by the characteristics of the site and that the strong road 
frontage development is reflective of and complementary to the character and 
appearance of the village and the proposal also accords with policies DR1 and H13 
of the UDP.  

40



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

 
Informatives: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 

this application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other 
material considerations. Negotiations in respect of matters of concern with the 
application (as originally submitted) have resulted in amendments to the proposal.  
As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning 
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework.   
 

2. N02 Section 106 Obligation 
 

3. HN01 Mud on highway 
 

4. HN04 Private apparatus within highway 
 

5. HN05 Works within the highway 
 

6. HN10 No drainage to discharge to highway 
 

7. HN08 
 

 
 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 
 
 
 
 
 

41



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

 
This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  
APPLICATION NO:  130166/F   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  SITE ADJ TO 4 VALENTINE COURT, CANON PYON, HEREFORD, HR4 8NZ 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

 
DRAFT HEADS OF TERMS 

Proposed Planning Obligation Agreement 
Section 106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 
Planning Ref – 130166/F 

Erection of 30 dwellings, including 10 affordable units  and associated works  
to provide a new access and road 

 
1. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council, in lieu of the provision of open space on 

the land to serve the development to pay Herefordshire Council the sum of £27,208 which sum 
shall be paid on or before the commencement of development. The monies shall be used by 
Herefordshire Council at its option for improvements to the quality / accessibility of existing 
facilities in Canon Pyon. Priorities to spend will be identified through local consultation. The 
monies may be pooled with other contributions if appropriate. 

 
The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council the sum of 
£5,658 (in accordance with the Sport England Sport Facility Calculator) for improvements to 
sports facilities in consultation with the local community. This sum shall be paid on or before 
the commencement of the residential development. The monies may be pooled with other 
contributions if appropriate. 

 
The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council the sum of 
£106,110 to provide education improvements to Conningsby Early Years, Canon Pyon 
Primary School, Weobley High School, Herefordshire Youth Service and Special Educational 
Needs. This sum shall be paid on or before the commencement of development, or to a 
timetable to be agreed between the Council and the developer prior to the formal completion 
of a Section 106 Agreement. 

 
The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council, to pay Herefordshire Council the sum of 
£51,116 to provide sustainable transport measures in Canon Pyon.  The sum shall be paid on 
or before the commencement of development. The monies shall be used by Herefordshire 
Council at its option for any or all of the following purposes: 
 
a) Pedestrian access improvements near the development and within Canon Pyon. 
b) Improvements to bus provision/passenger waiting facilities. 
c) Improvements to safe routes to local schools etc.  
d) Contribution to safe routes to schools. 
 
The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council, to pay Herefordshire Council the sum of 
£3,110 for the provision of library services.  The sum shall be paid on or before the 
commencement of development, or to a timetable to be agreed between the Council and the 
developer prior to the formal completion of a Section 106 Agreement. 

 
2. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council the sum of 

£2,400 towards the provision of new or the enhancement of existing waste and recycling 
facilities in Canon Pyon (if appropriate provision/facilities are not provided on site).  

 
3. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council that ten of the residential units shall be 

“Affordable Housing” which meets the criteria set out in policy H9 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan or any statutory replacement of those criteria and that policy including the 
Supplementary Planning Document on Planning Obligations.  

 
4. The Affordable Housing units shall be as follows with their tenure to be as follows: 
 

• 3 x 2 bedroom - Intermediate tenure 

43



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

• 2 x 3 bedroom – Intermediate tenure 
• 3 x 2 bedroom – Social rented 
• 2 x 3 bedroom Social rented 

5. All the affordable housing units shall be completed and made available for occupation prior to 
the occupation of no more than 50% of the general market housing or in accordance with a 
phasing programme to be agreed in writing with Herefordshire Council. 

 
6. The Affordable Housing Units must at all times be let and managed or co-owned in 

accordance with the guidance issued by the Homes and Communities Agency (or any 
successor agency) from time to time with the intention that the Affordable Housing Units shall 
at all times be used for the purposes of providing Affordable Housing to persons who are 
eligible in accordance with the allocation policies of the Registered Social Landlord; and satisfy 
the following requirements: 
 
• registered with Home Point at the time the Affordable Housing Unit becomes available for 

residential occupation; and 
• satisfy the requirements of paragraphs 11 & 12 of this schedule. 

 
7. The Affordable Housing Units must be advertised through Home Point and allocated in 

accordance with the Herefordshire Allocation Policy for occupation as a sole residence to a 
person or persons one of whom has: 
 
a) A local connection with the parish of Canon Pyon; or 
b) In the event of there being no person having a local connection to the parish of Canon 

Pyon a person with a local connection to the adjacent parishes. 
c) In the event of there being no person with a local connection to any of the parishes 

referred to in 11(a) and 11(b) above any other person ordinarily resident within the 
administrative area of the Council who is eligible.  
 

8. For the purposes of sub-paragraph 11(a) of this schedule ‘local connection’ means having a 
connection to one of the parishes specified above because that person: 
 
a) is or in the past was normally resident there; or 
b) is employed there; or 
c) has a family association there; or 
d) a proven need to give support to or receive support from family members; or 
e) because of special circumstances. 
 

9. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to construct the Affordable Housing Units 
to the Homes and Communities Agency ‘Design and Quality Standards 2007’ (or to such 
subsequent design and quality standards of the Homes and Communities Agency as are 
current at the date of construction) and to Joseph Rowntree Foundation ’Lifetime Homes’ 
standards. Independent certification shall be provided prior to the commencement of the 
development and following occupation of the last dwelling confirming compliance with the 
required standard. 
 

10. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to construct the Affordable Housing Units 
to Code Level 3 of the ‘Code for Sustainable Homes – Setting the Standard in Sustainability 
for New Homes’ or equivalent standard of carbon emission reduction, energy and water 
efficiency as may be agreed in writing with the local planning authority.  Independent 
certification shall be provided prior to the commencement of the development and following 
occupation of the last dwelling confirming compliance with the required standard. 

 
11. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to pay Herefordshire Council a 2% 

surcharge fee for the monitoring of the Section 106 Agreement. The sum shall be paid on or 
before the commencement of the development.  

44



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 
PF2 
 

 
12. In the event that Herefordshire Council does not for any reason use the sum specified in 

paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 15 for the purposes specified in the agreement within 10 years 
of the date of this agreement, the Council shall repay to the developer the said sum or such 
part thereof, which has not been used by Herefordshire Council. 

 
13. The sums referred to in paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 15 above shall be linked to an 

appropriate index or indices selected by the Council with the intention that such sums will be 
adjusted according to any percentage increase in prices occurring between the date of the 
Section 106 Agreement and the date the sums are paid to the Council. 

 
14. The developer shall pay to the Council on or before the completion of the Agreement, the 

reasonable legal costs incurred by Herefordshire Council in connection with the preparation 
and completion of the Agreement. 

 

 
ANDREW BANKS 
PRINCIPAL PLANNING OFFICER 
 
4 December 2012 

45



46



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF 
REPORT: 

N123414/CD - VARIATION OF CONDITION 15 OF 
PLANNING PERMISSION DCNC0009/1820/CD AT HOPE 
FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 

For: Mrs Davis, Hope Family Centre per Mr Robert 
Scott, Property Services, Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 
0WZ 

WEBSITE LINK: https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=123414 

 
Date Received: 5 December 2012 Ward: Bromyard Grid Ref: 364451,253846 
Expiry Date: 8 May 2013  
Local Members: Councillors JG Lester and A Seldon 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 

1.1 The Hope Family Centre is located to the west of the A465 (Hereford to Bomyard Road) just 
south of the settlement boundary of Bromyard. The ‘Top Garage’ and petrol station adjoins the 
site to the south, with the B4214 highway running alongside the western boundary. The 
residential property Touchwood borders the site to the north. There are two buildings on the 
site, both used by the H.O.P.E charity. 

 

1.2  H.O.P.E stands for ‘Holistic Opportunities for Play and Education’ and was established in 1999 
with the aim of supporting local parents on low incomes and those facing particular 
disadvantage. They currently provide childcare for 0-5 year olds, adult education and 
individual family support. The courses they run include literacy, numeracy, cooking, access to 
debt advice, access to health visitor and midwife. Within the second building approved under 
application DCNC0009/1820/CD building there are also small business units/workshops for 
individuals to work from and a café. 

 

1.3  The original building granted under application DCNC2005/0062/F is restricted to use as a 
‘family centre, crèche and play group facilities and associated offices’. Condition 12 attached 
to the decision notice prevents the building being used for any other use in Class D of the 
schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987. The second most 
recent building granted under application DCNC0009/1820/CD is restricted to uses ancillary to 
the use of the existing premises on site (e.g. HOPE Family Centre). Both buildings have 
permission to be open to the public from 7am to 6pm on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank 
holidays, and 7am to 9pm on any other day. 

  

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

47



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

  Proposal 
 

1.4  This application proposes to vary condition 15 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD to 
allow the workshop on the ground floor to be used for A1 uses. The end workshop has already 
been converted into a hair salon, with the other units currently being used for furniture 
restoration, dress making, office space and a multi sensory room. Each work space has its 
own access and according to the design and access statement amount to 25% of the overall 
centre. 

 
1.5  Condition 15 of DCNC2009/1820/CD is as follows: 
 
  15. The areas depicted on the approved drawings for ‘work space’ shall only be used for 

purposes falling under the ambit of Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any 
statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification.  

 
  Reason: The local planning authority wish to control the specific use of the land/premises, in 

the interest of local amenity and to comply with Policy DR2 of Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 

1.6  The Council are currently considering two other applications to vary conditions 2 and 14 of 
permission DCNC0009/1820/CD. Condition 2 relates to use of part of the first floor as offices 
and 14 relates to the hours of opening. 

  
2. Policies  
 
2.1  National Planning Policy Framework 
 
  Paragraph 14 - The presumption in favour of sustainable development  
 

Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles – Design quality and character of an area and 
different roles and character of different area. Promoting the vitality of our main urban areas. 
 
Paragraphs 23-27 – Ensuring the vitality of town centres – applying a sequential test to 
planning applications for main town centres uses that are not in an existing centre and are not 
in accordance with an up-to-date plan – application for main town centre uses to be located in 
town centres, then in edge of centre locations and only if suitable sites are not available should 
out of centre sites be considered. 
 
Paragraph 196 - Determining applications – determination in accordance with the approved 
plan unless material conditions indicate otherwise. 

 

2.2  Herefordshire Place Shaping 2010 

Identifies Bromyard as having a vulnerable retail sector with above national average number of 
vacant shops. 

 

2.3  Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan: 

 

48



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
2.4 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 
 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1 DCNC2003/2440/F – Playground family centre crèche facility, associated offices and Wc.s 

Approved 2/12/2003. 
 

3.2  DCNC2004/1515/F – Variation to condition 3 of DCNC2003/2440/F re access. Approved 
12/7/2004. 

 

3.3  DCNC2005/0062/F – New build family centre. Approved 20/4/2005. 
 

3.4  DCNC2005/1790/F – Variation to condition 14 of DCNC2005/0062/F to extend opening hours 
of centre from 6pm to 9pm. Refused 14/9/2005. 

 

3.5  DCNC2006/0882/F – Variation to condition 14 of DCNC2005/0062/F to extend opening hours 
of centre from 6pm to 9pm. Approved 17/7/2006. 

 

3.6  DCNC0009/1820/CD – Proposed construction of phase 2 of the H.O.P.E family centre, 
development to include day care facilities, office space, workshop space, multi-use community 
space and café, with associated parking facilities. 

 

3.7  N102496/AM - Non material amendment to DCNC0009/1820/CD. Approved 18/2/2011. 
 

3.8  N111678/F – Variation to condition 14 of DCNC0009/1820/CD – no time restrictions on use of 
building so it can be used for charity functions and occasional training events. Withdrawn. 

 
4. Consultation Summary 
 
4.1 None 
 

Internal Council Advice 
 
4.2  Traffic Manager - ‘Given the number of objections received, and other observations, it appears 

that insufficient parking is available at this site to accommodate new activities not originally 

S1 - Sustainable Development 
S2 - Development Requirements 
S4 - Employment 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
E7 - Other employment proposals within and around Hereford and the market 

towns 
E8 - Design standards for employment sites 
E11 - Employment in the smaller settlements and open countryside 
TCR1 - Central shopping and commercial areas 
TCR2 - Vitality and viability 
T11 - Parking Provision 

49



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

proposed, both retail and office. Because of the insufficient parking, I cannot support the 
applications’. 

 
5. Representations 
 
5.1      Bromyard Town Council – Support the application. 
 
5.2  Avenbury Parish Council – Support the application. 
 
5.3  A representation against the proposal has been received from Malcolm Scott Planning 

Consultant on behalf of the occupiers of Touchwood, the residential properties which adjoins 
the site to the north. The representation covers all 3 applications currently being considered by 
the Local Planning Authority. The objections to this application are summarised below: 

 
1. Bromyard Town has a higher than average shop vacancy rate as identified in the   

Herefordshire’s Place Shaping 2010; 
2. Application will not help either the vitality and viability of Bromyard’s Town Centre; 
3. No sequential test has been provided or Impact Assessment; 
4. Application form states B1 use, however no information has been given; 
5. Insufficient information with the application to adequately determine the impact of the 

application on the surrounding area; 
6. Proposed development will impact upon the amenity of the adjoin property; 
7. No evidence of the need for A1 uses on the site; 
8. Proposal is inappropriate given the impact the individual proposal will have, and the 

precedent that it will have; 
9. The proposal will significantly alter the intended use of the site; 
10. The conditions area necessary to limit the impact on the immediate and wider area; 

and 
11. Retail development should be directed towards the town centre in first instance; 
   

5.4 A Design and Access Statement was submitted with the application confirming the proposal is 
to change the Workshops to A1 uses.  In summary it states: 

 
•   The development will help secure funding from the now defunct Advantage West Midlands 

– The centre put together a business case/plan demonstrating how they would 
sustain/fund their activities over future years, part of which was to let the work spacers. 

 
5.5  A further letter from Sheenagh Davies has been received during the application in support of 

the proposal. In summary it states that: 
 

  The proposed A1 use will complement and enhance the existing businesses within the town of 
Bromyard, 
 
• H.O.P.E. has a vested interest in ensuring the town centre thrives as it has three shops 

located on the high street. 
• The businesses are desk space for fledgling businesses with H.O.P.E. providing support - 

there is no facility for this in the town.  
• A number of the products made in the workshops are sold in the shops in town and 

therefore adds to the vitality and viability of the Town Centre 
• The hairdressers - Rebecca Seal - has come from Hereford bringing her clients with her, 

who now regularly shop in the town, whilst attracting new clients from across the county 
who also use the town e.g. when she has had a later appointment the client has asked 
where they can eat rather than going home. Rebecca has taken on a trainee from 
Bromyard. The H.O.P.E. Centre provides a flexible facility for Rebecca at a time when she 
is trying to establish a business and this type off assistance for fledgling business in not 
available elsewhere in the community. 

50



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

• H.O.P.E. provides opportunities for young people through the training, support and 
education projects which increase their confidence to start their own businesses in the 
small manageable units based within the Family Centre. 

 
 In addition to the letter a document showing a log of the Hairdressers clients has been 

submitted. The majority of those customers logged do not live in close proximity to the 
Centre. It identifies that they do use other shops and facilities in Bromyard Town. None of 
them identify that they are visiting the centre for another purpose. 

 
5.6 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 

link:- 
  

https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=123414 
 

Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
  

https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/contactus 
 
6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1  The main issue with the introduction of an A1 use on to the site is the effect it will have on the 

vitality and viability of Bromyard Town Centre. There is also the issue the effect the proposal 
would have on the level of the parking provision on the site. 

 
6.2  According to the design and access statement the proposed A1 uses would be in 25% of the 

existing phase 2 building on the site. The UDP policies S5, TCR1 and TCR2 have the 
objective of promoting the vitality and viability of town centres (including Bromyard).  Policy 
TCR2 states that to maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of town centres proposals 
for new shopping and commercial uses within part A of the Use Class Order will be directed to 
the central shopping and commercial areas. The proposed use of the existing work spaces to 
A1 uses is considered to divert expenditure away from the town centre and therefore 
undermine the vitality and viability of Bromyard town centre. 

 
6.3  The site currently has permission for use by the H.O.P.E charity as a family centre only and 

consists of a day care facility as well as providing adult courses and advise from specialists. A 
town centre location would offer greater opportunity for linked trips where people travel by car 
but then make other trips on foot. At this site, on the edge of town there is little opportunity to 
do this other than for those people using the family centre. 

 
6.4  The retail policies contained within the UDP have the objective of maintaining vibrant Town 

Centres by directing all retail uses to them. The application site is clearly an out of centre site 
being some 1.2km distant from the Town Centre and therefore its location is considered to 
divert expenditure away from the town centre. Whilst the proposal may be small in floor space 
terms in terms of expenditure and “trade draw” there is no evidence that its impact would be 
insignificant.  The Local Planning Authority argues that any such out-of-centre premises have 
a potentially negative impact upon the Town Centre and certainly if repeated by other such 
premises have a negative cumulative impact. 

 
6.5  It is noted that in an appeal relating to an application for a catering unit in the Homebase car 

park in Ledbury, the Planning Inspector agreed with the Council that whilst individually the 
effect of an A1 development on expenditure in the town centre could be relatively small is of 
little relevance, as the same argument could be made too often and, if successful, would 
cumulatively undermine the vitality and viability of the town centre. 

 

51



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

6.6  In conclusion the proposal to vary condition 14, to allow for A1 uses on site would undermine 
the vitality and viability of Bromyard Town Centre and is therefore counter to the aims of 
Policies S5, TCR1 and TCR2 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan. 

 
6.7  At the heart of the NPPF is the presumption in favour of sustainable development with the aim 

of locating development to locations that are readily accessible by modes of transport other 
than the private motor vehicle. This has the objective of reducing carbon emissions and 
ultimately responds to climate change. Also by grouping commercial developments together 
within a Town Centre, even if one travels to that Town Centre by car, one can then visit a 
range of facilities without re-using ones car.  In other words one travels to one destination for a 
variety of purposes.  From the log of customers which has been submitted it is clear that the 
majority are arriving by car and are not using any other facility within the building. It is possible 
that they are moving there vehicles on down into the town to visit the shops, but no evidence 
has been provided. 

  
6.8  The only other facility in the immediate vicinity is the Family Centre itself, whilst it is likely that 

a small number of the customers to the A1 use would also be using other facilities within the 
family centre, many existing and potential users are not.  In essence the A1 uses would 
become a destination in its own right primarily by persons using the private motor vehicle as 
their mode of transport. 

 
6.9  As a consequence it is submitted that the location of the proposed development would not 

assist in creating a sustainable pattern of development.  Indeed the reverse is the case; it 
would create an unsustainable pattern of development increasing reliance upon the use of the 
private motor vehicle. 

 
6.10  In conclusion, the proposal to vary condition 15 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD 

would potentially prejudice the vitality and viability of Bromyard Town Centre, contrary to 
policies S1, S5, TCR1 and TCR2 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan and 
guidance contained within chapter 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 
1. The proposed introduction of an A1 use in this out-of-town location would, in the 

opinion of the Local Planning Authority, potentially prejudice the vitality and viability of 
Bromyard Town Centre contrary to policies S1, S5, TCR1 and TCR2 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan and guidance contained within chapter 2 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework.  
 

2. The application has not demonstrated that there is adequate parking on site for the 
additional vehicles generated by the proposal.  As such the proposal fails to comply 
with Policy T11 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan. 
 

Informative: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 

application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other material 
considerations and identifying matters of concern with the proposal and discussing 
those with the applicant.  However, the issues are so fundamental to the proposal that it 
has not been possible to negotiate a satisfactory way forward and due to the harm 
which have been clearly identified within the reason(s) for the refusal, approval has not 
been possible. 

 
 

52



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

53



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 
  
APPLICATION NO:  N/123414/CD   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE,  

HR7 4QU 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

54



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF 
REPORT: 

123415/CD - VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 OF 
PLANNING PERMISSION DCNC0009/1820/CD AT 
HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, 
BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 

For: Herefordshire Council per Mr Robert Scott, 
Property Services, Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 0WZ 

WEBSITE LINK: https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=123415 

 
Date Received: 5 December 2012 Ward: Bromyard Grid Ref: 364451,253846 
Expiry Date: 8 May 2013  
Local Members: Councillors JG Lester and A Seldon  
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The Hope Family Centre is located to the west of the A465 (Hereford to Bromyard Road) just 

south of the settlement boundary of Bromyard. The ‘Top Garage’ and petrol station adjoins the 
site to the south, with the B4214 highway running alongside the western boundary. The 
residential property ‘Touchwood’ borders the site to the north. There are two buildings on the 
site, both used by the H.O.P.E charity as a family centre 

  
1.2 H.O.P.E stands for ‘Holistic Opportunities for Play and Education’ and was established in 1999 

with the aim of supporting local parents on low incomes and those facing particular 
disadvantage. The charity moved into the building, which is subject to this application, in 2006. 
They currently provide childcare for 0-5 year olds, adult education and individual family 
support. They run a number of adult courses, and provide access to debt advice, a health 
visitor and midwife. Within the second building approved under application 
DCNC0009/1820/CD there are also small business units/workshops for individuals to work 
from and also a café. 

 
1.3  The original building granted under application DCNC2005/0062/F is restricted to use as a 

‘family centre, crèche and play group facilities and associated offices’. Condition 12 attached 
to the decision notice prevents the building being used for any other use in Class D of the 
schedule of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987. The second most 
recent building granted under application DCNC0009/1820/CD, which is subject to this 
application, is restricted to uses ancillary to the use of the existing premises on site (e.g. 
HOPE Family Centre). Both buildings have permission to be open to the public from 7am to 
6pm on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank holidays, and 7am to 9pm on any other day. 

 
  Proposal 
 
1.4 This application proposes to vary condition 2 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD to 

allow the first floor of part of the second building to be used as a Multi Agency Office for 

AGENDA ITEM 9

55



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

Council Staff in connection with the Council’s policy for ‘better ways of working’.  The facility is 
aimed at Council employees living locally and will enable them to carry out their job without 
having to travel into Hereford. The area which is being proposed is approximately 189m². The 
Multi Agency Office will encompass the whole floor, including the Meeting Room, Interview 
Room and toilets. There are a total of 12 workstations available for Council staff. On average it 
is expected that 4-5 council staff use the facility daily. The use has been in operation for a 
while with users signing in/out at the main reception and access the facility via the Centres 
communal staircase. 

 
1.5  Condition 2 of DCNC2009/1820/CD is as follows: 
   

2. The use of the development hereby approved shall be strictly ancillary to the use of the 
existing premises on site (i.e. HOPE Family Centre). 

 
 Reason: To ensure that the development is in-keeping with the existing use on site and to 

comply with the requirements of Policy CF5 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 
Plan. 

 
2. Policies  
 
2.1  National Planning Policy Framework 
   

The overarching theme of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.   
 

Chapter 1 requires that the planning system supports sustainable economic growth, with the 
planning system acting to encourage not impede economic growth.   

 
Chapter 3 states that local plans should “support sustainable growth and expansion of all 
types of business and enterprise in rural areas…and promote the development and 
diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses.”  

 
Paragraph 187 confirms that decision takers at every level should ‘seek to approve 
applications for sustainable development’ where possible. 

  
2.2  Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan: 
   
  S1 - Sustainable Development 
  S2 - Development Requirements 
  S4 - Employment 
  DR1 - Design 
  DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
  DR3 - Movement 

  E7 - Other employment proposals within and around Hereford and the market 
  towns 

  E8 - Design standards for employment sites 
  E11  - Employment in the smaller settlements and open countryside 
  TCR10 -  Office Development 
  T11 - Parking Provision 
 
2.3 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 
 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 

56



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

3.1  DCNC2003/2440/F – Playground family centre crèche facility, associated offices and Wc.s 
Approved 2/12/2003. 

 
3.2  DCNC2004/1515/F – Variation to condition 3 of DCNC2003/2440/F re access. Approved 

12/7/2004. 
 
3.3  DCNC2005/0062/F – New build family centre. Approved 20/4/2005. 
 
3.4  DCNC2005/1790/F – Variation to condition 14 of DCNC2005/0062/F to extend opening hours 

of centre from 6pm to 9pm. Refused 14/9/2005 
 
3.5  DCNC2006/0882/F - Variation to condition 14 of DCNC2005/0062/F to extend opening hours 

of centre from 6pm to 9pm. Approved 17/7/2006 
 
3.6  DCNC0009/1820/CD – Proposed construction of phase 2 of the H.O.P.E family centre, 

development to include day care facilities, office space, workshop space, multi-use community 
space and café, with associated parking facilities. 

 
3.7  N102496/AM - Non material amendment to DCNC0009/1820/CD. Approved 18/2/2011 
 
3.8  N111678/F – Variation to condition 14 of DCNC0009/1820/CD – no time restrictions on use of 

building so it can be used for charity functions and occasional training events. Withdrawn. 
 
4. Consultation Summary 
 
  Statutory Consultations 
 
4.1  None. 
 
  Internal Council Advice 
 
4.2  Traffic Manager: ‘Given the number of objections received, and other observations, it appears 

that insufficient parking is available at this site to accommodate new activities not originally 
proposed, both retail and office. Because of the insufficient parking, I cannot support the 
applications’. 

 
5. Representations 
 
5.1  Bromyard Town Council – Support the application 
 
5.2  Avenbury Parish Council – Support the application 
 
5.3  A representation against the proposal has been received from Malcolm Scott Planning 

Consultant on behalf of the occupiers of Touchwood, the residential properties which adjoins 
the site to the north. The representation covers all 3 applications currently being considered by 
the Local Planning Authority. The objections to this application are summarised below: 
 
1. Proposal is inappropriate given the impact the individual proposal and the precedent that it 

will set; 
2. The proposal will significantly alter the intended use of the site; 
3. Condition 2 is the only control which the Local Planning Authority has to stop the site 

becoming an unrestricted out of town commercial centre; 
4. The conditions area necessary to limit the impact on the immediate and wider area. 
5. Does not accord with the current local or national planning policy (Policies S5, TCR1, 

TCR2, TCR9 and TCR10 of HUDP identified); 

57



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

6. If tie to H.O.P.E was not attached, an unrestricted planning permission would have been 
granted for town centre uses in an out of town location, therefore the is key in ensuring the 
development remain appropriate; 

7. Office development should be directed towards the town centre in first instance; 
8. No information in relation to a sequential test; 
9. A full Impact Assessment should be carried out; and 
10. Condition 2 is already being breached as café being advertised independent of the 

H.O.P.E centre.  
 
5.4  A Design and Access Statement was submitted with the application.  In summary this states: 
 

1. The facility will provide desk spaces with access to the Council’s Intranet and email for 
Council employees living locally to carry out their job without having to travel to Hereford. 

2. The Council has adopted a better ways of working policy to free up desk space in the main 
offices and promote sustainable working/travel. 

3. Users of the office are able to use the other facilities in the Hope Centre, such as the café 
and toilet. 

 
5.5 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 

link:- 
 
 https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=123415 
 

Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
 

  https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/contactus 
 

6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1  DCNC0009/1820/CD granted permission for  a new building to be used by the  H.O.P.E family 

centre as a day care facilities with  office space, workshop space, multi-use community space, 
café and associated parking facilities. Condition 2 attached to the decision restricted the use of 
the development for ancillary uses to the HOPE Family Centre. The reason for the condition 
was to ensure that the development was in-keeping with the existing use on site and to comply 
with the requirements of Policy CF5 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan. 

 
6.2  This application proposes to vary condition 2 to allow the open plan offices approved in the 

first floor of the western part of the building to be used as a multi agency office for Council 
Employees to access their  work as part of the Council ‘better ways of working policy’.  The 
area was always intended to be used as an open plan office, but as part of the H.O.P.E Centre 
and the families they support. 

 
6.3  Policy E7 within the UDP sets the provision for ‘other employment proposals within and 

around Hereford and the market towns’. The use being proposed, a Local Authority Multi 
Agency Office falls under part B1 of the use class order. In the supporting text of the UDP in 
paragraph 6.5.2  it is recognised that not all employment generating uses within Part B of the 
Use Class Order needs to be located within employment areas, and can offer a viable use for 
previously developed land and buildings within urban areas. In exceptional circumstances 
previously developed land which lies outside but adjacent to the settlement boundary of 
market towns may be considered. 

 
6.4  However the UDP also seeks to protect and enhance the vitality and viability of the Market 

Towns Centres, and within policy E7 it states that proposals for employment generating uses 
within and around Hereford and the market towns will be permitted where there are no other 
suitable sites or premises available within existing and proposed employment areas or within 
the settlement. This is carried through in paragraphs 24-28 of the NPPF which advises that 

58



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

applications for retail, leisure and office developments outside of town centres, which are not 
in accordance with an up-to date Local Plan, should require an impact assessment to assess 
the impact on the Town centre vitality and viability. 

 
6.5  Policy TCR10 in the UDP deals more specifically with office development and does not 

encourage office development within the open countryside. The policy also requires that 
development is easily assessable to customers and staff by a choice of modes of transport 
and will not lead to an increase in the use of the private car.  

 
6.6  It is acknowledged that the B1 use which is being proposed is fairly unusual. It is aimed not 

only at Council employees living within Bromyard Town but those living in the many rural 
villages and communities which surround it. Whilst it’s overall aim is to reduce the need to 
travel into the Hereford, in all likeliness employees using the facility are likely to arrive by car. 

 
6.7  At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, with the aim 

of locating developments in locations that are readily accessible by modes of transport other 
than the private motor vehicle. This has the objective of reducing carbon emissions and 
ultimately responds to climate change. Also by grouping commercial developments together 
within a Town Centre, even if one travels to that Town Centre by car, one can then visit a 
range of facilities without re-using ones car.  In other words one travels to one destination for a 
variety of purposes.   

 
6.8  The only other facilities in the immediate vicinity of the Family Centre is the adjoining petrol 

station. Whilst some Council employees using the proposed offices may use such a facility, 
many potential users would not.  In essence the Multi Agency Office would become a 
destination in its own right largely primarily by persons using the private motor vehicle as their 
mode of transport. 

 
6.9  As a consequence it is submitted that the location of the proposed development would not 

assist in creating a sustainable pattern of development.  Indeed the reverse is the case; it 
would create an unsustainable pattern of development increasing reliance upon the use of the 
private motor vehicle. 

 
6.10  In has been noted on visits to the site that although a sizable amount of parking is provided it 

is often used to its full capacity. Parking has also been noted as a concern by the adjoin 
neighbour. The proposal could on average allow for a further 6 cars to the site, if not more, In 
the absence of any details of a travel plan for staff or of existing or proposed parking, I can not 
conclude that there is a suitable provision of car parking on the site. The application is 
therefore contrary to policy T11 of the UDP that states that proposals should incorporate 
suitable parking provision for car parking. 

 
6.11 Condition 2 was attached to the DCNC0009/1820/CD application to ensure the development 

and facility was used for the function that it was intended to fulfil - as a community facility 
appropriate in scale to the needs of the local community which it serves and to ensure that it 
was in keeping with the existing use on site. The introduction of a B1 office use, which has no 
connection with the H.O.P.E Family Centre, is not considered to be in keeping with the 
existing use on the site. The proposal is considered contrary to policies E7 and TCR10 of the 
HUDP as the site is detached from the central shopping and commercial areas of Bromyard. 
Furthermore it has not been demonstrate that there are no other suitable sites or premises 
available within existing employment areas or the settlement boundary or that there is 
adequate parking provision within the site for the proposed use. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 

59



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

1. The proposal to vary condition 2 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD to 
allow part of the building to be used as a multi agency office by Council employees 
is considered contrary to policies TCR10 and E7 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan as the site is detached from the central shopping and 
commercial areas of Bromyard. Furthermore it has not been demonstrated that 
there are no other suitable sites or premises available within existing employment 
areas or within the settlement boundary. The application is therefore contrary to the 
advice set out in paragraphs 24-28 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 

2. The proposed B1 Multi Agency Office in an out-of-centre location would, in the 
opinion of the Local Planning Authority, potentially prejudice the vitality and 
viability of Bromyard Town Centre contrary to policies S5, TCR1 and TCR2 of the 
Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007.  
 

3. The application has not demonstrated that there is adequate parking at the site for 
the additional vehicles generated by the proposal. As such the proposal fails to 
comply with Policy T11 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.  
 

Reason for Refusal: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 

this application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other 
material considerations by identifying matters of concern with the proposal and 
discussing those with the Applicant.  Unfortunately, it has not been possible to 
resolve those matters within the timescale allocated for the determination of this 
planning application.  However, the Local Planning Authority has clearly set out, 
within its report, the steps necessary to remedy the harm identified within the 
reasons for refusal – which may lead to the submission of a more acceptable 
proposal in the future.  The Local Planning Authority is willing to provide pre-
application advice in respect of any future application for a revised development.   

 
 
 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

60



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 

 
 
 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 
  
APPLICATION NO:  /123415/CD   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

61



62



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 May 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: 123428/CD - VARIATION OF CONDITION 14 OF 
PLANNING PERMISSION DCNC0009/1820/CD AT 
HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, 
BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 

For: Mrs Davis, Hope Family Centre per Mr Robert 
Scott, Property Services, Plough Lane, Hereford, 
HR4 0WZ 

WEBSITE LINK: https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=123428 

 
Date Received: 5 December 2012 Ward: Bromyard Grid Ref: 364451,253846 
Expiry Date: 8 May 2013  
Local Members: Councillors  JG Lester and  A Seldon 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1  The Hope Family Centre is located to the west of the A465 (Hereford to Bomyard Road) just 

south of the settlement boundary of Bromyard. The ‘Top Garage’ and petrol station adjoins the 
site to the south, with the B4214 highway running alongside the western boundary. The 
residential property Touchwood borders the site to the north. There are two buildings on the site, 
both used by the H.O.P.E charity. 

 
1.2 The original building granted under application DCNC2005/0062/F is restricted to use as a ‘family 

centre, crèche and play group facilities and associated offices’. Condition 12 attached to the 
decision notice prevents the building being used for any other use in Class D of the schedule to 
the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987. The second most recent building 
granted under application DCNC0009/1820/CD is restricted to uses ancillary to the use of the 
existing premises on site (e.g. HOPE Family Centre). Both buildings have permission to be open 
to the public from 7am to 6pm on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank holidays, and 7am to 9pm on 
any other day. 

 
Proposal 

 
1.3 This application proposes to vary condition 14 of planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD to 

extend the hours of opening of part of the building from 07:00 to 22:30, seven days a week. 
According to the design and access statement which accompanies the application the extended 
hours will assist the Charity in securing funding by letting the Multi Use Room and Café to local 
clubs and societies. 

 
1.4  Condition 14 of DCNC2009/1820/CD is as follows: 
 

Unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the premises shall not be 
open to the public outside the hours of:- 

AGENDA ITEM 10

63



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 
07:00 hours to 18:00 hours on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank or other public holidays. 
07:00 hours to 21:00 hours on any other day. 

 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity in the locality and in accordance with Policy DR1 
of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.  

 
1.5  The Council are currently considering two other applications to vary conditions 2 and 15 of 

permission DCNC0009/1820/CD. Condition 2 relates to the overall use of the building as ancillary 
to the Hope Family Centre and 15 to areas used for work space. 

  
2. Policies  
 
2.1 National Planning Policy Framework 
 

Chapter 1 - Building a strong, competitive economy 
Chapter 2  - Ensuring the vitality of town centres 
Chapter 4 - Promoting sustainable transport 

  
2.2 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan: 
 

S1 - Sustainable Development 
S2 - Development Requirements 
S4 - Employment 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR14 - Noise 
E7 - Other employment proposals within and around Hereford and the market towns 
E8 - Design standards for employment sites 
E11  - Employment in the smaller settlements and open countryside 
CF5  - New Community Facilities 
TCR10 - Office Development 
T11 - Parking Provision 
CF5  -  New Community Facilities 

 
2.3 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 
 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1 DCNC2003/2440/F – Playground family centre crèche facility, associated offices and Wc.s 

Approved 2/12/2003. 
 
3.2  DCNC2004/1515/F – Variation to condition 3 of DCNC2003/2440/F re access. Approved 

12/7/2004. 
 
3.3 DCNC2005/0062/F – New build family centre. Approved 20/4/2005. 
 
3.4 DCNC2005/1790/F – Variation to condition 14 of DCNC2005/0062/F to extend opening hours of 

centre from 6pm to 9pm. Refused 14/9/2005. 
 
3.5 DCNC2006/0882/F - Variation to condition 14 of DCNC2005/0062/F to extend opening hours of 

centre from 6pm to 9pm. Approved 17/7/2006. 

64



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 
3.6 DCNC0009/1820/CD – Proposed construction of phase 2 of the H.O.P.E family centre, 

development to include day care facilities, office space, workshop space, multi-use community 
space and café, with associated parking facilities. 

 
3.7 N102496/AM- Non material amendment to DCNC0009/1820/CD. Approved 18/2/2011. 
 
3.8 N111678/F – Variation to condition 14 of DCNC0009/1820/CD – no time restrictions on use of 

building so it can be used for charity functions and occasional training events. Withdrawn. 
  
4. Consultation Summary 
 
 Statutory Consultations 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 Internal Council Advice 
 
4.2  Traffic Manager: No objection . 
 
4.3 Environmental Health: No objection to the request to extend business hours in respect of the 

specific use as described. 
  
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Bromyard Town Council – Support the application. 
 
5.2 Avenbury Parish Council – Support the application. 
 
5.3 A representation against the proposal has been received from Malcolm Scott Planning 

Consultant on behalf of the occupiers of Touchwood, the residential properties which adjoins the 
site to the north. The representation covers all 3 applications currently being considered by the 
Local Planning Authority. The objections to this application are summarised below: 

 
• Potential that the extended hours will reduce the vitality of Bromyard; 
• No evidence has been provided regarding the difference such funding will have or why the 

funding can not take place during the present hours; 
• Existing hours of use are already in excess of those originally granted; 
• Use for the site appears to be intensifying and changing without a full explanation or 

justification; 
• No explanation as to how the extended hours will benefit the Centre, other then funding; 
• Concerned that the extension of hours will generate inappropriate use of the centre; 
• Noise generated by increase in hours will harm the amenity of the neighbour; 
• Proposal will have a significant impact on the character and noise level in the area; 
• Area is a quite, tranquil part of Bromyard at night with very low noise levels and artificial 

lighting; 
• Proposal contrary to relevant policies in the UDP; 
• The centre has already breached the operating hours concern that allowing evening functions 

will go on later than 1030pm; and 
• Inadequate parking for functions. 

 
5.4 A Design and Access Statement was submitted with the application.  In summary this states: 
 

• The Hope Family Centre in order to secure funding from the now defunct Advantage West 
Midlands put together a  business case/plan demonstrating they would fund/sustain their 

65



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

activities over future years, Part of this plan involved an income from letting the Multi Use 
Room and Café to local clubs and societies. 

 
• The Café and Dining area will be available for meetings, seminars and conferences 

 
5.5 A letter from Sheenagh Davies CEO of H.O.P.E has clarified that the meetings/events which will 

take place past 21:00 will be occasional and for community organisations and groups.  At most is 
in envisaged the café and Multi Use room will be rented out twice a week.    

 
5.6 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 
 http://news.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/searchplanningapplications.aspx 
 

Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
 https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/government-citizens-and-rights/complaints-and-compliments/contact 
 details/?q=customer%20services&type=suggestedpage 
 

6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 DCNC0009/1820/CD granted permission for a new building to be used by the H.O.P.E family 

centre as a day care facility with office space, workshop space, multi-use community space and 
café, with associated parking facilities. Condition 14 attached to the decision controls the hours of 
use of the building. This application seeks permission to extend the use of the café and multi-use 
room to 22:30.  

 
6.2  The key consideration of this application is whether the increase in opening hours to 22:30, 

seven days a week, will cause a significant increase in detriment to the amenity of the adjoining 
residential property to warrant the refusal of this application, and whether there is sufficient 
justification for the extension of hours. 

 
6.3  The permitted use of the building is controlled under condition 2 which states that the ‘use of the 

development ….shall be strictly ancillary to the use of the existing premises (HOPE family 
centre)’. From the information submitted with the application the extension of hours is needed to 
enable the multi use room and cafe to be rented out to provide an income for the charity. 

 
6.4  The letter of objection which has been received on behalf of the adjoining neighbour raises 

concerns about this extended period of use. Partly because of the lack of information submitted 
in support of the proposal and the concern that the use of the site is both intensifying and 
changing and not connected directly with the H.O.P.E family centre. The previous application to 
extend the hours to 21:00 was considered acceptable at it was a continuation of the H.O.P.E 
family centre allowing adult lessons/course to run in the evenings. 

 
6.5  The Environmental Health Officer considered the extension of hours reasonable given the 

specific intended use. The increase in activity proposed is not considered to cause significant 
disturbance with regards to noise and therefore will not be of detriment to the neighbouring 
residents. The use of the Multi Use room till 22:30 Monday to Saturday for meetings/seminars is 
considered to be acceptable in that it will have limited impact on the adjoining neighbour with 
regards to noise and disturbance and would not harm the character or the existing use of the site 
as a D1 use. However the use of the building on a Sunday and on Bank holidays past the 
permitted 18:00 is of concern in relation to the residential amenity of the adjoining neighbour and 
considered would be of detriment in relation to noise and general activity. 

 
6.6  The objectors have questioned the need to extend opening hours, referring to other buildings that 

can provide facilities for evening classes. Whilst it is acknowledged that there are other buildings 
within the locality which may well be available for evening use, it is not the role of the planning 
system to limit availability on such a basis. 

 

66



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

6.7  As part of the application it has been requested that the café is also granted permission to be 
open until 22:30. The café has permission to be used until 21:00 and must be ancillary to that of 
the existing use on site e.g. to the H.O.P.E family centre.  From the information that has been 
submitted, the kitchen and dining area are themselves intended to be rented out to groups. There 
is no evidence to suggest that the café will be open independently or when there is not a meeting 
taking place. I’m satisfied that appropriate conditions can be attached to a decision to ensure that 
the use of the café remains ancillary to the existing use on site and does not become a separate 
A3 enterprise. 

 
6.8  It is therefore concluded that the variation to condition 14 of planning permission 

DCNC0009/1820/CD to allow the multi use room and café to be used until 22:30 on Monday to 
Saturdays by local groups within the local community to hold meetings is considered to be 
acceptable and will not significantly harm the amenity of the adjoining neighbouring property and 
is recommended for approval.   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That condition 14 of the planning permission DCNC0009/1820/CD be varied as follows: 
 
1 The permission hereby granted is an amendment to planning permission 

DCNC0009/1820/CD dated 10 November 2010 and, otherwise than is altered by this 
permission, the development shall be carried out in accordance with that planning 
permission and the conditions attached thereto. 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to comply with the requirements of Policy DRl of 
the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan. 

 
2.  Unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the premises 

shall not be open to the public outside the hours of:- 
 

07.00 hours to 18.00 hours on Sundays and Bank or other public holidays. 
07.00 hours to 2230 hours on any other day. 

 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity in the locality and in accordance with Policy 
DR1 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.  

 
3. The café and kitchen within the building shall not be open independently past 21.00 and 

shall only be used ancillary to the use of the existing premises on site. 
 

Reason: To ensure the development is in-keeping with the existing use on site and to 
comply with the requirements of Policy CF5 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 
Plan 

 
Reason for Approval: 
 
1. The application was considered against the background of seeking to protect and 

maintain the exisiting residential amenitiy and character within the area. The Local 
Planning Authority considered that the  variations in the planning condition would not 
adversely affect residential Amenity by way of noise nor cause light pollution. As such, 
the proposal is considered to comply with the provisions of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan 2007and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

 
 
Informative: 
 

67



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other material 
considerations, including any representations that have been received. It has 
subsequently determined to grant planning permission in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning 
Policy Framework.   

 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Ms R Jenman on 01432 261961 
PF2 
 

 
This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  
APPLICATION NO:  123428/CD   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised reproduction 
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

69



70



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: 130191/O - OUTLINE FOR THE ERECTION OF ONE 
SINGLE STOREY DWELLING AND DOUBLE 
GARAGE WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED  AT 
LAND ADJACENT HARWELL, BRAMPTON 
ABBOTS, ROSS ON WYE, HR9 7JD 

For: Mr & Mrs Snell per Mr Simon Snell, 
Eglosderry, Merrymeeting, Gwennap, Redruth  
Cornwall, TR16 6BL 

WEBSITE LINK: https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=130191 

 
Date Received: 23 January 2013 Ward: Old Gore Grid Ref: 360215,226823 
Expiry Date: 20 March 2013  
Local Member: Councillor BA Durkin 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The application site lies on the western side of a narrow lane in the village of Brampton 

Abbots. The site has a width of some 26 metres and a depth of some 39 metres. Thus, the site 
has an area of some 0.1 hectare. The site is higher than the road and the pair of semi-
detached houses opposite (including ‘Abbey Haven’). Either side of the application site are 
detached single storey bungalows. The distance between the southern flank wall of Harwell 
and the northern flank wall of ‘Hatchers’ is approximately 35 metres. Upon the site are two 
trees that are worthy of retention, an apple tree and an ash tree which is on the frontage. 

 
1.2 The site lies within the Wye Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). It should be 

noted that the lane is also a public right of way.  
 

The application is made in outline. The proposal is to erect a single storey dwellinghouse and 
double garage. All matters ((i.e. layout, design, appearance and landscaping) are reserved for 
future consideration. 

  
2. Policies  
 
2.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 
 

Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007 
 
S1 -  Sustainable Development 
S2 -  Development Requirements 
DR1 -  Design 
DR2 -  Land use and activity 
DR3 -  Movement 

AGENDA ITEM 11

71



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

S3 -  Housing 
H7 -  Housing in the countryside outside settlements 
S6 -  Transport 
T11 -  Parking Provision 
S7 -  Natural and Historic Heritage 
LA1 -  Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
LA5 -  Protection of trees, woodlands and hedgerows 
HBA9 -  Protection of open areas and green spaces 
NC1 -  Biodiversity and development 
NC6 -  Biodiversity Action Plan priority habitats and species 
NC7 -  Compensation for loss of bio-diversity 
NC8 -  Habitat creation, restoration and enhancement 
NC9 -  Management of features of the landscape important for fauna and flora 

 
2.2 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 
 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1 S120304/O – Outline application for erection of one single storey dwelling and double garage 

with all matters reserved – Application WITHDRAWN 
 
4. Consultation Summary 
 
 Statutory Consultees 
 

4.1 Welsh Water does not raise any objections. 
 
 Internal Consultees 
 
4.2 The Public Rights of Way Section has no objections. 
 
4.3 The Conservation Manager - Landscape – Her views are contained within the appraisal 

section of this report. 
 
4.4    The Planning Ecologist has no objections to the proposal. If planning permission were to be 

granted condition(s) would be required to secure implementation of the recommendations in 
the ecological report, retention of the Ash tree & apple tree and further details of the mixed, 
native hedgerow planting along the field boundary of the site. 

 
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Brampton Abbots Parish Council has no objection to the proposed development. 
 
5.2 Letters of support have been received from the occupiers of five dwellings (‘Follys End’, 

‘Stonegate’, ‘The Mallards’, ‘The Beeches’ and ‘Townsend Cottage’) on the following 
summarised grounds:- 
 

• The site is a logical infill 

• The site is of no real merit 

• The proposal, being single storey only, is sympathetic 

72



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

5.3 An agent acting for the occupiers of ‘Abbey Haven’ object on the following summarised 
grounds:- 

 
• The proposal is clearly contrary to policy H7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 

Plan 2007 and as such represents unjustified new residential development in the open 
countryside; 

• The site location of the site is such that the proposal would create an unsustainable 
pattern of development with the future occupiers of the bungalow being highly 
dependent upon the use of the private motor vehicle; 

• The development would have a negative landscape impact contrary to policies LA1 
and HBA9 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007; 

• The proposal would have a negative impact upon the amenities of the occupiers of 
‘Abbey Haven’ and ‘Townsend Cottage’ by way of overlooking. This is exacerbated by 
the fact that the site is some 1.4 metres higher than the lane; and 

• Ecology and bio-diversity matters have not been satisfactorily addressed. 

 
5.7 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 

link:- 
 

https://beta.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/development-control/search- and-comment-on-
planning-applications/ 

 
Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
 
https://beta.herefordshire.gov.uk/contactus 

 
 
6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
 Principle of development 
 
6.1 The application site lies outside of Hereford City, the market towns and any of the defined 

main villages (i.e. this listed in policy H4 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 
Furthermore Brampton Abbots is not listed as one of the smaller settlements in policy H6 of 
the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007 where infill development is permitted 
(subject to certain criteria being met). As such the application site within the open countryside 
in planning policy terms.  Policy H7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007 
essentially establishes a presumption against new residential development in the open 
countryside. Whilst that policy provides for seven specified exceptions, none apply to this 
particular case. As a consequence, it is considered that the proposal is contrary to policy H7 of 
the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. The Draft Core Strategy currently has no 
weight attached to it. It may be the case that the Core Strategy allows for a degree of housing 
development in Brampton Abbots but to permit such a scheme now on the basis of a policy 
that may emerge would not be appropriate. 

 
Sustainability of location 
 

6.2 It is considered that the application site is not in a sustainable location. Whilst Brampton 
Abbots has a few facilities (i.e. a village hall, a private children’s nursery and a church), it does 
not have a range of community facilities (e.g. employment, retail, community facilities).  

 

73



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

6.3 Brampton Abbots is poorly served by public transport.  Whilst there is a school bus service on 
Mondays to Fridays during term time, the only other service is a Thursday service. It is 
basically a market day service 459 which operates only on a Thursday and provides a journey 
to Ross at 1055 returning from Ross at 1335. Brampton Abbotts has a very low level of service 
to Ross. 

 
6.4 It is accepted that the site is within reasonably cycling distance of Ross-On-Wye being some 

0.9 mile from the rear of the Overross Industrial Estate, some 1.6 miles to the edge of Ross 
Town Centre and 2 miles from Ross Market Hall.  The Primary School is some 1.2 miles 
distant and the Secondary School some 1.3 miles. 

 
6.5 However, the site is not considered to be within easy and safe walking distance of Ross-On-

Wye due to the distance involved, the lack of a dedicated footway and the lack of street 
lighting. 

 
6.6 There are no pedestrian facilities that would enable safe walking from Brampton Abbotts to 

Ross. The C1273 is a busy road with tight bends and limited forward visibility. It is considered 
that the location is suitable for cyclists but this is not suitable for pedestrians, let alone 
children. 

 
6.7 Thus, it is concluded that the location of the application site is physically remote from 

employment, retail, leisure and community facilities. Furthermore the site is poorly served by 
modes of transport other than the private motor vehicle and the bicycle. As such, the proposal 
would create an unsustainable pattern of development that would increase reliance on the 
private motor vehicle. As a consequence the proposal is considered to be contrary to the 
Central Government advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (March 
2012) and policies S1, S2, S3, DR2 and DR3 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
2007. 

 
Landscape Impact 
 

6.8 The site falls within the Wye Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The 
landscape character type is “Principal Settled Farmlands”. The access road is a designated 
public footpath. Interestingly, the buildings on the eastern side of the road, opposite the site, 
are shown on historic maps (approx. 1880). 

 
6.9 The site is currently unused and appears to be relatively unmanaged. It is considered that this 

open space provides a valuable small gap in an otherwise continuous linear development. It 
does, to a degree, provide the setting for the historic buildings on the eastern side of the 
access road. It also provides a view out of the settlement towards the attractive landscape of 
the Area of Outstanding Beauty. It is considered that the loss of this open space would have a 
negative impact on the landscape contrary to policies LA1 and HBA9 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan 2007. 

 
Ecology/Bio-Diversity 
 

6.10 It is considered that the ecological/bio-diversity issues have been satisfactorily addressed. No 
evidence of reptiles has been found. There is one apple tree on-site that could support bat 
roosting. However, the intention is to retain and protect the tree during the construction phase, 
if planning permission were to be granted. 

 
6.11 Therefore it is considered that the proposal is contrary to the provisions of the Development 

Plan in terms of the principle of developing within the open countryside, the unsustainable 
location and the landscape impact. The issue then arises as to whether there are any “other 
material planning considerations” that would justify another decision being made. 

 

74



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

Housing Land Supply 
 

6.12 There is a shortfall in the Council’s five year housing land supply. As such, the Local Planning 
Authority needs to address that shortfall. However, that does not mean allowing 
dwellinghouses anywhere at any environmental cost. Such new dwellinghouses should be in 
sustainable locations. As a consequence the approach adopted by the Council has been to 
look more favourably on sites adjacent to Hereford, the market towns and main villages (i.e. 
those listed in policy H4 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007). Brampton 
Abbots is not one of the main settlements and is not considered to be in a sustainable 
location. 

 
Impact upon Residential Amenity 
 

6.13 This is an outline application with all matters reserved. However, notwithstanding the fact that 
dwellings to the east of the road are set at a lower level, it is considered that a design could be 
achieved that ensures that there would be no undue loss of privacy and sunlight and/or 
daylight to occupiers of other existing dwellinghouses in the immediate area. 

 
6.14 Therefore on balance I recommend that permission be refused.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Planning Permission be REFUSED on the following grounds:- 
 

1. The proposal involves the provision of an additional new dwellinghouse in the 
countryside contrary to policy H7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007. 

2. The application site is physically remote from employment, retail, leisure and 
community facilities. Furthermore the site is poorly served by modes of transport other 
than the private motor vehicle and the bicycle. As such, the proposal would create an 
unsustainable pattern of development that would increase reliance on the private motor 
vehicle. As a consequence the proposal is considered to be contrary to the Central 
Government advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (March 
2012) and policies S1, S2, S3, DR2 and DR3 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 
Plan 2007. 

3. The proposed development would result in the loss of a visually important open space 
which provides a valuable gap in an otherwise continuous linear development which 
provides a setting to the historic buildings to the east and provides a public view out of 
the settlement towards the attractive landscape of the Area of Outstanding Beauty. It is 
considered that the loss of this open space would have a negative impact on the 
landscape contrary to policies LA1 and HBA9 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 
Plan 2007. 

Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

75



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803 
PF2 
 

 
 
 

 
This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  
APPLICATION NO:  130191/O   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  LAND ADJACENT HARWELL, BRAMPTON ABBOTS, ROSS ON WYE,     
 HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 7JD 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

76



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF 
REPORT: 

S123565/F - ERECTION OF 12 NO. AFFORDABLE UNITS 
WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, LANDSCAPING AND 
ALLOTMENTS AT SUFTON RISE, MORDIFORD, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 4EN 

For: West Mercia Housing Group per Quattro Design 
Architects Ltd., Imperial Chambers, Longsmith Street, 
Gloucester, Gloucestershire, GL1 2HT 

WEBSITE LINK: http://news.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/58286.aspx?ID=123565&NoSea
rch=True 

 
Date Received: 21 December 2012 Ward: Backbury Grid Ref: 357309,238666 
Expiry Date: 22 March 2013  
Local Member: Councillor J Hardwick  
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 12 affordable houses, allotments 

and play area on land adjoining Sufton Rise, Mordiford.  Sufton Rise is a mid-twentieth century 
residential development located 1km north of Mordiford village on the C1292 that connects 
Mordiford with Dormington.   There is a footpath linking Sufton Rise to Mordiford. 
 

1.2 The application seeks to address the bulk of the need for affordable housing within the parish, 
which has been assessed as 16 units in total.  This site has been chosen following an 
assessment of alternatives closer to the built up part of Mordiford village, which have been 
discounted owing to conservation constraints, access and/or flooding. 

 
1.3 The site is grazing land with a field gate access onto the C1292.  The site rises up to the east 

as does Sufton Rise.   The layout is arranged around the play area and allotments, which run 
parallel with the boundary to Sufton Rise, with the effect that the dwellings are well removed 
from existing properties in Sufton Rise.  On the road frontage a terrace of three bungalows is 
proposed.  Parallel to the northern boundary and running up-slope from the entrance are two 
semi-detached buildings and a terrace of three properties. 

 
1.4 The overall housing mix reflects the needs assessment and comprises 2 & 3 bedroom 

bungalows, flats and houses.  The application is the result of a long consultative process with 
early engagement of the Parish Council and local residents.  This process has helped inform 
the eventual layout. 
 

1.5 The dwellings are traditional in appearance and constructed in brick and reconstituted stone.  
There is parking within the curtilage of each dwelling, but also additional parking for allotment 
users with some parking also available as an over-spill from Sufton Rise. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 12

77



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

1.6 The site is within the Wye Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  The application 
has been screened against the Habitat Regulations, which concludes that there will be no 
likely significant effects on the River Wye SAC/SSSI.  

 
1.7 It is proposed that the developer would equip the play area and that the Parish Council will 

administer the allotments.  The application is accompanied by a Design and Access 
Statement, Landscape Management Plan and Drainage Strategy. 

  
2. Policies  
 
2.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

Paragraph 7 – the three dimensions to sustainable development 
Paragraph 11 – The principle in favour of sustainable development 
Chapter 6 – Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
Chapter 7 – Requiring good design 
Chapter 8 – Promoting healthy communities 
Chapter 11 – Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 
2.2 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan: 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 Dormington, Mordiford, Checkley and Priors Frome Parish Plan 2007. 
 
2.4 Dormington and Mordiford Group Parish Housing Needs Survey 2009  
 
2.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance:  Provision of Affordable Housing (updated Nov 2004).

  
 
2.6 The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 

S1 - Sutainable Development 
S2 - Development Requirements 
S7 - Natural and Historic Heritage 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR5 - Planning Obligations 
H6 - Housing in Smaller Settlements 
H7 - Housing in the Countryside Outside Settlements 
H9 - Affordable Housing 
H10 - Rural Exception Housing 
H13 - Sustainable Residential design 
H15 - Density 
H16 - Car Parking 
H19 - Open Space Requirements 
LA1 - Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
LA4 - Protection of Historic Parks and Gardens 
LA5 - Protection of Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
LA6 - Landscaping Schemes 
NC1 - Biodiversity and development 
NC6   - Biodiversity Action Plan priority habitats and species 
NC7 - Compensation for loss of biodiversity 
NC8 - Habitat creation, restoration and enhancement  
CF5 - New Community Facilities 

78



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1 Adjoining land to the east: DCCE2003/3411/F – Change of use to form children’s play area:  

Approved.  This play area has never been equipped.  The current application would, in effect, 
supersede this permission. 

 
4. Consultation Summary 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 

4.1  Natural England:  Natural England advises your authority that the proposal, if undertaken in 
strict accordance with the details submitted, is not likely to have a significant effect on the 
interest features for which the River Wye SAC has been classified. Natural England therefore 
advises that your Authority is not required to undertake an Appropriate Assessment to assess 
the implications of this proposal on the site’s conservation objectives. 

 
Internal Consultees 

 
4.2  Housing Needs Manager:  Housing Needs and Development are in support of the application. 

 
Detailed consultation has taken place with parishioners, residents and the parish council in 
relation to this scheme. Discussions have taken place relative to reducing the impact on the 
existing housing as well as providing a pathway and additional parking for residents of Sufton 
Rise to help alleviate parking issues in Sufton Rise. 

 
A housing need survey has been carried out within the parish and a need for 16 additional 
dwellings was established. 

 
These units will be built to the Homes and Communities Agency Design and Quality Standards 
and code 3 for the Code for Sustainable Homes. There will be a S106 ensuring that the units 
are affordable in perpetuity and that the dwellings are allocated to local people in housing 
need. 
 

4.3  Transportation Manager:  In the event that planning permission is granted the Transportation 
Manager recommends conditions.  Further comments are summarised below: 
Concern is expressed regarding the location and sustainability of the development which is 
1.3km from the village centre and facilities such as the primary school and public house, with 
only a narrow footway immediately adjoining the C1262 carriageway which is de-restricted and 
has fast moving traffic. Consideration should be given to improving this footway.  
The submitted Access Review (Hurlstone Associates) details the vehicle flows, speeds and 
accident record in the vicinity. No accidents have occurred as a result of turning vehicles from 
Sufton Rise and full visibility can be achieved for the proposed access. Whilst concerned at 
the addition of a further access road along this straight stretch of C1262, the Traffic Manager 
does not consider there to be grounds for a refusal of the application on highway safety 
grounds. Additional signing or alterations to existing signing will be required and this should be 
at the developer’s expense and can be finalised as part of the Section 38 works. 

 
It is concluded that adequate visibility can be achieved without significant hedgerow removal 
although this will require careful maintenance of the existing hedge so as to maintain the splay 
and allow seasonal growth of the hedge without reducing visibility. 

 

79



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

The footway on the east side of C1262, linking the development to Sufton Rise and the 
proposed crossing point, is narrow and should be 2.0m minimum. This footway will require 
piping of the existing roadside ditch. Kerb radii with C1262 should preferably be 10m. 

  
The proposed level of parking provision is acceptable.  

 
           The separation of highway and private surface water drainage for the development, which is 

shown as a joint system with one attenuation feature, will not be acceptable if the roads on the 
development are to be adopted. I understand this matter is currently being addressed, and 
would be agreeable to it being conditioned if it is not resolved prior to determination.  

 
4.4  Conservation Manager (Landscapes):  The site is within the Wye Valley AONB.  It is also 

included within the Old Sufton Un-registered park and garden of local historic interest.  The 
landscape character type is principal settled farmlands.  The site itself is an agricultural field, 
where the key characteristic is the sloping topography at the western base of the Woolhope 
Dome.  The existing housing at Sufton Rise is out-of-keeping with the surrounding landscape 
and the settlement pattern of the area. 

 
The proposed development does not work well with the existing topography, with retaining 
walls up to almost 2m high required to create the level platforms necessary for the houses.  
Whilst the introduction of housing will considerably alter the character of the site, it will always 
be seen in the context of the existing adjacent housing.  There will not be a significant negative 
impact on the key characteristics of the AONB or the historic parkland.  The application does 
include assessment of alternative sites in an outline landscape and visual impact statement, 
landscape details (including for the play area and allotments) and a landscape management 
plan – this is all necessary to demonstrate that the applicants have considered landscape 
character issues as required by UDP Policy LA2. 

 
The retention of the roadside hedgerow is welcome.  The Potterton Associates Ltd plan P/05 
(March 2013) is suitable to the site.  It includes native planting to the boundaries and amenity 
planting within the site.  Small trees within the site, around the allotments and play area, will 
provide some structure and variety to the site, breaking up views of the hard landscape to the 
road and buildings. 

 
Whilst I am not convinced that the proposed site layout makes the most efficient use of the 
topography and the allotments buffer means that there is no relationship between the existing 
built form of the houses at Sufton Rise and the new, random arrangement proposed.  The 
applicants, however, have provided a wide range of information to try to overcome these 
issues. 

 
4.5  Conservation Manager (Ecology):  Although hedgerow loss is entailed in the formation of the 

new access, replacement is intended and the content of the Landscape Management Plan is 
thorough.  Subject to the imposition of a condition requiring adherence to the 
recommendations set out in the Ecologist’s report 2012, there is no objection.  

  
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Mordiford Parish Council:  The Parish Council entirely supports this application having been 

involved from the outset.  The need for the affordable housing was initiated by the parish plan 
process which the Parish Council initiated. 

 
5.2  Five letters of objection have been received from local residents.  The content is summarised 

as follows: 
 

• The site is within the Area of Outstanding Beauty and should not be developed in 
preference to sites elsewhere; 

80



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

• The development will cause traffic congestion and no thought has been given to alleviating 
parking concerns in Sufton Rise; 

• The site is not sustainable and the footpath link to Mordiford is too narrow and too close to 
speeding vehicles to be used safely, particularly by those with young children; 

• The proposals are not in keeping.  Sufton Rise is built exclusively in red brick; 

• The impact on existing properties in terms of noise and loss of view is detrimental; 

• Who will allocate and manage allotments?  Will they be let to local people?  The potential 
for use by strangers, particularly with the children`s play area adjacent is undesirable; 

• There are anti-social consequences of allotment use in such proximity to existing 
dwellings, including noise, smells, pests and bonfires; 

• How will it be ensured that the houses will be allocated to locals in need?  The housing 
needs survey was conducted in 2009.  Can it be considered up-to-date? 

• The development will upset the population balance and is in danger of making the Sufton 
Rise area larger than Mordiford, which itself has limited services; 

• The school at Mordiford is full. 

5.3  One letter of support has been received.  The content is summarised as follows: 
 

• The Parish Council, Housing Association and Housing Needs Officer have worked very 
hard to ensure the development is one which best meets the needs of the communities; 

• Concerns regarding parking, traffic and conservation have been dealt with and local 
residents kept informed as to progress; 

• The pre-planning consultation process has been very informative, with good partnership 
working. 

5.4 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 
link:- 

 http://news.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/searchplanningapplications.aspx 
 

Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/government-citizens-and-rights/complaints-and-
compliments/contact-details/?q=contact%20centre&type=suggestedpage 

 
6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The application is for affordable housing to assist in meeting the identified need within the 

parish.  The site is within open countryside forming part of the Wye Valley AONB and Old 
Sufton park and garden of local importance, although these designations also encompass 
Sufton Rise.  The key issues in the determination of this application are: 

 
• An assessment of the need for the development and its location relative to Mordiford; 

• The appropriateness of the site in relation to the AONB designation (including biodiversity 
mitigation and compensation); 

• An assessment of highway safety. 

6.2  The Unitary Development Plan envisaged the delivery of a suitable proportion of affordable 
housing via allocated and appropriate windfall sites within Hereford, the market towns and 
main villages.  Mordiford is not defined as a main village, but is a ‘smaller settlement’.  It has 
been established that the housing delivery policies of the Unitary Development Plan are out of 
date as the Council cannot currently demonstrate a five-year housing land supply, although 
policies H7 and H10 do make provision for the release of land for rural exceptions housing in 

81



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

instances where there is a proven, genuine and identifiable local need.  With regard to the 
criteria of Policy H10 officers are satisfied that the local need is genuine, that local housing 
conditions cannot meet the need and that arrangements will be made to ensure that the 
housing remains available as such in perpetuity. 

 
6.3  Paragraph 49 of the NPPF says that housing applications should be considered in the context 

of the presumption in favour of sustainable development. Relevant local plan policies for the 
supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot 
demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites. 

 
6.4  Whilst officers are conscious that the site is not immediately adjacent the historic centre of 

Mordiford, genuine and long-term attempts have been made to identify a viable alternative 
closer to the village.  Officers from the Housing Needs and Planning departments have been 
involved in this process along with the Parish Council. 

 
6.5    As such, although the distance from the village is a cause for concern in the context of 

sustainability and reducing the need to travel by car, the new proposal should be seen within 
the context of the wider presumption in favour of sustainable development.   In this case the 
site is adjoining Sufton Rise and would not be seen as isolated rural development and having 
regard to the available evidence officers are content that there is no other sequentially 
preferable location that would meet the immediate need that has been identified in the parish.    

 
6.6  The presence of the existing residential development at Sufton Rise also acts to reduce the 

negative landscape impact as regards the AONB designation.  Insofar as Policy LA1 is 
concerned the development can reasonably be described as small-scale and necessary to 
facilitate the social well-being of the area through the provision of affordable housing.  
Although the development will clearly alter the existing landscape character, officers are 
satisfied that landscaping proposals will be sufficient to adequately mitigate the effect and will 
result in some enhanced biodiversity value. Accordingly the proposal is considered to be in 
accordance with LA1 and paragraph 116 of the NPPF and the Policies, LA2, LA5, LA6, NC1, 
NC6, NC7 and NC8. 

 
6.7   The Transportation Manager has made some observations regarding the sustainability of the 

site in location terms and has also set out conditions required to make the development 
acceptable in terms of the site access and drainage of surface water.  Officers acknowledge 
that the site is over 1km from Mordiford, but conclude that the need for affordable housing in 
the parish outweighs these concerns regarding location.  Although restoration and potential 
widening of the footpath linking Sufton Rise to the village would be beneficial, it is beyond the 
scope of this application to address this deficiency.  

 
6.8  The Transportation Manager is content that the proposed access from the C1262 is 

acceptable and would provide a safe means of access onto the highway in accordance with 
UDP Policy DR3. 

 
Other Matters 

 
6.9  Natural England is content that the foul drainage strategy should mitigate likely significant 

effects on the River Wye/Lugg Special Area of Conservation.  A condition is recommended to 
ensure that the stated approach to drainage is that undertaken on site.   

 
6.10  The allotments and play areas have been included upon request from the Parish Council and 

allocation of the allotments will be administered by them in accordance with NALC guidelines.  
They are intended as a parish facility with preference given to those persons who have already 
registered an interest in taking one on.  Likewise parking spaces for the allotments and 
overspill from Sufton Rise will also be administered by the Parish Council.  With this local 
management in place officers are content that the allotments can co-exist with existing 

82



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

housing without undue detriment to living conditions in a manner consistent with Policy 
DR2(4).  The opportunity to provide allotments are also considered to underpin the objectives 
set out at Chapter 8 of the NPPF in that the provision of new community facilities can assist in 
facilitating social interaction and creating healthy, inclusive communities.  It is also clear that 
this aspect of the proposal has the benefit of long-standing community support. 

 
6.11  A legal agreement will be required in order to ensure that the dwellings are occupied in 

accordance with the Council’s adopted eligibility criteria, with preference given to people in 
housing need living within the parish in the first instance before cascading out to surrounding 
parishes.      

 
Conclusions 

 
6.12  The provision of affordable housing to meet genuine long-term need is supported by the 

Unitary Development Plan and although a site immediately adjoining Mordiford would have 
been preferred from the perspective of reducing the need to travel, officers are satisfied that 
there are no other available sites capable of meeting the need.  In this instance, therefore, the 
provision of affordable housing to meet a parish-wide need is a material consideration to which 
significant weight can be attached.  Likewise the proposals would realise other community-led 
aspirations around the provision of allotments and a children’s play area.  The proposal has 
been subject of wide-ranging local consultation and has the full support of the Parish Council 
and it is they who would assume management responsibility for the allotments and parking 
spaces.  In this respect, although there is a degree of conflict with UDP Policy H10, officers 
conclude that the positive benefits to be derived from the scheme outweigh this conflict and 
the recommendation is one of approval in accordance with the objectives of the National 
Planning Policy Framework as expressed in chapters 6, 7 and 8. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A01 Time limit for commencement (full permission) 

2. B07 Section 106 Agreement 

3. C01 Samples of external materials 

4. G10 Landscaping scheme 

5. G11 Landscaping scheme – implementation 

6. I18 Scheme of foul drainage disposal 

7. The recommendations set out in the ecologist’s report dated December 2012 should 
be followed. Prior to commencement of development, an ecological enhancement 
scheme based on these recommendations shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
authority for written approval. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.  

Reason: To ensure that all species are protected having regard to the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 and Policies NC1, NC6 and NC7 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan.   

8. I20 Scheme of surface water drainage 

9. H03 Visibility splays (2.4m x 210m) 

10. H09 Driveway gradient 

11. H11 Parking - estate development (more than one house) 

12. H18 On site roads - submission of details (including outfall arrangements and 

83



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

piping of the roadside ditch) 

13. H21 Wheel washing 

14. H27 Parking for site operatives 

15. H19 On site roads - phasing 

16. I51 - Details of slab levels 

17. I55 - Site Waste Management 

18. The allotments and play area hereby approved shall be completed in accordance 
with details to be approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the 
first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved.  

Reason:  In order to ensure that the community facilities are available for use so as 
to comply with Policy CF5 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.  

Reason for Approval 
 
1. The application has been considered with regard to ‘saved’ Unitary Development 

Plan Policies S1, S2, S7, DR1, DR2, DR3, DR5, H6, H7, H9, H10, H13, H15, H16, H19, 
LA1, LA4, LA5, LA6, NC1, NC7, NC8 and CF5 together with guidance laid down in 
the National Planning Policy Framework.  The development promotes the provision 
of affordable housing and other community facilities to meet a long-established 
local need in the context of a current lack of housing land supply.  The 
development, which is within the Wye Valley Outstanding Natural Beauty, is 
considered small-scale and necessary to facilitate the economic and social well-
being of the designated area and its communities, would provide appropriate 
mitigation and compensation in relation to biodiversity and is in the public interest.  
Vehicular access from the C1262 is considered appropriate in accordance with 
Policy DR3, whereas the development would not, in the opinion of the local 
planning authority, adversely affect the living conditions of existing occupants of 
Sufton Rise. The local planning authority concludes that the development accords 
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set down in the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

Informatives: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 

this application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other 
material considerations. Negotiations in respect of matters of concern with the 
application (as originally submitted) have resulted in amendments to the proposal.  
As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning 
permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

2. HN10 No drainage to discharge to highway 

3. HN08 Section 38 Agreement & Drainage details 

4. HN05 Works within the highway 

5. HN24 Drainage other than via highway system 

Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
Background Papers 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

84



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 260479 
PF2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  
APPLICATION NO:  S/123565/F   
 
SITE ADDRESS:  SUFTON RISE, MORDIFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 4EN 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

85



86



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 15 MAY 2013 

TITLE OF 
REPORT: 

130060/F - ERECTION OF 14 NO. SEMI-DETACHED 
AND DETACHED DWELLINGS AT LAND SOUTH OF 
GREYTREE ROAD, GREYTREE, ROSS ON WYE, 
HEREFORDSHIRE 

For: K W Bell Group Ltd per Walter Stuart, Treetops 
Studio, Sevenleaze Lane, Edge, Stroud, Glos GL6 6NJ 

WEBSITE LINK: https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planningapplicationsearch/details/?id=130060 

 
Date Received: 8 January 2013 Ward: Ross-on-Wye West Grid Ref: 359774,225086 
Expiry Date: 9 April 2013  
Local Members: Councillors CM Bartrum and R Mayo 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The application site is accessed from Greytree, an unclassified road (u/c 70604). The 0.49 

hectare site is hedgerow lined along the unclassified road and on the southern side there an 
embankment covered by blackthorn and hawthorn. The A40(T) is located to the south which 
slopes down  towards the south west and is almost contiguous with the level of the A40(T). It 
is in the south western corner of the site that a bund is proposed.  

 
1.2 The application site is 32 metres wide at the north eastern end adjoining Belle Vue. It is 

proposed to erect 14 dwellings (12 will be detached and a pair of  semi-detached dwellings. All 
the dwellings have principal elevations facing northwards towards properties on the opposite 
side of Greytree. The dwellings on the opposite side of the road are a mixture of two –storey 
dwelling. Plots 1- 4 share one access point which is opposite the access into Third Avenue. 
Plot 1 has been sited south eastwards into the site so that the adjoining bungalow (Belle Vue) 
to the north east retains a south westerly aspect across the parking and turning areas.  

 
1.3 The next access point is 28 metres down slope and serves Plots 5-9. Three dwellings have 

integral garages (Plots 5-7). Plots 8 and 9 will share a double garage sited forward of Plot 9. 
The dwellings are between 8.2 and 8.3 metres high and sited between 17 to 19 metres back 
from the highway. 

 
1.4 The remaining 5 detached dwellings Plots 10-14 will be served by an access point opposite 

Fourth Avenue. Four of these will have integral garages and Plot 14 will have a detached 
garage.  These dwellings are between 8 metres and 8.5 metres high. The dwellings (Plots 10-
14) are again sited between 17 and 19 metres back from the roadside. There are spaces 
provided between the three areas delineated above for visitor parking. There will be planting 
between the three parking area and along the road frontage.  A mixed native species 
hedgerow is proposed to be planted along the roadside boundary It replaces the existing 
mixed species hedgerow that will be removed in order to provide a 2 metre wide footpath and 
the requisite visibility for each of the three site entrances.  

 

AGENDA ITEM 13

87



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

1.5 The plans originally submitted proposed traffic calming measures together with a parking bay 
area between Third and Fourth Avenues. This also resulted in the frontage being set back 
over a middle section of the development site. This has been revised such that the highway 
verge is straightened thereby providing 1 to 2 metres extra turning space on the site and the 
removal of the parking bay between Third and Fourth Avenues.  A wider footpath has been 
provided in its place adjoining existing properties. The objective of this amendment was to 
seek to address local concerns about the extent and impact of traffic management on Greytree 
and to maximise visibility for each of the three new access points without compromising the 
existing visibility at the Third and Fourth Avenue junctions. 

 
1.6 This application was accompanied by a Design and Access Statement, a Transport Statement, 

Ecology Report, Landscape and Visual Appraisal, a Noise Assessment and confidential 
Viability Appraisal. The covering letter refers to reductions in the bund, revisions to Plot 1’s 
relationship to Belle Vue It is stated in the Noise Assessment documents that noise from the 
A40(T) will be mitigated by bunding on the south western area of the site. This bund has been 
reduced in scale from that proposed with an earlier refused application in order to reduce the 
visual impact of the bund and acoustic fencing. 

 
2. Policies  
 
2.1 National Planning Policy Framework: 
 
           The following sections are of particular reference: 
 
           Introduction -  Achieving sustainable development 
           Section 6    -  Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
           Section 7    -  Requiring Good Design 
           Section 8    -  Promoting healthy communities 
           Section 11  -  Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
 
2.2      Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan: 
 
 
 
           

       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

S2 - Development Requirements 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR4 - Environment 
DR5 - Planning Obligations 
DR13 - Noise 
DR14 - Lighting 
H1 - Hereford and the Market Towns: Settlement Boundaries and Established 

Residential Areas 
H2 - Hereford and the Market Towns: Housing Land Allocations 
H13 - Sustainable Residential Design 
H15 - Density 
H16 - Car Parking 
H19 - Open Space Requirements 
LA1 - Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
LA2 - Landscape Character and Areas Least Resilient to Change 
LA3 - Setting of Settlements 
LA5 - Protection of Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
LA6 - Landscaping Schemes 
T6 - Walking 
T8 - Road Hierarchy 
T11 - Parking Provision 

88



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 
documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 

 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
2.3 Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 

Landscape Character Assessment 
Planning Obligations 

 
2.4 Other Guidance: 
 

Annual Monitoring Report 
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 

 
2.5   The Unitary Development Plan policies together with any relevant supplementary planning 

documentation can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following link:- 
 
 http://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/29815.aspp 
 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1      S/121045/F Erection of 14 semi-detached and detached dwellings – Refused and 

Appeal by way of Public Inquiry pending. 
 
4.       Consultation Summary 
 
          Statutory Consultees 
 
4.1 Welsh Water has no objections subject to conditions being imposed relating discharge of foul 

and surface water discharges 
 
           Internal Council Advice 
 
4.2   Transportation Manager has no objections in response to the revised plans subject to the  

imposition of conditions 
 
4.3    Conservation Manager (Landscape) states that the Landscape and Visual Appraisal submitted 

follows recommended guidelines. Accept notwithstanding contribution of open  space  the 
visual analysis particularly as regards the limited distant views of the site. The linear form  
takes account of the site. More landscaping required close to plot 14 and the bund. Need to 
know about construction of bund. 

 
4.4  Conservation Manager (Ecology) states that the boundary of the Local Geological Site ( LGS) 

does not overlap with the application site . Conditions should be imposed providing measures 
to protect the LGS together with those to be detailed in a method statement for habitat and 
management enhancement. 

 
4.5  Environmental Health & Trading Standards Manager (Pollution) has no objections to the 

mitigation measures as regards the bund and barrier. 

NC1 - Biodiversity and Development 
NC4 - Sites of Local Importance 
NC7 - Compensation for Loss of Biodiversity 
NC8 - Habitat Creation, Restoration and Enhancement 
CF2 - Foul Drainage 

89



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

 
4.6  Environmental Health & Trading Standards Manager (Contaminated sites) states that the site 

is within 250 metres of a former landfill site and therefore a desk top study and risk 
assessment should be undertaken before works are undertaken. 

 
4.7  Countryside & Parks Manager states that that  the provision of off- site contributions towards 

play areas on the other side of the A40(T) is acceptable given the proximity of the play areas 
to the proposal site. The contributions should be made via a Section 106 agreement. 

 
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Ross and Rural Parish Council object 
 
 At the Ross Rural Parish Council meeting on 30 January 2013 the Councillors resolved to 

object to planning application no. S130060/F, erection of 14 semi-detached and detached 
dwellings at Greytree, Ross on Wye. 

 
 The main reason for the objection is that the density of housing is considered to be out of 

keeping with that of the surrounding residential area. 
 
 In addition to this, other concerns were expressed by local residents regarding: 
             

- The potential traffic impact and the fact the associated traffic calming measures have yet 
to be detailed as part of this application. 

- The impact of the proposed noise screening measures and the risks these will affect the 
stability of the soft bedrock which underlies the area. 

- The absence of any play provision within the scheme, which were incorporated in the 
original proposal considered by the Parish Council. 
 

There was a high turn out of local residents at our meeting and very strong views were 
expressed about the potential impacts of such an intensive housing development and the 
associated loss of a valued green space. 
 
The view was expressed that there are a number of housing sites already approved, in the 
Ross urban area, which could accommodate the housing needs of the town without the need 
to develop a new site. 

 
5.2      59 letters of objection have been received. In summary the points raised are as follows: 
 
           Greenfield site in AONB, brown field sites should be chosen over this significant open green 

space according to UDP Inspector also LA1, LA2, LA6 and HBA9 applicable 
 
- Site identified in SHLAA report lower down slope, not this one. 

- Not overcome previous reasons for refusal 

- Linear green buffer zone 

- Still contrary to Policy LA1 i.e. protection of AONB paramount 

- Contrary to Ross & Rural Town Plan  

- Linear green buffer zone 

- Precedent for further development 

- Too many houses out of keeping 

- Over density of Greytree area by 10 dwellings 

- Need affordable houses. Good quality starter homes 

90



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

- Possible to provide 5 bedrooms in some houses 

- Loss of privacy and enjoyment of property 

- Open space provision not an option. Contrary to Policy H19 

- Loss of day-lighting and impact on solar panels 

- Too much traffic now : 2 schools nearby 

- Conflict of existing access points opposite entrances to Third and Fourth Avenues and 
parked cars 

- Parking provision inadequate need more space for visitors, otherwise will spill out onto 
spine road 

- Threatens wildlife 

- Drainage problems with run-off will be exacerbated 

- Part of Local Geological Site 

- Damage to soft bed rock from baffles.          

 
5.3 The consultation responses can be viewed on the Council’s website by using the following 
link:- 
 http://news.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/planning/searchplanningapplications.aspx 
 

Internet access is available at the Council’s Customer Service Centres:- 
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/government-citizens-and-rights/complaints-and-
compliments/contact-details/?q=contact%20centre&type=suggestedpage 

 
6. Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The key considerstions in the determination of this application are as follows: 
 
                    1)  The Principle of the Development 
                    2)  The NPPF and Housing Land Supply 
                    3)  Landscape Impact 
                    4)  Layout and Design 
                    5)  Highways Matters 
                    6)  Infrastructure 
                                         

            The Principle of Development 
 
6.2      The site is wholly within the defined settlement of Ross-on-Wye and therefore is by definition a 

sustainable location where there is a presumption in favour of residential development unless 
other material considerations indicate otherwise. In this case the main considerations are with 
regard to the impact that the development would have in the landscape , which in this instance 
forms part of the designated Wye Valley Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty; the ability of the 
local road network to accomodate the traffic generated by the debvelopment without undue 
consequences for highway safety and lastly the impact that the new dwevelopment would 
have on the amenity of residents in the locality. 

 
6.3     The Core Strategy is not sufficiently advanced to be given due weight in the consideration of 

this application, in any case there are are no specific policies or proposals that relate to this 
particular site. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into force in March 
2012. Paragraph 215 of the NPPF clarifies that due weight can still be given to the relevant 
UDP policies  for a period of 12 months from the date of adoption of the NPPF providing those 
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF. 

 

91



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

          The NPPF and Housing Land Supply 
 
6.4     At the heart of the NPPF is a general presumption in favour of sustainable development and 

applications for housing should be considered in this context. The NPPF requires that local 
planning authorities should identify a rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land to 
ensure choice and competition in the market. Additionally, the NPPF requires an additional 
buffer of 5% (increased to 20% if a planning authority has persistently under delivered housing 
land). On the basis of the evidence available to date, it is considered that the requirement for a 
5% buffer is applicable to Herefordshire, although this assumption is the subject of challenge 
by developers. 

 
6.5  The Council`s Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) which monitors housing land availability is 

currently indicating of a shortfall of approximately 216 units which equates to a 4.6 year 
supply. This shortfall also does not account for the requirement to maintain the additional 5% 
buffer which would amount to a further 140 units.  The data collection for the 2011/2012 period 
has commenced and this will provide a more up to date land supply position and it is 
anticipated that the shortfall will increase thereby lending greater weight to the granting of 
permissions for sustainable residential development. 

 
Landscape and Visual  Impact 

 
6.6   The site is within the designated Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and it is 

acknowledged that it makes a positive contributes to the amenity of this part of the AONB by 
providing a green wedge between the built up area of Greytree and the A40. The proposed 
development will have an inevitable localised impact but not one that can reasonably be 
regarded has harmful to the intrinsic natural beauty of the landscape given the urban contact 
of the site and its relationship with the A40. Furthermore it is considered that the localised 
impact can be successfully mitigated through buffer planting along the roadside frontage and 
between the new dwellings and three proposed access points. The revised linear layout also 
maintains a green wedge, albeit much narrower within the rear gardens of the proposed 
dwellings. This is reflected in the comments of the Conservation Manager, which in 
conjunction with the strong presumption in favour of sustainable are such that a refusal on the 
grounds of landscape impact could not be reasonably sustained.   

 
6.7   The previously submitted and refused proposal for 14 dwellings was not accompanied by a 

Landscape and Visual Appraisal or an Ecological Appraisal and as such it was concluded that 
these key issues could not have been properly considered in the development of that 
proposal. Furthermore the dwellings proposed in the refused scheme were not laid out in a 
linear form in response to the topography but included a terrace of tall dwellings on the south 
western end of the site. This has been remedied with a simpler approach to the built form that 
reflects the linear configuration of Greytree and linking residential roads and a reduction in the 
bund area. It is considered that this proposal has addressed one of the primary reasons for 
refusal and therefore this revised proposal, in terms of its small scale, layout and mitigation 
measure accords with Policies LA1, LA2, LA5 and LA6 of HUDP. 

 
           Layout, Design and Density 
 
6.8  The proposal, given its modest scale, provides a housing scheme with an appropriate mix of 

housing types. The linear layout now adopted in more responsive to the local topography and 
with appropriate landscaping will provide for a suitably scaled extension to the established 
residential development in the Greytree area that follows the essentially linear pattern of 
housing. There is also considered to be sufficient spacing between properties and those facing 
the development site along Greytree such that adverse overlooking or loss of amenity would 
not arise.  

 

92



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

6.9   There is some variation in the house types which reflects the mix of house types and materials 
already evident on the locality. The external materials are not detailed at this stage, the use of 
a facing brick and/or a rendered finish would be appropriate, together with a darker coloured 
roof tile in order to assist in assimilating the new dwellings into the local context. This can be 
made the subject of a planning condition. 

 
6.10   The plot nearest to Belle Vue has been re-sited further into the site in order to reduce the 

impact on the aforementioned bungalow upslope from it. It is considered that the relationship 
is acceptable given that Belle Vue will have a clear view south westwards over the parking 
/turning areas of the 14 dwellings below it. The existing dwelling will not be unduly overlooked 
and will not be adversely overshadowed. 

 
6.11  The development of 14 dwellings on a site of just under 0.5 hectares equates to a density per 

hectare of 28 dwellings which is very much at the lower end of the density range anticipated in 
existing urban areas and consistent with the density of existing development within the 
Greytree area. Therefore, it is considered that this revised application addresses the previous 
reason for refusal and would accord with Policies DR1, DR2, H13 and H15 of HUDP.     

 
Highways Matters 

 
6.12 This is considered to be one of the major issues raised in objections received from local 

residents and the Parish Council.  The primary issue is considered to relate to the speed and 
volume of traffic. It is evidently the case that traffic is generated in relation to the primary and 
senior schools to the north east. This is though only at peak periods and it is considered that 
the unclassified road is capable of accommodating the additional traffic without undue 
consequences for highway safety in the locality. The revised plans remove the parking bay on 
the northern side of Greytree, which was the subject of objections in relation to the refused 
proposal and an earlier proposal of the current scheme. There is also considered to be 
sufficient off road parking and turning facilities in accordance with Policy H16 of HUDP. The 
provision of a wider footpath on the northern side of the road and the improvements to visibility 
along the site frontage have addressed the earlier concerns raised by the Transportation 
Manager. Accordingly whilst the concerns of local residents about additional traffic movements 
are acknowledged, these are not substantiated in relation to any evidence demonstrating that 
there will be an adverse effect on highway safety. The revised proposal provides acceptable 
visibility and does not compromise the continued use of existing road junctions. Accordingly, 
the proposal accords with Policies H16, DR3, T8 and T11. of HUDP. 

 
          Infrastructure 
 
6.13    Welsh Water has confirmed that subject to conditions including controlling the separation of 

foul and surface water drainage from the site, no objections are raised. It is not considered that 
there are any matters relating to drainage, as stated in representations received that cannot be 
addressed by the imposition of conditions recommended by Welsh Water and therefore, the 
development accords with Policies CF2 and DR4 of HUDP.  

 
Other matters 

 
           Section 106 Agreement/Play Facilities 
 
6.14   This proposal has not been the subject of a draft Planning Obligation, the applicant has instead 

made a case for not paying contributions, on the basis of the viability of the development. This 
has been considered in detail by the Planning Obligations Manager who advises that the 
assessment provides sufficient justification for setting aside the normal S106 requirements 
that would pertain to a scheme of this scale. Accordingly the proposal accords with the specific 
provisions of the Councils SPD and the NPPF which calls for a realistic approach to be 
adopted in relation to securing contributions where convincing evidence on viability is 

93



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

provided. Notwithstanding the above, in recognition of the lack of on-site recreational facilities, 
the applicant has agreed informally to make a contribution of £5000. 

 
6.15 It is understood that there are extant Action Plans for sites at Mayhill and Rope Walk between 

5 to 15 minutes for older children respectively and it is on the basis of  securing this 
contribution that a Section 106 Agreement is considered reasonable and necessary and  to 
accord with Policy H19 of HUDP 

                                                                                                           . 
           Biodiversity 
 
6.16    The proposal site is used for grazing and therefore has limited botanical interest. Whilst, it is 

regretted that roadside hedgerow will need to be removed in order to facilitate development of 
the site, it is accepted that the new native species of hedgerow proposed along the roadside 
together with additional planting elsewhere will provide mitigation and arguably some 
enhancement for this loss of biodiversity. This will be secured by the imposition of conditions 
providing an enhancement and management scheme relating to this new planting.  Therefore, 
the proposal accords with Policies NC1, NC4, NC7 and NC8 of HUDP. 

 
          Local Geological Site 
 
6.17 Representations have been received from local residents and the Herefordshire and 

Worcestershire earth Heritage Trust in relation to the covered and exposed bed rock adjoining 
the south western corner of the site. The Conservation Manager has confirmed that the 
application site does not overlap or conflict with this Local Geological site, but that a full 
working method statement should be provided as part of a pre-commencement planning 
condition. This will safeguard the integrity of the site and therefore there are not considered to 
be reasons for resisting residential given these safeguards  

          
         Conclusion 
 
6.18  Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development which should be seen as a golden thread running though both plan making and 
decision-taking. In terms of the latter, this means approving development proposals that 
accord with the development plan without delay; and where a development plan is absent, 
silent or relevant policies are out-of-date, permission should be granted unless any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in the NPPF as a whole; or specific policies in the NPPF indicate 
development should be restricted. 

 
6.19 It has already been established that there is currently a deficit in housing land supply, which is 

a material consideration that should be accorded significant weight in relation to this site which 
lies within the identified settlement boundary for Ross-on-Wye. The proposed development, 
whilst modest in scale, will contribute to the current shortfall in terms of the delivery of 
additional housing and it is accepted that the development is sustainable in terms of location 
of the site, proximity to services and facilities and accessibility by non car based transport 
modes. The local concerns regarding the loss of open space are acknowledged but it is not 
considered that the site would have a significant adverse impact in the local context, including 
residential amenity or indeed on the wider character of the AONB.  The development is served 
by means of access that will not have an adverse impact on highway safety and furthermore, 
given the acknowledged viability considerations makes an appropriate contribution towards 
off-site play provision in the locality. 

   
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That subject to completion of a Section 106 planning obligation in relation to play space 
contributions, the Officers named in the Scheme of Delegation be authorised to grant planning  

94



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

permission subject to conditions noted in the report and subject to any further conditions 
considered necessary by Officers:  
 
1. A01 Time limit for commencement (full permission) 

2. B02 Development in accordance with approved plans and materials 

3. B07 Section 106 Agreement 

4. F08 No conversion of garage to habitable accommodation 

5. H03 Visibility splays 

6. H05 Access gates 

7. H09 Driveway gradient 

8. H11 Parking - estate development (more than one house) 

9. H13 Access, turning area and parking 

10. H17 Junction improvement/off site works 

11. H21 Wheel washing 

12. H27 Parking for site operatives 

13. H29 Secure covered cycle parking provision 

14. I44 No burning of materials/substances during construction phase 

15. I48 Contents of scheme to deal with contaminated land 

16. I49 Implementation of measures to deal with contaminated land 

17. I51 Details of slab levels 

18. K4 Nature Conservation – Implementation 

19. Prior to commencement of the development, a full working method statement, 
including measures to protect the Local Geological Site should be submitted to and be 
approved in writing by the local planning authority, and the work shall be implemented 
as approved. 

 

Reason: In order to maintain the integrity and visual amenity of the site and to conform 
with Policy NC1 of Herefordshire Unitary Development plan. 

20. L01 Foul/surface water drainage 

21. L02 No surface water to connect to public system 

22. L03 No drainage run-off to public system 

23. L04 Comprehensive & Integrated draining of site 

Reasons for Approval  
 
1. In reaching the decision to grant planning permission, regard has been had to the 

relevant policies in the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. The local planning authority was also mindful of other 
supplementary planning guidance. 

The National Planning Policy Framework requires the council to maintain a 5 year 
supply of deliverable housing land and where this requirement is not being met, the 
relevant plan policies concerning the supply of housing land should not be regarded 
as up to date.  

The development offers the benefits in terms of the additional housing within the next 
five years; is sustainable in terms of the location of the site, its proximity to existing 

95



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

services and facilities and accessibility by non-car based modes of transport. The 
amended proposal provides for an improved relationship with existing development 
and it is not considered that the development will have an adverse impact in this part 
of the designated Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, in view of its small scale and 
limited prominence in long tem views with iys localised impact appropriately mitigated 
by additonal  landscaping. These measures will also provide some biodiversity 
enhancement on the site. The bund and associated works will not have an adverse 
impact on a local geological site.  The need to deliver additional housing land and the 
requirement to consider new residential development in the context of a presumption 
in favour of sustainable development along with the benefits of the development  
outweigh the localised impacts identified. The development is considered to comply 
with Policies S2, DR1, DR2, 
DR3,DR4,DR5,DR13,H1,H2,H13,H15,H16,H19,LA1,LA2,LA3,LA5,LA6,T6,T8,T11,NC1, 
NC4, NC6, NC8 and CF2 of the Herefordshire Unitary Develoment Plan. 

Informatives: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 

application by assessing the proposal against planning policy and any other material 
considerations. Negotiations in respect of matters of concern with the application (as 
originally submitted) have resulted in amendments to the proposal. As a result, the 
Local Planning Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable 
proposal in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as 
set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. 

2. HN01 Mud on highway 

3. HN04 Private apparatus within highway 

4. HN05 Works within the highway 

5. HN07 Section 278 Agreement 

6. HN28 Highways Design Guide and Specification 

7. N02 Section 106 Obligation 

8. N02A Section 106 Obligation 

9. N03A Adjoining Property Rights 

10. N04 Rights of way 

11. N16 Welsh Water Informative 

 
 
Decision:  ..............................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:  ..................................................................................................................................................  
 
 ..............................................................................................................................................................  
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

96



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Prior on 01432 261932 
PF2 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 
  
APPLICATION NO:  130060/F   
 
SITE ADDRESS :  LAND SOUTH OF GREYTREE ROAD, GREYTREE, ROSS ON WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

97



98


	Agenda
	PUBLIC INFORMATION
	4 MINUTES
	6 SE100966/F - PENNOXSTONE COURT FARM, KINGS CAPLE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 4TX
	7 130166/F - SITE ADJACENT TO 4 VALENTINE COURT, CANON PYON, HEREFORD, HR4 8NZ
	8 N123414/CD - HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU
	9 N123415/CD - HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU
	10 N123428/CD - HOPE FAMILY CENTRE, HEREFORD ROAD, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4QU
	11 130191/O - LAND ADJACENT HARWELL, BRAMPTON ABBOTS, ROSS ON WYE, HR9 7JD
	12 S123565/F - SUFTON RISE, MORDIFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 4EN
	13 130060/F - LAND SOUTH OF GREYTREE ROAD, GREYTREE, ROSS ON WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE

